City Update

For weeks ending: August 29 and September 5

City Council Mayor & City Administrator
Position 1: Deady Mayor’s Activities
Attended Labor Day activities 8/25 met with Finance and Staff re: 2015 Budget
9/4 attended Council mtg 8/26 attended Finance Committee meeting
9/5 attended Public Safety Committee mtg 8/27 met with Judge and Finance staff re: 2015 Budget

Attended Labor Day activities
Position 2: Morgan

8/30, 8/31, 9/1 attended Labor Day activities
9/4 attended Council mtg City Administrator’s Activities

Position 3: Edelman

Attended Labor Day activities

8/26 attended Finance Committee mtg
9/4 attended Council mtg

Position 4: Benson

Attended Labor Day activities

8/26 attended Finance Committee mtg
9/4 presided over Council mtg

Position 5: Taylor

Attended Labor Day activities

9/5 attended Public Safety Committee and Public
Works Committee meetings

Council Commissions, Boards & Committees

e Budget, Finance and Administration Committee. Meeting date:

o August 26, 2014. Next meeting: September 25, 2014. Meeting time: 4:00 PM. Staff support: May Miller.

e Planning and Community Service Committee. Meeting date: September 9, 2014, 2014. Meeting time: 4:00
pm. Staff support: Aaron Nix.

o Cemetery and Parks Committee. Meeting date: Meeting time: 10:00 AM. Staff support: Seth Boettcher.

o Public Works Committee. Meeting date: , 2014. Meeting time: . Staff support: Seth Boettcher.

o Public Safety Committee. Meeting date: , 2014. Meeting time: . Staff support: Chief Kiblinger.

Community Development Activities

¢ Much activity for the Community Development Department, with significant activitiy associated with building review and
inspections, Special Event processing, Variances and SEPA reveiws.

e The Permit Center continues with its’ modified hours of 8:30 am — 5:00 pm, Monday, Wednesday and Thursday. The
Permit Center is closed on Tuesdays and Fridays.

Planning Commission:

o Further discussion and follow-up on the Public Participation Plan revisions to be forwarded to the City Council.

2013 2012
Pre-application Conferences Held 2 7
Preliminary Plats Approved
(Number of Residential Lots)

Multi-family units approves

New Single Family Residential Permits Issued 3 8
New Commercial Square Footage Approved

Tenant Improvement Permits Issued 1 3
Sign Permits Issued 1 2
Public Hearings Held 1 1




Status of Active Capital Improvement Projects

Springs Project:  Administration, Public Works Committee, and Council @ CIP workshop agreed with the consultant’s
recommendation to tap the artesian spring on the north side of the Green River.  Next steps:

e Preliminary design
¢ Negotiate scope and fee with RH2 ; Met With State Parks to determine requirements and process
e Review scope and fee with funding partners
e Call for funds to cover the next element of work
e  Bring contract to the council for approval
Abrams Guard Rail: SEPA process complete; Coordination with Century Link; Project out to bid.

% Mil Tank Painting:  Phase 1 to take tank off line moving forward; Meeting to discuss decision information needed for
possible deferral.

Old Sewer Lagoon Decommissioning. Soil samples taken from site where bio solids to be are in. preparing SEPA
document. Started Nitrogen application rate for bio-solids application.

Downtown Water Main Project: Considering RFQ for engineer selection. Grant agreement expected in July.

Roberts Drive Reconstruction at Rock Creek Bridge: Legal says that we need to go through an updated consultant
selection process.

Lawson Street Sidewalk Project:  Project to bid next week, bid opening July 7th, bid award mid July, Notice to proceed
early August

SR 169 / North Commercial Storm Pond In design

Morganville Sewer Pump Station Reconstruction The repaired pump station should be reliable till fall. The project will
be scheduled for this fall.

Council Chambers Remodel: audience chairs are in.
e Sheet rock / brick wall covering planned for the last week in July and first week of August,
e  Carpet In August,
e  Council bench: RFP going out next week. Installation in September
e Audio visual: IT is recommending large flat panel with gateway access for presentations
e IF there is budget new council chairs will be purchased.

Summer asphalt patching: Bids are out, contract in July, work in August and or September.

Ginder Creek Trail/Regional Pond: Study completed by Landau Associates. Reviewed by the Parks/Cemetery Committee
at their June 19" meeting.

General Administrative Activities

e Petlicensesissued: __ 1 ;_ 42 year-to-date; website updates _11 ;264 year-to-date; passports
processed 21__; 596 _ year-to-date; business licenses issued: 3; 375 year-to-date; Lake Sawyer parking
permits issued:_0 : 13 .

e Received submittals from for services.

e Other:

Events on the Horizon

e See City calendar at http://www.ci.blackdiamond.wa.us/calendar.html

e See Maple Valley Black Diamond Chamber of Commerce calendar at
http://www.maplevalleychamber.org/schedule/calendar/maple-valley-featured-events

e See Enumclaw School District calendar at: www.enumclaw.wednet.edu

e See Black Diamond Historical Society calendar at http://www.blackdiamondmuseum.org/calendar.htm

e  See Black Diamond Community Center calendar at http://www.blackdiamondcc.org/community/community.html

Adopted Council 2013 Priorities

W2 — Reservoir Painting & Maintenance

10-year plan for asbestos pipe replacement

D2 — North Commercial & State Route 169 Stormwater Pond Design
P2 — Ginder Creek Trail Restoration

F1 & F2 — Fire Engine Replacement

T6 — Rock Creek Bridge

L3 — Police Radio Replacement



http://www.ci.blackdiamond.wa.us/calendar.html
http://www.maplevalleychamber.org/schedule/calendar/maple-valley-featured-events
http://www.enumclaw.wednet.edu/
http://www.blackdiamondmuseum.org/calendar.htm
http://www.blackdiamondcc.org/community/community.html

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

September 18, 2014 Regular Business Meeting Agenda
25510 Lawson St., Black Diamond, Washington

7:00 P.M. - CALL TO ORDER, FLAG SALUTE, ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENTS: Persons wishing to address the City Council regarding items of new business are encouraged to do so at this time.
When recognized by the Mayor, please come to the podium and clearly state your name and address. Please limit your comments to 3 minutes. If
you desire a formal agenda placement, please contact the City Clerk at 360-886-5700. Thank you for attending.

PUBLIC HEARINGS: None
APPOINTMENTS, PRESENTATIONS, ANNOUNCEMENTS:

Mayor’s Cemetery Board Appointments

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None
NEW BUSINESS:

1) AB14-083 — Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Inc.

for Surveying Services — MDRT Mr. Williamson
2) AB14-084 — Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Inc.

for Traffic Engineering Services — MDRT Mr. Williamson
3) AB14-085 — Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with RH2 — MDRT Mr. Williamson
4) AB14-086 — Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with Henderson,

Young & Company — MDRT Mr. Williamson
5) AB14-087 — Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with Perteet — MDRT Mr. Williamson

6) AB14-088 — Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement HWA Geosciences — MDRT Mr. Williamson
7) AB14-089 — Resolution Authorizing Professional Services Agreement with RH2 — Public Works Mr. Boettcher

DEPARTMENT REPORTS: None

MAYOR’S REPORT:

COUNCIL REPORTS:
A. Council Standing Committees and Regional Committees

e Councilmember Benson - Budget, Finance, Administration Committee; South County Area
Transportation Board SCATBd); South East Area Transportation Solutions (SEATYS)
Coalition; Mental IlIness and Drug Dependency Oversight Committee

Americans with Disabilities Act — Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700)



e Councilmember Edelman - Planning and Community Service Committee; Public Issues
Committee (PIC)

e Councilmember Deady - Cemetery and Parks Committee; Growth Management Planning
Council (GMPC)

e Councilmember Taylor, Chair - Public Works Committee; Public Safety Committee

e Councilmember Morgan - Water Resource Inventory Area Committee (WRIA 9)

ATTORNEY REPORT:
PUBLIC COMMENTS:
CONSENT AGENDA:

8) Claim Checks — September 18, 2014, No. 41350 through No. 41403 in the amount of $98,125.86
9) Payroll Checks — August 31, 2014 No.18397 through No. 18417 and ACH Pay in the amount of $259,816.01
10) Minutes — Council Minutes of September 4, 2014

EXECUTIVE SESSION: To discuss with legal counsel potential litigation pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(2)(i)

ADJOURNMENT:

Americans with Disabilities Act — Reasonable Accommodations Provided Upon Request (360-886-5700)



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION .
SUBJECT: Agenda Date: September 18, 2014 AB14-083
Resolution No. 14-972, authorizing Mayor Dave Gordon
the Mayor to execute a contract with | | City Administrator :
Parametrix to serve as the Survey glg” é‘;‘::‘e%feig; %‘“’ﬁ"‘;}ﬁmz
Consultant to the MDRT Com Dev/Nat Res — Aaron Nix
Finance — May Miller -
MDRT/Eco Dev — Andy Williamson X
Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note): Police — Chief Kiblinger
Fund Source: pass-through expense to Master Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Developer
Timeline: 2-year contract w/10 day call Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Agenda Placement: p Mayor [ ] Two Councilmembers [ | Committee Chair [ ] City Administrator

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-972, proposed contract, Resolution Nos. 12-820 & 14-951

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Funding Agreement approved in conjunction with the two Development Agreements (DAs) for the
approved Master Planned Developments (MPDs) of Lawson Hills and The Villages assumes that
consultants will be hired to augment City staff in their work as the MPDs are implemented over time.
There will be significant needs for professional land surveyor (PLS) assistance in the review of specific
implementing projects (primarily plats).

In July, the City advertised in the Journal of Commerce, City website and official newspaper to solicit
Statements of Qualifications from firms interested in performing this work. A total of 6 firms submitted
their qualifications; two were selected to be interviewed. The interview panel consisted of
MDRT/Economic Development Director, Public Works Director Seth Boettcher and Public Works
Administrative Assistant, Scott Hanis. The interview panel’s unanimous choice is to hire Parametrix.

Per the terms of the DAs, all costs for consultants must be paid for by the Master Developer (Yarrow
Bay). Consistent with past direction from the Council, the contract period is two years with a 10-day
termination provision is included, should the City decide to seek a different consultant or hire its own
staff at a future date.

FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the
contract will be reimbursed by the Developer.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-972, authorizing the
Mayor to execute a contract with Parametrix to serve as Survey Consultant to
the MDRT.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

September 18, 2014




RESOLUTION NO. 14-972

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH PARAMETRIX, INC. TO SERVE AS THE SURVEY
CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
TEAM

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
the Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011 the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD
Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement call for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City Staff and outside consultants;
and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide Surveying
Services to meet the needs of the MDRT;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a 2 year contract with Parametrix
Inc. to provide Surveyor Services for the MDRT, substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 18TH DAY OF
SEPTEMBER, 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



Exhibit A

CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR SURVEYING SERVICES
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
PARAMETRIX, INC.

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington
municipal corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Parametrix, Inc., (hereinafter the
“Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington

| PR PR TR [N P ....,.. ........ ~+ Aan40 2oth A~ Q:ta ANN Do~ ATA OQQTA
ljocdieu diu uviny UUbIIlb‘bb al 1Vi1Jy ov I'\VEIILIB OI: ouite 1uv, I"U)’dIIUIJ, VVI‘\ JOO I 4.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide
surveying services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, the City has funding available from YarrowBay and an approved
budget to fund the oversight, engineering review, inspections, development agreement
enforcement and assisting the City with the regulatory role; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant has agreed to provide the services described in
Exhibit A (scope of work) under the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS
I. Description of Work.

The Consultant shall be prepared to assist the City with all of the work described
in Exhibit A (General Scope of Work), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference. The municipal fiscal analysis services to be provided to the City by
the Consultant shall be identified in on-call task requests for each project task for which
the City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant
under this Agreement except pursuant to such an on call task request issued by the City
in the form attached as Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by this reference.
Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task request in
accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request
(Exhibit B).

Page 1


bmartinez
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A


Il. Payment

A. The City shall pay the Consultant an amount based on time and materials,
not to exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for the services described
in Section | herein. This is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement for the
work described in Exhibit A, and shall not be exceeded without the prior written
authorization of the City in the form of a negotiated and executed supplemental
agreement. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the City reserves the right to direct the
Consuiltant's compensated services under the time frame set forth in Section IV herein
before reaching the maximum amount. The progress billings for the work completed
shall be compensated according to the rates and charges identified in Exhibit C, which

is incorporated herein by this reference.

B. The Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to the City after such services
have been performed, and a final bill upon completion of all the services described in
this Agreement. The City shall pay the full amount of an invoice within sixty (60) days of
receipt. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the
Consultant of the same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay
that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and the parties shall immediately make every
effort to settle the disputed portion.

lll. Relationship of Parties

The parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be
created by this Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an
independently established trade which encompasses the specific service provided to
the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative or sub-consultant of the
Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, representative or
sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details
of the work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.
None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees including, but not limited to,
compensation, insurance, and unemployment insurance are available from the City to
the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-consultants of the Consultant. The
Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its
agents, employees, representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this
Agreement. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder.

IV. Duration of Work
The Consultant shall perform the work according to the City’'s direction, as
described in Section | of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect for a period

of two (2) years from the effective date, which is the date this Agreement is signed by
both parties.

Page 2



V. Termination

A. Termination of Agreement. The City may terminate this Agreement, for public
convenience, the Consultant's default, the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
Consultant's assignment for the benefit of creditors, at any time prior to completion of
the work described in Exhibit A. If delivered to Consultant in person, termination shall be
effective immediately upon the Consultant's receipt of the City's written notice or such
date stated in the City's notice, whichever is later.

B. Rights Upon Termination. in the event of termination, the City shall pay for all
services satisfactorily performed by the Consultant to the effective date of termination,
as described on a final invoice submitted to the City. Said amount shall not exceed the
amount in Section Il above. After termination, the City may take possession of all
records and data within the Consultant’s possession pertaining to this Agreement, which
records and data may be used by the City without restriction. Upon termination, the City
may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or
otherwise.

£
]

V1. Discrimination

In the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this Agreement or any
sub-contract hereunder, the Consultant, its Subcontractors, or any person acting on
behalf of such Consultant or sub-consultant shall not by reason of race, religion, color,
sex, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability,
discriminate against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to
which the employment relates.

VII. Indemnification

The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages,
losses or suits, including all legal Costs and attorneys' fees, arising out of or in
connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages
caused by the sole negligence of the City. The City's inspection or acceptance of any of
the Consultant's work when completed shall not be grounds to avoid any of these
covenants of indemnification.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is Subject to
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and Volunteers,
the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's
negligence.

IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S
WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY
FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER

Page 3



ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. THE
CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
SECTION DOES NOT INCLUDE, OR EXTEND TO. ANY CLAIMS BY THE
CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES DIRECTLY AGAINST THE CONSULTANT.

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

LV 1 | N TP
VIiil. INnsurdrice

A. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement,
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise
from or in connection with the Consultant's own work including the work of the
Consultant's agents, representatives, employees, sub-consultants or sub-contractors.

B. Before beginning work on the project described in this Agreement, the
Consultant shall provide evidence, in the form of a Certificate of Insurance, of the
following insurance coverage and limits (at a minimum):

1. Business auto coverage for any auto no less than a $1,000,000 each
accident limit, and

2. Commercial General Liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence with a $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but is not
limited to, contractual liability, products and completed operations, property
damage, and employers liability, and

3. Professional Liability insurance with no less than $1,000,000. All
policies and coverage's shall be on a claims made basis.

C. The Consultant is responsible for the payment of any deductible or self
insured retention that is required by any of the Consultant's insurance. If the City is
required to contribute to the deductible under any of the Consultant's insurance policies,
the Contractor shall reimburse the City the full amount of the deductible within 10
working days of the City's deductible payment.

D. The City of Black Diamond shall be named as an additional insured on the
Consultant's commercial general liability policy. This additional insured endorsement
shall be included with evidence of insurance in the form of a Certificate of Insurance for
coverage necessary in Section B. The City reserves the right to receive a certified and
complete copy of all of the Consultant's insurance policies.

E. Under this agreement, the Consultant’s insurance shall be considered primary
in the event of a loss, damage or suit. The City's own comprehensive general liability
policy will be considered excess coverage with respect to defense and indemnity of the
City only and no other party. Additionally, the Consultant's commercial general liability

Page 4



policy must provide cross-liability coverage as could be achieved under a standard ISO
separation of insured's clause.

F. The Consultant shall request from his insurer a modification of the ACORD
certificate to include language that prior written notification will be given to the City of
Black Diamond at least 30 days in advance of any cancellation, suspension or material
change in the Consultant's coverage.

The City warrants the accuracy of any information supplied by it to the Consultant for
the purpose of completion of the work under this Agreement. The parties agree that the
Consultant will notify the City of any inaccuracies in the information provided by the City
as may be discovered in the process of performing the work, and that the City is entitled
to rely upon any information supplied by the Consultant which results as a product of
this Agreement.

X. Ownership and Use of Records and Documents

Original documents, drawings, designs and reports developed under this Agreement
shall belong to and become the property of the City. All written information submitted by
the City to the Consultant in connection with the services performed by the Consultant
under this Agreement will be safeguarded by the Consultant to at least the same extent
as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business. If such
information is publicly available or is already in Consultant's possession or known to it,
or is rightfully obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no
responsibility for its disclosure, inadvertent or otherwise.

XI. City's Right of Inspection

Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control
and direct the performance ,and details of the work authorized under this Agreement,
the work must meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general
right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. The Consultant agrees
to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now
effective or become applicable within the terms of this Agreement to the Consultant's
business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement
or accruing out of the performance of such operations.

XIl. Consultant to Maintain Records to Support Independent Contractor Status

On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall
comply with all federal and state laws applicable to Independent contractors including,
but not limited to the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all
ltems of income and expenses of the Consultant's business, pursuant to the Revised
Code of Washington (RCW) Section 51.08.195, as required to show that the services

Page 5



performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer-
employee relationship between the parties which is subject to RCW Title 51, Industrial

Insurance.
XIlll. Work Performed at the Consultant’s Risk

The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the
safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work
hereunder and shalil utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. Ail work shaii be
done at the Consultant's own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss
of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held by the Consultant for use

In connection with the work.
XIV. Non-Waiver of Breach

The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and
agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or more
instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants,
agreements, or options and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

XV. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law

Should any dispute, misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the City of Black
Diamond shall determine the term or provision's true intent or meaning. The City of
Black Diamond shall also decide all questions which may arise between the parties
relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance
hereunder.

If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions of
this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor or Administrator's determination
in a reasonable time, or if the Consultant does not agree with the City's decision on the
disputed matter, jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in King County
Superior Court, King County, Washington. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The non-prevailing
party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay the other parties'
expenses and reasonable attorney's fees.

XVI. Written Notice

All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the
addresses listed on the signature page of the agreement, unless notified to the contrary.
Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective upon
the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given
if sent to the addressee at the address stated below:

Page 6



CONSULTANT: CITY:

Attn: Austin R. Fisher, P.E. Attn: Andrew Williamson
Parametrix, Inc. City of Black Diamond
1019 39" Avenue SE, Suite 100 P.O. Box 599 |
Puyallup, WA 98374 24301 Roberts Drive

Black Diamond, WA 98010
With a copy to the
address.

XVIl. Assignment

Any assignment of this Agreement by the Consultant without the written consent of the
City shall be void. If the City shall give its consent to any assignment, this paragraph
shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall be made without
the City's consent.

XVIIl. Modification and Severability

No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and
the Consultant.

The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. If any provision of this
Agreement is for any reasons held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionatity shall not affect the validity
or constitutionality of any other provision.

XIX. Entire Agreement

The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with Exhibit A, B and C
attached hereto. shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other
representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as
entering into or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement
or the Agreement documents. The entire agreement between the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereunder is contained in this Agreement and any Exhibits attached
hereto, which may or may not have been executed prior to the execution of this
Agreement. All of the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement and
form the Agreement document as fully as if the same were set forth herein. Should any
language in Exhibits, A, B and C to this Agreement conflict with any language contained
in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail.

Page 7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this

day of , 2014.
CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
By: By:
Daniel L. McReynoids Dave Gordon, Mayor

Its: President

Consultant: Parametrix, Inc.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol A. Morris
City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:

Brenda Martinez
City Clerk

Page 8



EXHIBIT A

Master Development Review Team
Scope of Survey Work

Primary Task Responsibilities

e Land Use Application Review — Assuring Submittals Meet State and Local Survey Related
Requirements and Compliance with Master Development Agreements

Road Vacations and Dedications

Wetland Buffer Compliance

Rarmndary T ina Adingtmenta
Louiiidly Lilic AGjusSuiiciing

Final Plats

Short Plats

Binding Site Plans
Condominium Plats
Legal Descriptions

vV VYV YV VY VY

o MDR Team Participation, Meetings, Reports

Supplemental Task Responsibilities

o  Horizontal and Vertical Control Verification
» Establish Network
» Benchmarks
» Monument Preservation and Perpetuation
> DNR Required Monument Destruction Permits

e Boundary
> Section Subdivision
> Deed Interpretation
> Historical Ownership — Chain of Title
» Riparian Rights
> Railroad Easements and ROW
e Right of Way

» Determination and Mapping ROW, Easements, Tracts, etc.
> ROW Acquisition Assistance

e Construction Support
» Review of Plans — Constructibility

e Mapping
» Topographic Mapping and Base Map
» High Definition — 3D Scanning
> FEMA Elevation Certificates
» Wetland Mapping and Buffer Establishment

City of Black Diamond 274-3043-013
Scope of Survey Work 1 June 2012



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:

Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Fax: 360-886-2592

Consultant Project No.:
Consultant Contact Name:

Consultant Phone:

Consultant Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:

City of Black Diamond:
Written Name Title
Signature Date
Consultant:
Written Name Title
Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notify the City should additional funds be necessary to complete
the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence until written notification is received from

the City.



EXHIBITC
CITY OF BELACK DIAMOND
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM
SURVEY BILLING RATE SCHEDULE

Classification Hourly Billing Rate
Principal $215.00
Survey Division Manager $175.00
Survey Project Manager $145.00
Survey Office Technician $85.00 - $104.00
Survey CADD Technician $72.00 - $85.00
Field Survey Party Chief $98.00 - $105.00
Field Survey Crew Member $65.00 - $78.00
Administrative Project Support $80.00
Expert Witness Testimony $250.00

Direct project expenses and reproduction costs are billed at cost plus 15%
Mileage expense is billed at current approved IRS mileage rate

Lodging and PerDiem costs are billed at current GSA rates

Survey equipment except laser scanner billed at $150/day

Laser Scanner is billed at $97.40/hour

Prevailing Wage Rates apply to construction surveying on all Public Works
projects (See Washington State Prevailing Wage Schedule for each County)

Parametrix
Billing Rate Schedule



RESCLUTION NO. 12-820

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT

1AHTTLE DADARATTDIIV s ¥ o [ad ot o}V { Fe3 B W imd V3

WiTH PARAMETRIX TGO SERVE AS THE SURVEY

CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
TEAM

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
The Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered info a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD
Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement calls for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team {MDRT), to consist of City staff and outside consultants:

and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources nor the experiise fo
provide survey review services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, private firms providing survey review services wera invited to submit
Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, a panel consisting of staff and one City Council member reviewed the

submittals, subsequently interviewed three firms and then recommended Parametrix as
the firm most capable of providing survey review services as desired;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Parametrix to
provide survey review services for the MDRT.

Page 1 of 2



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOCND,
WASHINGTON, AT A SPECIAL MEETING THEREOF, THIS 9TH DAY OF JULY, 2012

CITY OF BLACK BIAMOND:
%Jﬂb 4 @ Z:Ll—LL/
Rebecca Olness, Mayor
Attest:
Bunde It athney

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk ¢

Page2 of 2



EX_!M. b (+ /ér
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement”), for reference purposes
only, is dated M’fz [0, 2012 and is entered into by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City™)

Physical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive

Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Phone: 360-886-5700 Fax : 360-886-2592

and

Parametrix (“Consultant”)
1019 39™ Avenue SE, Suite 100

Puyallup, WA 98374

Contact: Kathleen Cassou Phone: 253-604-6600 Faxz 253-604-6799
TaxId No.: 91-0914810

for non-exclusive on-call professional services in connection with the following project:

Master Development Sutvey Review Services on a Task Order basis (the “Project™).

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1 Consultant has been retained by the City to provide professional survey on-call
services as generally described in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "A",
The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Work nor shall the
Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that provided in this Agreement
without the prior written authorization of the City.

1.2 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work, Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

13 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agreement and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and iis
subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in & manner consistent with that degree
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in

similar circumstances.

Professional Services Agreement

Page | of 11



2. Schedule of Work

2.1 The City will issue on on-~call task request for each project task for which the City
requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant under this Agreement
except pursuant to such an on-call task request issued by the City in the form attached as
Exhibit “B.” Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task request in
accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request (the “Task

Scope of Work™).

22  Consultant will work within the project schedule set forth in the on-call task
request and will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that it, and its subconsultants,
will have adequate staffing at all times in order to complete the Scope of Work in a timely
manner. If factors beyond Consultant's control that could not have been reasonably foreseen as
of the date of this Agreement cause delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to
determine whether an extension is appropriate. The Consultant shall provide the City with
written notice of any delay, or potential delay, that may trigger the need for a time extension
within 3 business days after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

23  Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon receipt of a signed task
order. ‘

3. Compensation

3.1  Rates. Compensation for the services provided pursuant fo each on-call task
request shall be on a time and materials basis according to the list of billing rates and
reimbursable expenses aftached hereto as Exhibit “C”. Consultant may adjust the billing rates
and reimbursable expenses once each calendar year on or after January 1st by providing the City
with written notice of the adjusted rates and expenses no less than (30) thirty days prior to the
effective date of such adjustment. The billing rates and reimbursable expenses for on-call task
orders issued prior to receipt of written notice of the rate/expense adjustment by the City shall
not be affected by the adjustment.

3.2 Other. In the event that after commencement of work, the Consultant anticipates
that the work for an on-call task request will exceed the intial amount authorized, Consultant
shall promptly notify the City and provide the City with whatever documents or information is
necessary to request approval of any amounts in excess thereof.

4, Payment

4.1 Consulfant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly inveices, in a format acceptable ta the City for work performed to

the date of the invoice.

4,2 All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

Professional Serviees Agreement

Page2 of 11



43  Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining fo this Agreement
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement Consultant shall make copies available to

the City on request.

44  If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement,
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement

5. Discrimination and Compliance with Laws

5.1  Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disabilify, or other circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification,

5.2 Consultani and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

5.3 Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediaie cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the

City.

6. Suspension and Termination of Acreement

6.1  The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10) days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, ot other material
prepared by Consuliant pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted fo the City, In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such analyses and records as may be necessary to place its files in order. Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of

suspension or termination.

6.2  Any notice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anticipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement

without delay when the suspension period ends.

7. Standard of Care

7.1  Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately

Professional Services Agreement

Page 3 of 11



accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities, Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similar circumstances. Consultant understands and agrees that the services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement ars for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no
third party shall have authority to authorize, approve, direct or control any of the services
rendered to the City pursuant o this Agreement.

8. Ownership of Work Product

8.1 Owmership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not cormpleted, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement. Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

8.2  The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant.

83  Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City see fit,
including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9, Indemnification/Hold Harmless

9.1  Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and agents harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attorney fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or
omissions of Consultant or its subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. PROVIDED, HOWEVER,
THAT IF ANY SUCH CLAIMS, INJURIES, DAMAGES, LOSSES OR SUITS RESULT
FROM THE CONCURRENT NEGLIGENCE OF CONSULTANT AND THE CITY, IT IS
EXPRESSLY AGREED THAT CONSULTANT’S OBLIGATIONS AND INDEMNITY
UNDER THIS PARAGRAPH SHALIL, BE EFFECTIVE ONLY TC THE EXTENT OF
CONSULTANT’S NEGLIGENCE.

106. Insurance
10.1  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and

shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to

Professional Services Agreement

Paged of 11



property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

102 Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
insurance:

a. Auntomobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISQ) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed fo provide comtractual liability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall
cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractots, personal injury, and
adverfising injury. This insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
Jlaws of the State of Washington.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

103 The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-a-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

b. Consuliant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

104  The City shall be named as an additional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

10,5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current AM. Best rating of not less
than A:VIL

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not less than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work,
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy
Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consuliant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10} days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance written on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services to be performed. It shall be a material breach of this

Professional Services Agreement

Page Sof 11



Agreement for Consultant to fail to procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance to the City as provided for in this Agreement,

11.  Assigning or Subcontracting

11.I Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior writien consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

12. Independent Contractor

12.1  Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during fthe term of
this Agreement, independent contractors.

13.  Notice

13.1  All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when personally delivered, when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Chris Bacha,
City Attorney
Kenyon Disend, PLLC
11 Front Street South
Issaquah, WA 98027
Fax: 425-392-7071

Consultant; Kaihleen Cassou
Parametrix, Inc.
1019 39 Ave SE, Suite 100
Puyallup, WA 98374
Fax: 253-604-6799

14.  Disputes

141 Any action for claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shaH be in King County Superior
Court, Kent, Washington.

Professional Services Agreement

Page Gof 11



15. Attorney Fees

15.1 In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agresment, the
substantially prevailing party shall be enfitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reasonable attorney fees from the other party.

16. General Adminisiration and Mapagement on Behalf of the City

16,1 The City Administrator for the City, or his/her designee(the contract
Administrator) shall review and approve Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement
and shall have primary responsibility for overseeing and approving work or services to be
performed by Consultant. Consultant understands and agrees that any and all work to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement must be approved in advance by the contract
Administrator. No third party, including the project applicant, shail have any ditect contiol or
influence over the services performed under this Contract,

17.  Extent of Agreement/Modification

17.1  This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. After City Council approval, this
Agreement shall be in effect as of June 14, 2012, and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2014,
unless sooner terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement may only be amended, modified,
or added to by written instrument properly signed by both parties. The parties acknowledge the
general contract rule that a clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting oral modifications
is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure certainty as to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties waive this general contract rule.

18.  Contliet of Interest; Non-Collusion

18.1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
or indirect, in this Contract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations. The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and obligations hereunder. The
contractor’s officers, employees or agents shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or
anything of monetary value from the project applicant or any affiliate or agent of the project

applicant.

182 The Consultant warrants and represents that the Consultant has not, nor has any
other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Consultant, entered into or
offered fo enter into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person or entity to
receive or pay, and that he has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration

Professional Services Agreement

Page 7of 11



for the execution of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and
conditions hereof.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONSULTANT
N Uo mf\ ;'//.mxi NS
By: _HKadua (At - By: /)

Rebecca Olness Printed Name: Kathleen Cassou
Its: Mayor Its: Survey Manager
Date: 7//0 /J.L Date: é/lZ//Z..
Aftest:

MZMMM

Brenda L. Martinez
City Clerk

Professional Services Agreement

Page B of 11



EXHIBIT A

Master Develepment Review Team
Scope of Survey Work

Primary Task Respensibilities
» Land Use Application Review — Assuring Submittals Meet State and Local Survey Related
Requirements and Compliance with Master Development Agreements
Road Vacations and Dedications

»

> Woetland Buffer Compliance
» Boundary Line Adjustments
» Final Plats

» Short Plats

> Binding Site Plans

» Condominium Plats

> Legal Descriptions

¢ MDR Team Participation, Meetings, Reports

Sunplemental Task Responsibilities

* Horizontal and Vertical Control Verification
» Establish Network
» Benchmarks
> Monument Preservation and Perpetuation
> DNR Required Monument Destruction Permits

e Boundary
» Section Subdivision
> Deed Interpretation
» Historical Ownership — Chain of Title
» Riparian Rights
» Railroad Easements and ROW

s Right of Way
> Determination and Mapping ROW, Easements, Tracts, etc.

> ROW Acquisition Assistance

» Construction Support
> Review of Plans - Constructibility

e Mapping
» Topographic Mapping and Base Map
» High Definition — 3D Scanning
» FEMA Elevation Certificates
> Wetland Mapping and Buffer Establishment

274-3043-043

City of Black Diamond
f e 2012

Scope af Survey Work



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:
Phone: 360-886-5700

Fax: 360-886-2592

Task Name:
Consultant Project No.:
Consultant Contact Name:

PRPRET! RS =]

fo - y | N
LUIDUILAl IV VIS,

Consuitant Fax;

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:
City of Black Diamond:

Written Name Title
Signature Date
Consultant:
Whitten Name Title
Signature Date

*Gosts are billed on a time and materials basls, the Consultant shall netify the Gity should additional funds be nacessary to complete
the task order. Additional wark beyond that which is erdered by the City shall not cammence until written notification is received fram

the City.




EXHIBITC
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM
SURVEY BILLING RATE SCHEDULE

Classification Hourly Billing Rate
Principal $215.00
Survey Division Manager $175.00
Survey Project Manager $145.00
Survey Office Technician- $85.00 - $104.00
Survey CADD Technician $72.00- $85.00
Field Survey Party Chief $98.00 - $105.00
Field Survey Crew Member $65.00- $78.00
Administrative Project Support $80.00
Expert Witness Testimony $250.00

Direct project expenses and reproduction costs are bilied at cost pius 15%
Mileage expense is billed at current approved IRS mileage rate

Lodging and PerDiem costs are billed at current GSA rates

Survey equipment except laser scanner billed at $150/day

Laser Scanner is billed at $87.40/hour

Prevailing Wage Rates apply fo construction surveying on all Public Works
projects {See Washington State Prevailing Wage Schedule for each County)

Parametrix
Bifling Rate Schedule



RESOLUTION NO. 14-951

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST
ADDENDUM TO THE PARAMETRIX, INC. CONTRACT TO
SERVE AS THE SURVEYING CONSULTANT TO THE
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract
via Resolution No. 12-820 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultanis and the

execution of new contracts with the City;
WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,

IS ¥¥ ) Sew e kR

WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized {c execute the first addendum to the
Parametrix, Inc. contract substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014,

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

ﬂM@/rwx—«-— /Qﬂkim_

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Attest:

Ponde LA onhres

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk ¢




FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
Parametrix, Inc.

FAam EelEN e g g TR (FNA APURIYT O 1 .L_ a1 [ g P ¥ Sy B WS SN Y BY
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Services Coniract via Resolution

No. 12-820 executed between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal
corporation (hereinafier the "City"), and Paramelrix {(hersinafter the “Consultant,”} a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and deing
business at 1019 — 38" Avenue S.E., Suite 100, Puyallup, WA 98374.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2012, the Consultant and the City entered into a contract
for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like fo extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the

execution of new contracts with the City;

WHEREAS, the Consuitant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOW, THEREFQORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

Section 1. No Change fo Terms and Conditions. With the exception of the
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.

Section 2. New Expiration Date. The parties agree fo extend the expiration date
of the Contract June 30, 2014 io September 30, 2014.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th
day of June, 2014.

Page 1



CONSULTANT CiTY OF BLACK DIAMOND

By =& : BYL_@A&@W
Katpleen Cassou Dave Gordon, Mayor
fts! Survey Manager

Consultant: Parametrix Inc.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol L. Morris, City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:

Gungh. 2 I atire

Brenda Martinez, City Clerk

Page 2



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

Post Office Box 599
AGENDA BILL Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: | Agenda Date: September 18, 2014 AB14-084
Resolution No. 14-973, authorizing Mayor Dave Gordon

the Mayor to execute a contract with | | City Administrator

Parametrix to serve as the Traffic ity Attorney Caro i
City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

M oder - £V T AL Aeimi o
\/.ll,y ﬂLLUlLlU_y CalUul tYIUILIS
Engineering Consultant to the -
g g Com Dev/Nat Res — Aaron Nix

MDRT Finance ~ May Miller
MDRT/Eco Dev — Andy Williamson X
Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note): Police — Chief Kiblinger
Fund Source: pass-through expense to Master Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Developer
Timeline: 2-year contract w/10 day call Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Agenda Placement: D Mayor [ | Two Councilmembers [ | Committee Chair [ | City Administrator

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-973, proposed contract , Resolution Nos. 12-791 & 14-952

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Funding Agreement approved in conjunction with the two Development Agreements (DAs) for the
approved Master Planned Developments (MPDs) of Lawson Hills and The Villages assumes that
consultants will be hired to augment City staff in their work as the MPDS are implemented over time.
There will be significant needs for traffic engineering assistance to help with review of specific
implementing projects (plats, multifamily housing, commercial projects), plus the periodic running of the
new traffic model at the 850 dwelling unit and subsequent dates.

The City advertised in the Journal of Commerce, City website and official newspaper to solicit
Statements of Qualifications from firms interested in performing this work. Only four firms submitted
their qualifications; two were interviewed. The interview panel consisted of Public Works Director Seth
Boettcher, MDRT/Economic Development Director Andrew Williamson, Administrative Assistant, Scott
Hanis. The unanimous choice of the interview panel was to hire Parametrix, which prepared the EIS
documents for the MPDs and currently provides on-call traffic consultant work for the remainder of the
City.

Per the terms of the DAs, all costs for consultants must be paid for by the Master Developer (Yarrow
Bay). Since traffic engineering work will be continually required during MPD implementation, a contract
end date is not specified. However, a 60-day termination provision is included, should the City decide to
seek a different consultant or hire its own staff at a future date.

FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the
contract will be reimbursed by the Developer.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-973, authorizing the
Mayor to execute a contract with Parametrix to serve as Traffic Engineering
Consultant to the MDRT.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

September 18, 2014




RESOLUTION NO. 14-973

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH PARAMETRIX, INC. TO SERVE AS THE TRAFFIC
ENGINEERING CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
the Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011 the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD
Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement call for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City Staff and outside consultants;
and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide Traffic
Engineering Services to meet the needs of the MDRT;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a 2 year contract with Parametrix
Inc. to provide Traffic Engineering Services for the MDRT, substantially in the form
attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 18TH DAY OF
SEPTEMBER, 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



Exhibit

CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
PARAMETRIX, INC. (Traffic)

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington
municipal corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and PARAMETRIX, INC., (hereinafter the
“Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington,
located and doing business at 1019 — 39™" Avenue S.E., Suite 100, Puyallup, WA

NnON=7 4

98374.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City does not have sufficient staff resources to provide municipal
fiscal analysis services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, the City has funding available from Yarrow Bay and an approved
budget to fund the oversight, engineering review, inspections, development agreement,
enforcement and to assist the City with its regulatory role; and

WHEREAS, the City has advertised for general traffic engineering services and
selected Parametrix, Inc., as the best qualified consultant; and

WHEREAS, the City anticipates the need to process permits, oversee public
construction work and coordinate activities with Yarrow Bay to increase over the next
year;

WHEREAS, the Consultant has agreed to provide the services described in
Exhibit A (scope of work) under the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS
I. Description of Work.

The Consultant shall be prepared to assist the City with all of the work described
in Exhibit A (General Scope of Work), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference. The services to be provided to the City by the Consultant shall be
identified in on-call task requests for each project task for which the City requires
Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant under this Agreement
except pursuant to such an on call task request issued by the City in the form attached
as Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by this reference. Consultant shall perform
the services described in the on-call task request in accordance with the schedule and
scope of work set forth in the on-call task request (Exhibit B).

Page 1

A


bmartinez
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A


Il. Payment

A. The City shall pay the Consultant an amount based on time and materials,
not to exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for the services described
in Section | herein. This is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement for the
work described in Exhibit A, and shall not be exceeded without the prior written
authorization of the City in the form of a negotiated and executed supplemental
agreement. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the City reserves the right to direct the
Consultant's compensated services under the time frame set forth in Section IV herein
before reaching the maximum amount. The progress billings for the work completed
shall be compensated according to the rates and charges identified in Exhibit C, which

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

B. The Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to the City after such services
have been performed, and a final bill upon completion of all the services described in
this Agreement. The City shall pay the full amount of an invoice within sixty (60) days of
receipt. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the
Consultant of the same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay
that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and the parties shall immediately make every
effort to settle the disputed portion.

lll. Relationship of Parties

The parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be
created by this Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an
independently established trade which encompasses the specific service provided to
the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative or sub-consultant of the
Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, representative or
sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details
of the work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.
None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees including, but not limited to,
compensation, insurance, and unemployment insurance are available from the City to
the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-consultants of the Consultant. The
Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its
agents, employees, representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this
Agreement. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder.

IV. Duration of Work
The Consultant shall perform the work according to the City’s direction, as
described in Section | of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect for a period

of two (2) years from the effective date, which is the date this Agreement is signed by
both parties.

Page 2



V. Termination

A. Termination of Agreement. The City may terminate this Agreement, for public
convenience, the Consultant's default, the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
Consultant's assignment for the benefit of creditors, at any time prior to completion of
the work described in Exhibit A. If delivered to Consultant in person, termination shall be
effective immediately upon the Consultant's receipt of the City's written notice or such
date stated in the City's notice, whichever is iater.

B. Rights Upon Termination. In the event of termination, the City shall pay for all
services satisfactorily performed by the Consultant to the effective date of termination,
as described on a final invoice submitted to the City. Said amount shall not exceed the
amount in Section Il above. After termination, the City may take possession of all
records and data within the Consultant’s possession pertaining to this Agreement, which
records and data may be used by the City without restriction. Upon termination, the City
may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or
otherwise.

V1. Discrimination

In the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this Agreement or any
sub-contract hereunder, the Consultant, its Subcontractors, or any person acting on
behalf of such Consultant or sub-consultant shall not by reason of race, religion, color,
sex, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability,
discriminate against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to
which the employment relates.

VIl. Indemnificaticn

The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages,
losses or suits, including all legal Costs and attorneys' fees, arising out of or in
connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages
caused by the sole negligence of the City. The City's inspection or acceptance of any of
the Consultant's work when completed shall not be grounds to avoid any of these
covenants of indemnification.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and Volunteers,
the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's
negligence.

Page 3



IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S
WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY
FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. THE
CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
SECTION DOES NOT INCLUDE, OR EXTEND TO. ANY CLAIMS BY THE
CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES DIRECTLY AGAINST THE CONSULTANT.

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

VIII. Insurance

A. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement,
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise
from or in connection with the Consultant's own work including the work of the
Consultant's agents, representatives, employees, sub-consultants or sub-contractors.

B. Before beginning work on the project described in this Agreement, the
Consultant shall provide evidence, in the form of a Certificate of Insurance, of the
following insurance coverage and limits (at a minimum):

1. Business auto coverage for any auto no less than a $1,000,000 each
accident limit, and

2. Commercial General Liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence with a $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but is not
limited to, contractual liability, products and completed operations, property
damage, and employers liability, and

3. Professional Liability insurance with no less than $1,000,000. All
policies and coverage's shall be on a claims made basis.

C. The Consultant is responsible for the payment of any deductible or self
insured retention that is required by any of the Consultant's insurance. If the City is
required to contribute to the deductible under any of the Consultant's insurance policies,
the Contractor shall reimburse the City the full amount of the deductible within 10
working days of the City's deductible payment.

D. The City of Black Diamond shall be named as an additional insured on the
Consultant's commercial general liability policy. This additional insured endorsement
shall be included with evidence of insurance in the form of a Certificate of Insurance for
coverage necessary in Section B. The City reserves the right to receive a certified and
complete copy of all of the Consultant's insurance policies.

Page 4



E. Under this agreement, the Consultant's insurance shall be considered primary
in the event of a loss, damage or suit. The City's own comprehensive general liability
policy will be considered excess coverage with respect to defense and indemnity of the
City only and no other party. Additionally, the Consultant's commercial general liability
policy must provide cross-liability coverage as could be achieved under a standard I1ISO
separation of insured's clause.

F. The Consultant shall request from his insurer a modification of the ACORD
certificate to inciude language that prior written notification wiil be given to the City of
Black Diamond at least 30 days in advance of any cancellation, suspension or material
change in the Consultant's coverage.

IX. Exchange of Information

The City warrants the accuracy of any information supplied by it to the Consultant for
the purpose of completion of the work under this Agreement. The parties agree that the
Consultant will notify the City of any inaccuracies in the information provided by the City
as may be discovered in the process of performing the work, and that the City is entitled
to rely upon any information supplied by the Consultant which results as a product of
this Agreement.

X. Ownership and Use of Records and Documents

Original documents, drawings, designs and reports developed under this Agreement
shall belong to and become the property of the City. All written information submitted by
the City to the Consultant in connection with the services performed by the Consultant
under this Agreement will be safeguarded by the Consultant to at least the same extent
as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business. If such
information is publicly available or is already in Consultant's possession or known to it,
or is rightfully obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no
responsibility for its disclosure, inadvertent or otherwise.

Xl. City's Right of Inspection

Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control
and direct the performance ,and details of the work authorized under this Agreement,
the work must meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general
right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. The Consultant agrees
to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now
effective or become applicable within the terms of this Agreement to the Consultant's
business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement
or accruing out of the performance of such operations.

Page 5



Xll. Consultant to Maintain Records to Support Independent Contractor Status

On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall
comply with all federal and state laws applicable to Independent contractors including,
but not limited to the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all
ltems of income and expenses of the Consultant's business, pursuant to the Revised
Code of Washington (RCW) Section 51.08.195, as required to show that the services
performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer-
employee relationship between the parties which is subject to RCW Title 51, industrial
Insurance.

XIl. Work Performed at the Consultant’s Risk

The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the
safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work
hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. All work shall be
done at the Consultant's own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss
of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held by the Consultant for use
In connection with the work.

X1IV. Non-Waiver of Breach

The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and
agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or more
instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants,
agreements, or options and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

XV. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law

Should any dispute, misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the City of Black
Diamond shall determine the term or provision's true intent or meaning. The City of
Black Diamond shall also decide all questions which may arise between the parties
relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance
hereunder.

if any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions of
this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor or Administrator's determination
in a reasonable time, or if the Consultant does not agree with the City's decision on the
disputed matter, jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in King County
Superior Court, King County, Washington. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The non-prevailing
party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay the other parties'
expenses and reasonable attorney's fees.

Page 6



XVLI. Written Notice

All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the
addresses listed on the signature page of the agreement, unless notified to the contrary.
Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective upon
the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given
if sent to the addressee at the address stated below:

CONSULTANT: CITY:

Attn: Austin R. Fisher, P.E. Aftn: Andrew Williamson
Parametrix, Inc. City of Black Diamond
1019 — 39" Avenue S.E., Suite 100 P.O. Box 599

Puyallup, WA 98374 24301 Roberts Drive

Black Diamond, WA 98010

With a copy to the “City Clerk” at the same
address.

XVII. Assignment

Any assignment of this Agreement by the Consultant without the written consent of the
City shall be void. If the City shall give its consent to any assignment, this paragraph
shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall be made without
the City's consent.

XVIIl. Modification and Severability

No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding uniess in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and
the Consultant.

The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. If any provision of this
Agreement is for any reasons held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity
or constitutionality of any other provision.

XIX. Entire Agreement

The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with Exhibits A, B and C
attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other
representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as
entering into or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement
or the Agreement documents. The entire agreement between the parties with respect to

Page 7



the subject matter hereunder is contained in this Agreement and Exhibits A, B and C
attached hereto, which may or may not have been executed prior to the execution of
this Agreement. All of the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement
and form the Agreement document as fully as if the same were set forth herein. Should
any language in any of the Exhibits to this Agreement conflict with any language
contained in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this __ day of

NNA A

, 2U14.
CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
By: By:

Daniel L. McReynolds Dave Gordon, Mayor

Its: President

Consultant: PARAMETRIX,
INC.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol Morris, City Attorney

ATTEST:

Brenda Martinez, City Clerk

Page 8



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Page 9



Exhibit A
Master Development Review Team

Traffic and Transportation Review Services General Scope of Services

Traffic Impact Study review and findings

Traffic Monitoring Report review and findings
Traffic safety studies

Travel demand forecasting and modeling

Traffic operations modeling

Intersection level of service analysis

Roundabout evaluation

Design concept review

Sight distance evaluation

Pedestrian and bicycle facility planning and design
Transit facility planning and design

Parking management and guidelines

Code language and design standards review
Traffic calming strategies review

Coordination with City staff

Attendance at City Council or public meetings or hearings



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:

Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Fax: 360-886-2592

Consultant Project No.:
Consultant Contact Name:

Consultant Phone:

Consultant Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:
City of Black Diamond:

Written Name Title
Signature Date
Consultant:
Written Name Title
Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notify the City should additional funds be necessary to complete
the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence until written notification is received from

the City.




Parametrix Maximum Allowable Rates

Exhibit C

Classification Grade Ra‘te. for Classification Grade Ra_te. for
Billing Billing
GADD Operator | 8 $70 Jr. Planner 8/9 $75
CADD Operator Il 9/10 $85 Planner | 10 $90
CADD Operator [li 11 $115 Planner Il 11 $100
CADD Tech Lead 12 $120 Planner Il 12/13 $120
CADD Supervisor 12 $110 Planner IV 14 $130
CADD Services Manager 14 $125 Sr. Planner 15 $150
Sr. Planner 16 $170
Designer | 10 $100 Sr. Planner 17 $190
Designer 1l 1 $105
Designer !lI 12 $120 Jr. Scientist/Biologist 8 $75
Designer il 13 $135 Scientist/Biologist | 10 $85
Designer IV 14 $145 Scientist/Biologist Il 11 $110
Sr. Designer 15 $150 Scientist/Biologist Il 12 $115
Sr. Designer 16/17 $165 Scientist/Biologist Iil 13 $120
Scientist/Biologist IV 14 $135
Engineering Technician | 8 $75 Sr. Scientist/Biologist 15 $150
Engineering Technician II 9 $85 Sr. Scientist/Biologist 16 $165
Engineer | 10 $95 Sr. Scientist/Biologist 17 $175
Engineer Il 11 $100
Engineer Ill 12 $115 Environmental Technician | 8 $85
Engineer Hl 13 $125 Environmental Technician Il 9 $90
Engineer IV 14 $135 Environmental Technician IIl 10 $100
Sr. Engineer 15 $150
Sr. Engineer 16 $170 Jr. Toxicologist 8 $75
Sr. Engineer 17 $190 Toxicologist | 10 $95
Sr. Consultant 18 $235 Toxicologist 1 11 $105
Sr. Consultant 19 $250 Toxicologist I 12/13 $115
Toxicologist IV 14 $140
Jr. Surveyor 8 $70 Sr. Toxicologist 15/16 $165
Surveyor | 9 $80 St. Toxicologist 17 $210
Surveyor II 10 $85
Surveyor lll 11 $110 Hydrogeologist | 10 $95
Sr. Surveyor 12 $115 Hydrogeologist 1l 11 $100
Sr. Surveyor 13 $140 Hydrogeologist Il 12/13 $115
Survey Supervisor 14 $145 Hydrogeologist IV 14 $115
Regional Surveyor 18 $185 Sr. Hydrogeologist 15 $150
Sr. Hydrogeologist 16 $165
Canstruction Technician | 8/9 $85 Sr. Hydrogeologist 17 $170
Construction Technician Il 10 $90
Construction Technician lil 11 $120 GIS Technician 9/10 $85
Construction Technician IV 12 $135 Sr. GIS Analyst 1 $95
Construction Manager | 11 $110
Construction Manager Il 12 $125 Graphic Artist 9 $80
Construction Manager Il 13 $135 Sr. Graphic Artist 10 $110
Construction Manager IV 14 $145
Sr. Construction Manager 15 $150 Technical Aide 7 $70
Sr. Construction Manager 16 $170 Sr. Technical Aide 8 $75
Sr. Construction Manager 17 $175 Project Coordinator 9 $90
Site Construction Manager 18 $180 Sr. Project Coordinator 10 $95
Project Controls Specialist 11 $100
Operations Manager 16 $150 Project Coordination Supervisor 11 $100
Operations Manager 17 $170
Operations Manager 18 $180 Project Accountant 8 $80
Division Manager 16 $165 Project Accountant 9 $85
Division Manager 17 $205 Sr. Project Accountant 10 $95
Division Manager 18/19 $235 Sr. Accounting Specialist 10 $100
Regional Division Manager 18/19 $240 Sr. Coniract Administrator 11 $115
Program Manager 18/19 $250
Program Manager 20 $260 Library Specialist 9 $80
Principal Consultant 19 $270 Librarian 11 $85
Principal Consultant 20 $295 Information Resource Manager 13 $125
Project Delivery Officer 19 $235 LAN Admin | 11 $100
Principal 19/20 $295 LAN Admin Il 12 $110
Sr. LAN Admin 13 $105
Word Processor 7 $65 Office Clerk 4 $55
Sr. Word Processor 8 $75 Receptionist 6 $60
Word Processing Specialist 9 $95 Admin Assistant 6/7 $65
Technical Editor 10 $105 Sr Admin Assistant 8 $70
Word Proc Mgr/Editor 11 $110 Sr Admin Assistant 9 $90
Production Manager 12 $130 Office Administrator 10 $95
Sr. Office Administrator 11 $110
Expert Witness $250 Office Administrative Manager 12-14 $130
Value Engineering $250

Direct project expenses and reproduction costs are billed at cost plus 15%
Public hearing testimony services are billed at hourly rates plus 30%

ExCMaxAllowRates032712.xls

March 27, 2012



RESOLUTION NO. 12-791

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH PARAMETRIX TO SERVE AS THE TRAFFIC
ENGINEERING CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM.

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
The Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered info a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD

Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement calls for the esfablishment of a Master
Development Review Team {(MDRT), to consist of City staff and outside consultants;

and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on staff the full range of expertise to provide traffic
engineering to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, private firms providing fraffic engineering services were invited to submit
Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, after the three firms that submitted their qualifications were interviewed by
a panel consisting of staff and one City Council member, the panel unanimously
recommended Paramefrix as the firm most capable of providing traffic engineering
services as desired;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized fo execute a contract with Parametrix to
provide ftraffic engineering services for the MDRT, substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit A.



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 18" DAY OF APRIL,

2012,
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Attest:

Pund. L Vo ey

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk




CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement”), for reference purposes
only, is dated, April 1 1% 2012 and is entered into by and between ’

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City™}
Physical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive

Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Andrew Williamson Phone: 360-886-5700 Fax: 360-886-2592
and

Parametrix, Inc.

1019 39" Avenue SE, Suite 100

Puyallup, WA 98374

Contact: Dan McReynolds Phone: 253-604-6600 Fax: 253-604-6799

Tax ID No.: 91-0914810

For non-exclusive on-call professional services for the City of Black Diamond.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1 Consultant has been retained by the City to provide professional traffic analysis
on-call services generally described in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement as Exhibit
"A." The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Work nor shall the
Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that provided in this Agreement
without the prior written authorization of the City,

1.2 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

1.3 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite raining, skill, and experience necessaty
to provide the services required by this Agreemeunt and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its
subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in
similar circumstances.

Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Inc,

Page 1 of 8

+



2. Schednle of Work

2.1  The City will issue an on on-call task request for each project task for which the
City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant under this
Agreement except pursuant to such an on-call fask request issued by the City in the form
attached as Exhibit "B." Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task
request in accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request.

2.2  Time is of the essence as to the work provided in the Scope of Work. Consultant
will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that it, and its subconsultants, will have
adequate staffing at all times in order to complete the Scope of Work in a timely manner. If
factors beyond Consultant's control that could not have been reasonably foreseen as of the date
of this Agreement cause delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether
an extension is appropriate. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any
delay, or potential delay, that may trigger the need for a time extension within 3 business days
after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

23  Consultant is avthorized to proceed with services upon execution of this
agreement.

3. Compensation

C 3.1  Rates. Compensation for the services provided pursuant to each on-call task
request shall be on a time and expenses basis according to the list of billing rates and
reimbursabie expenses aitached hereto as Exhibit "C". Consultant may adjust the billing rates
and reimbursable expenses once each calendar year on or after January 1st by providing the City
with written notice of the adjusted rates and expenses no less than (30) thirty days prior to the
effective date of such adjustment. The billing rates and reimbursable expenses for on-call task
orders authorized prior to receipt of written notice of the rate/expense adjustment by the City
shall not be affected by the adjustment.

3.2 Other. In the event that after commencement of work, the Consultant anticipates
that the work for an on-call task request will exceed the initial amount authorized, Consultant
shall promptly notify the City and provide the City with whatever documentation or information
is necessary to request approval of any amounts in excess thereof.

4. Pavment

4.1  Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly inveices, inn a format acceptable to the City for work performed to
the date of the inveice.

42  All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60} days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Inc.

Page20of8

- e——r—




43  Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement. Consultant shall make copies available to

the City on request. '

44  If the services remdered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement,
Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

s, Discrimination and Compliance with Laws

51  Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.

52  Consultant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
Iaws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

53  Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, fermination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the

City.

8.  Suspension and Termination of Agreement

6.1  The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10} days prior {o the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other matetial
prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City. In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such analyses and records as may be necessary to place its files in order. Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of
suspension or termination.

6.2  Any notice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anticipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends,

7. Standard of Care

Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Inc.

Page3 of 8



7.1  Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately
accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and govemnmental entities. Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similat circumstances. Consultant understands and agrees that the services
rendered pursuant fo this Agreement are for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no
third party shall have authority to authorize, approve, direct or control any of the services
rendered to the City pursuant to this Agreement.

8.  Ownership of Work Product

81  Ownership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement. Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City,

e ————-_82__ _The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as insfruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The Ciiy agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant.

83  Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City see fif,
including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9, Indemnification/Hold Harmless

9.1 Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attorney fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or
omissions of Consultant or its subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and darmages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Provided, however, that if any
such claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits result from the concurrent negligence of
Consultant and the city, it is expressly agreed that Consultant’s obligations and indemnity under
this paragraph shall be effective only to the extent of Consultant’s negligence.

10. Insurance

Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Tnc,

Page 4 of §

SIS ETE TP T VA

T S T



10.1  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and
shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries fo persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

10.2 Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
INSUrance;

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISQ) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide contracfual liability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall
cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and
advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers” Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

103 The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-3-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, hag been given to the City.

10.4 The City shall be named as an additional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursnant to this Agreement.

10.5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VIL

10.6 Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not less than ten
(10} days following both partics signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work.
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy
Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10) days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any

Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Inc.

Page S of 8



policy or required insurance writien on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services to be performed. It shall be a maierial breach of this
Agreement for Consultant to fail to procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance fo the City as provided for in this Agreement.

11.  Assigning or Subcontracting

11.1  Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

12. Independent Contractor

12.1 Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agreement, independent confractors.

13. Notice

13.1 All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered

———— — —when personally delivered,-when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,

postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Chris Bacha
Kenyon Disend, PLLC
11 Front Street South
Issaquah, WA 98027
Fax: 425-392-7071

Consultant: Daniel L. McReynolds
Parameirix, Inc.
1019 39™ Ave SE, Suite 100
Puyallup, WA 98374
Fax: 253-604-6799

Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Dre.

Page 6 of §




14. Disputes

14.1 Any action for claims arising out of or relating fo this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Washingtor. Venue shall be in King County Superior
Court, Kenf, Washington.

15. Attorney Fees

15.1  In any suit ot action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agresment, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reasonable attorney fees from fhe other party.

16. General Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or his/her designee( the contract
Administrator) shall review and approve Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement
and shall have primary responsibility for overseeing and approving work or services to be
performed by Consultant. . Consultant understands and agrees that any and all work to be
performed pursuant to fhis Agreement must be approved in advance by the contract
Administrator. Ne third party, including the project applicant, shall have any direct control or
influence over the services performed under this Contract.

17. Extent of Agreement/Modification

17.1 This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. After City Council approval, this
Agreement shall be in effect as of April 20, 2012 and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2014,
unless sooner terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement may only be amended, modified,
or added to by written instrument properly signed by both parties. The parties acknowledge the
general contract rule that a clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting oral medifications
is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure certainty as to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties waive this general contract rule.

18, Conflict of Interest: Non-Collusion

18,1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
or indirect, in this Contract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations. The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which weuld conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and obligations hereunder. The
Consultant further covenants that, in performance of this Contract, no person having any such

Professional Services Agreement with Parametrix, Inc.

Page 7 of 8



interest shall be employed by the Consultant. The contractor’s officers, employees or agents
shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from the project
applicant or any affiliate or agent of the project applicant.

18.2 The Contractor warrants and represents that the Contractor has not, nor has any
other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Contractor, entered into or
offered to enfer into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person or entity to
receive or pay, and that he has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration
for the execution of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and
conditions hereof.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONSUL T
By: \é-zﬂ_n,u @D..Lu_&/ By: %ﬁﬁ

Rebecca Olness Printed Name: Daniel L. McReynolds
Iis: Mayor Its: Principal
Dater P -25 -1 Date:_April 11%2012
Attest:

Mw«:ﬁ WW

Brenda L. Martinez
City Clerk

Professional Services Agreement wlth Paramefrix, Ine.

Page 8 of 8

U D P N R I R



EXHIBIT A
(General Scope of Work)

Traffic and Transportation Review Services General Scope of
Services

Traffic Impact Study review and findings -
Traffic Monitoring Report review and findings
Traffic safety studies '
Travel demand forecasting and modeling -
Traffic operations modeling
Intersection level of service analysis
Roundabout evaluation
Design concept review
Sight distance evaluation
Pedestrian and bicycle facility planning and design
Transit facility planning and design
Parking management and guidelines
Code language and design standards review
raffic calming strategies review
Coordination with City staff
Attendance at City Council or public meetings or hearings

Professional Services Agreement

Page9ofll



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: _ . City Staff Contact:
Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Consultant Project No.: Fax: 360-886-2582
Consuftant Contact Name: )
Consuitant Phone:
Consuitant Fax:
Scope of Task Request
Budget Estimate:
Task Request Approval:
City of Black Diamond.
Witten Name ) Title
Signature Date
GConsultant:
Whitten Name Tiile
Signature ' Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notily the City should additional funds be necessary fo complete
the task order. Addional work beyond that which is ordered by the Clity shall not commence until written natification is received from

the City.




Exhibit ©

Paramefrix Maximum Allowable Rates through

ExCilaxAlicaRaes032712 s

Class(fcation . Grads R;.:;;:r Classitication Grads E‘I;:;‘
CABD Qperalor | 8 $70 Jr. Prannar 89 $75
CADD Qperator il 9710 385 Planner | 1 $50
CADD Operator Il 11 $115 Planner il 1% S‘lbl}
CADD Tech Lead 12 $120 Panner Il 12113 $120
" CADD Supemiser 12 $110 Planner V 14 $130
CADD Services Manager- 14 $125 Sr. Planner 15 si60
Sr. Planner 18 $170
Daslgner! 16 §100 5r. Planner 17 $190
Deslgner il 1 o5
Designer it 12 $120 Jr. SelentisiBlologist 8 §75
Deslgrer I 13 $135 Sclentist/Bintaglst | 19 385
Designer )V 14 $148 Scleniist/Blologist Il 11 $140
Sr. Dasigrier 15 $1s0 Sclentist/Biolagist 1 12 $115
Sy, Designer 16117 §is85 Sclentist/Blologlst 11l 13 $120
Sclentlst/Blologist IV 4 §13s
Engineering Tachniciza | ) §78 Sr, Sclenfst/Bialogist 15 189 |
Enginearing Techniclan 1 @ $88 Sr. Sclenlist/Blologist 16 §165
Engineeri 10 396 5r. SclentlstBlologist 17 §175
Englneerfi 11 $100
“Engineerill 12 $11s Environmental Technlcian | 8 $85
Enginaer il 13 $125 Environmenial Technician 1l g %90
Engineer IV 14 $138 Environmental Technician {If 10 $1a0
Sr. Enginesr 15 31350
Sr, Englnesy 16 $170 Je. Toxdcologist 8 $78
8r. Engineer 17 $1390 Toxicologist 1a $95 .
Sr. Cansullant 1B $215 Taxicologist It 1 $106
Sr. Cansultanl 19 $250 Toxicologist 1213 $118
i Towdcologist M 14 $140
Jr. Survayoer : $ra Sr. Toxicologisl 16618 $188
Surveyar| g $80 Sr. Toxicologist 17 $210
Surveyor Il 10 $85 .
Surveyor Wl 11 $118 Hydragaoinglst { i0 $95
Sr. Surveyer 12 3115 Hydrageologist il 11 sioo
Se. Surveyer 13 $ido Hydrogealogist il 12113 3118
Survey Supesvisor 14 3145 Hydrogeologist iv 4 $1E
Regianal Surveyor 18 §185 8r. Hydrogealogist 15 $180
Sr. Hydrogeologist 18 $165
Conslructlen Technictan [ am $55 Sr. Hydrogealogist 17 $170
Gonslruction Technician I- 10 $50
Caonstruction Technlctan 1 11 $120 GIS Technician 9/1a 488
Cansluction Technician IV 12 $138 Sr. GIS Analyst 11 $38
Canstruciion Manager | 41 $1i0
Constustion Manager If 12 $125 Graphic Arisi 9 $80
Gonsfruction Manager 1] 13 $135 Sr, Graphic Artist 10 $110
Construction Manager IV 14 $145
8r. Construction Manager 15 $150 Technical Aide 7 $70
Sr. Constnrciion Manager 16 3170 Sr. Technical Aide f 475
Sr. Consliuction Manager 17 §i75 Prafect Coordinator 9 300
Site Construciion Managar i3 $180 Sr. Project Coordinalor 10 7§85
Projest Gonlrals Spechalist 11 $100
Operaticns Manager 18 " §150 Project Coerdination Suparvisor 11 100
Cperations Manager 17 §iru
Gperations Manager 18 §180 Project Accauntant [:} 320
Division Manager 18 §166 Projsct Assountant 9 %8s
Divisien Manager 17 $206 Sr. Projast Acseuntant 10 $95
Division Manager 18119 $238 B¢, Accounting Specialst 10 §1oo
Regional Division Manager 1819 $240 5r. Contrac! Adminiskafer 11 s
Frogram Manager 1aH9 $250
Program Manager 20 $280 Library Specialiat 9 38
Principal Consultant 19 . $278 Lirafdan 11 $8&
Principal Cansuftant 20 $a95 Infarrnation Rascource Managsd 13 $125
Project Delivery Offices 19 $236° LAN Adrin | 11 $10a
Principai 197208 $2498 LAN Admin Il 12 $1ia
S, LAN Admin 13 $108
Word Procassar 7 $65 Oifice Clark 4 355
5r. Word Processer 8 $76 Raceptionisi [ $sa
Word Proeessing Speciafis| 2] 495 Admin Assistant 67 $65
Technical Edfor to §ios Sr Admin Agsisfant 8 370
Waori Proe MgrEditor 11 §110 Sr Admin Assjstant -9 §90
Praduction Manager 12 $130 Cffica Administator 10 495
S, Offica Administrator 11 $1e -
Expert Wilness $250 Cifice Administrative Manager 12-14 $130
Value Engineeing ‘ $250
Direct project exgenses and reprduction cosls asm hilled at cost plus 16%
Public heating tesfimony services are billed al howdy sates plus 30%
March 27, 2012



RESCLUTION NO. 14-852

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST
ADDENDUM TO THE PARAMETRIX, INC. CONTRACT TO
SERVE AS THE TRAFFIC ENGINEERING CONSULTANT
TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

WHEREAS, on April 18, 2012 the Consuitant and the City entered info a contract
via Resolution No. 12-781 for on-going services as described in that Gontract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soan expire, and the City would like to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the

execution of new contracts with the City; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL GF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to exscute the first addendum to the
Paramtrix, Inc. contract for Traffic Engineering to the MDRT, substantially in the form

attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREGF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:
ﬂﬁ, s @/ﬂM 3 @4 %ﬁ—
Dave Gordon, Mayor =
Atlest:
Gund. XV ot nen

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk ™~



FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
Parametrix, Inc.

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made tfo the Consultant Services Contract via Resolution
No.12-791 executed between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal
corporation (hereinafier the "City"), and Parametrix (hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing

business at 1019 — 39" Avenue S.E., Suite 100, Puyallup, WA 98374.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012, the Consultant and the City entered into a
contract for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would fike to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the

execution of new confracts with the City;

WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

Section 1. No Change to Terms and Conditions. With the exception of the
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.

Section 2. New Expiration Date. The parties agree to extend the expiration date
of the Contract June 30, 2014 to September 30, 2014.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQCF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th
day of June, 2014.

Page 1



CONSULTAN

By: /'-z./

. Py
Austin R. Fi§fer, P.E.
lts: Senicr Consuftant

Consultant: Parametrix, Inc.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

By, Paivs CenoirCden Ly

Dave Gordon, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol L. Morris, City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:
DBund, L Y mtine,
Brenda Martinez, City Clerk J

Page 2



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Post Office Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: Agenda Date: September 18,2014 AB14-085
Resolution No. 14-974, authorizing Mayor Dave Gordon
the Mayor to execute a contract with | | City Administrator
RH2 to serve as the Civil City Attorney Carol Moiris
Engineering Consultant to the City Clerk — Bronda L. Maml.lez
Com Dev/Nat Res — Aaron Nix
MDRT Finance — May Miller
MDRT/Eco Dev — Andy Williamson X
Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note): Variable Police — Chief Kiblinger
Fund Source: Pass-through expense to Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Yarrow Bay
Timeline: Two year contract w/60 day call Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Agenda Placement: DX| Mayor [ | Two Councilmembers [ ] Committee Chair [ | City Administrator

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-974, proposed contract, Resolution Nos. 12-792 & 14-956

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Funding Agreement approved in conjunction with the two Development Agreements (DAs) for the
approved Master Planned Developments (MPDs) of Lawson Hills and The Villages assumes that
consultants will be hired to augment City staff in their work as the MPDS are implemented over time.
There will be significant needs for civil engineering assistance to help with review of specific
implementing projects (plats, multifamily housing, commercial projects), plus major infrastructure
improvements such a water and sewer line extensions.

The City advertised in the Journal of Commerce, City website and official newspaper to solicit
Statements of Qualifications from firms interested in performing this work. A total of 4 firms submitted
their qualifications; two were chosen to be interviewed. The interview panel consisted of Public Works
Director Seth Boettcher, MDRT/Economic Development Director Andrew Williamson and Executive
Administrative Assistant Scott Hanis. The unanimous choice of the interview panel was to hire RH2,
which has previously assisted staff in its review of the MPD proposals, DAs and other public works
matters.

Per the terms of the DAs, all costs for consultants must be paid for by the Master Developer (Yarrow
Bay). This contract is for two years and a 10-day termination provision is included, should the City
decide to seek a different consultant or hire its own staff at a future date.

FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the contracted
services will be reimbursed by the Developer.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-974, authorizing the
Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with RH2 to serve as Civil
Engineering Consultant to the MDRT.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

September 18, 2014




RESOLUTION NO. 14-974

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH RH2 TO SERVE AS THE CIVIL ENGINEERING
CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
TEAM

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
the Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011 the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD
Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement call for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City Staff and outside consultants;
and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide Civil
Engineering Services to meet the needs of the MDRT;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a 2 year contract with RH2 to
provide Civil Engineering Services for the MDRT, substantially in the form attached
hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 18TH DAY OF
SEPTEMBER, 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



Exhibit

CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR CIVIL ENGINEERING SERVICES
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
RH2 Engineering, Inc.

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington
municipal corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and RH2 Engineering, Inc., (hereinafter
the “Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington

Tmmm P T A—-nn nnath . L1

Land ol L. L N cae I Q. NAN D 1 WATA NQNNA
located and doing business at 22722 25" Drive SE, Suite 210, Botheli, WA 98021.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide civil
engineering services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, the City has funding available from YarrowBay and an approved
budget to fund the oversight, engineering review, inspections development agreement
enforcement and assisting the City with the regulatory role

WHEREAS, the City has advertised for general civil engineering services and
selected the best qualified consultant; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant has agreed to provide the services described in
Exhibit A (scope of work) under the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS
I. Description of Work.

The Consultant shall be prepared to assist the City with all of the work described
in Exhibit A (General Scope of Work), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference. The municipal fiscal analysis services to be provided to the City by
the Consultant shall be identified in on-call task requests for each project task for which
the City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant
under this Agreement except pursuant to such an on call task request issued by the City
in the form attached as Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by this reference.
Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task request in

Page 1

A


bmartinez
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A


accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request
(Exhibit B).

Il. Payment

A. The City shall pay the Consultant an amount based on time and materials,
not to exceed Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500 000.00) for the services described
in Section | herein. This is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement for the
work described in Exhibit A, and shall not be exceeded without the prior written
authorization of the City in the form of a negotiated and executed supplemental
agreement. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the City reserves the right to direct the
Consultant's compensated services under the time frame set forth in Section IV herein
before reaching the maximum amount. The progress billings for the work completed
shall be compensated according to the rates and charges identified in Exhibit C, which

is incorporated herein by this reference.

B. The Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to the City after such services
have been performed, and a final bill upon completion of all the services described in
this Agreement. The City shall pay the full amount of an invoice within sixty (60) days of
receipt. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the
Consultant of the same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay
that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and the parties shall immediately make every
effort to settle the disputed portion.

lll. Relationship of Parties

The parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be
created by this Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an
independently established trade which encompasses the specific service provided to
the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative or sub-consultant of the
Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, representative or
sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details
of the work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.
None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees including, but not limited to,
compensation, insurance, and unemployment insurance are available from the City to
the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-consultants of the Consultant. The
Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its
agents, employees, representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this
Agreement. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder.

Page 2



V. Duration of Work

The Consultant shall perform the work according to the City’s direction, as
described in Section | of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect for a period
of two (2) years from the effective date, which is the date this Agreement is signed by
both parties.

V. Termination

A. Termination of Agreement. The City may terminate this Agreement, for public
convenience, the Consultant's default, the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
Consultant's assignment for the benefit of creditors, at any time prior to completion of
the work described in Exhibit A. If delivered to Consultant in person, termination shall be
effective immediately upon the Consultant’s receipt of the City's written notice or such
date stated in the City's notice, whichever is later.

B. Rights Upon Termination. In the event of termination, the City shall pay for all
services satisfactorily performed by the Consultant to the effective date of termination,
as described on a final invoice submitted to the City. Said amount shall not exceed the
amount in Section Il above. After termination, the City may take possession of all
records and data within the Consultant’s possession pertaining to this Agreement, which
records and data may be used by the City without restriction. Upon termination, the City
may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or
otherwise.

VI. Discrimination

In the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this Agreement or any
sub-contract hereunder, the Consultant, its Subcontractors, or any person acting on
behalf of such Consultant or sub-consultant shall not by reason of race, religion, color,
sex, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability,
discriminate against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to
which the employment relates.

VIl. Indemnification

The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages,
losses or suits, including all legal Costs and attorneys' fees, arising out of or in
connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages
caused by the sole negligence of the City. The City's inspection or acceptance of any of
the Consultant's work when completed shall not be grounds to avoid any of these
covenants of indemnification.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is Subject to
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to

Page 3



persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and Volunteers,
the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's

negligence.

IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S
WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY

MDD TLLIr NDIINDOhAAQEDS NC Tuluicoe INIMEAANIIEIMNAATINAN] TLIC DADTIEC 1l 1DTLY
FOR THE PURPQOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER

ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. THE
CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
SECTION DOES NOT INCLUDE, OR EXTEND TO. ANY CLAIMS BY THE
CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES DIRECTLY AGAINST THE CONSULTANT.

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

VIIi. Insurance

A. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement,
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise
from or in connection with the Consultant's own work including the work of the
Consultant's agents, representatives, employees, sub-consultants or sub-contractors.

B. Before beginning work on the project described in this Agreement, the
Consultant shall provide evidence, in the form of a Certificate of Insurance, of the
following insurance coverage and limits (at a minimum):

1. Business auto coverage for any auto no less than a $1,000,000 each
accident limit, and

2. Commercial General Liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence with a $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but is not
limited to, contractual liability, products and completed operations, property
damage, and employers liability, and

3. Professional Liability insurance with no less than $1,000,000. All
policies and coverage's shall be on a claims made basis.

C. The Consultant is responsible for the payment of any deductible or self
insured retention that is required by any of the Consultant's insurance. If the City is
required to contribute to the deductible under any of the Consultant's insurance policies,
the Contractor shall reimburse the City the full amount of the deductible within 10
working days of the City's deductible payment.

Page 4



D. The City of Black Diamond shall be named as an additional insured on the
Consultant's commercial general liability policy. This additional insured endorsement
shall be included with evidence of insurance in the form of a Certificate of Insurance for
coverage necessary in Section B. The City reserves the right to receive a certified and
complete copy of all of the Consultant's insurance policies.

E. Under this agreement, the Consultant's insurance shall be considered primary
in the event of a loss, damage or suit. The City's own comprehensive general Iiability
policy will be considered excess coverage with respect to defense and indemnity of the
City only and no other party. Additionally, the Consultant's commercial general liability
policy must provide cross-liability coverage as could be achleved under a standard ISO

separation of insured's clause.

F. The Consultant shall request from his insurer a modification of the ACORD
certificate to include language that prior written notification will be given to the City of
Black Diamond at least 30 days in advance of any cancellation, suspension or material
change in the Consultant's coverage.

IX. Exchange of Information

The City warrants the accuracy of any information supplied by it to the Consultant for
the purpose of completion of the work under this Agreement. The parties agree that the
Consultant will notify the City of any inaccuracies in the information provided by the City
as may be discovered in the process of performing the work, and that the City is entitled
to rely upon any information supplied by the Consultant which results as a product of
this Agreement.

X. Ownership and Use cf Records and Documents

Original documents, drawings, designs and reports developed under this Agreement
shall belong to and become the property of the City. All written information submitted by
the City to the Consultant in connection with the services performed by the Consultant
under this Agreement will be safeguarded by the Consultant to at least the same extent
as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business. If such
information is publicly available or is already in Consultant's possession or known to it,
or is rightfully obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no
responsibility for its disclosure, inadvertent or otherwise.

XI. City's Right of Inspection

Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control
and direct the performance ,and details of the work authorized under this Agreement,
the work must meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general
right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. The Consultant agrees
to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now

Page 5



effective or become applicable within the terms of this Agreement to the Consultant's
business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement
or accruing out of the performance of such operations.

Xil. Consultant to Maintain Records to Support Independent Contractor Status

On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall
comply with all federal and state laws applicable to Independent contractors including,
but not limited to the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that refiect al
Items of income and expenses of the Consultant's business, pursuant to the Revised
Code of Washington (RCW) Section 51.08.195, as required to show that the services
performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer-
employee relationship between the parties which is subject to RCW Title 51, Industrial

Insurance.
Xill. Work Performed at the Consultant’s Risk

The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the
safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work
hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. All work shall be
done at the Consultant's own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss
of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held by the Consultant for use
In connection with the work.

XIV. Non-Waiver of Breach

The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and
agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or more
instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants,
agreements, or options and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

XV. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law

Should any dispute, misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the City of Black
Diamond shall determine the term or provision's true intent or meaning. The City of
Black Diamond shall also decide all questions which may arise between the parties
relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance
hereunder.

If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions of
this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor or Administrator's determination
in a reasonable time, or if the Consultant does not agree with the City's decision on the
disputed matter, jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in King County
Superior Court, King County, Washington. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The non-prevailing

Page 6



party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay the other parties'
expenses and reasonable attorney's fees.

XVI. Written Notice

All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the
addresses listed on the sighature page of the agreement, unless notified to the contrary.
Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective upon
the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shali be deemed sufficiently given
if sent to the addressee at the address stated below:

CONSULTANT: CITY:

Attn: Dan Ervin, P.E. Attn: Andrew Williamson
RH2 Engineering, Inc. City of Black Diamond
22722 29" Drive SE, Suite 210 P.O. Box 599

Bothell, WA 98021 24301 Roberts Drive

Black Diamond, WA 98010

With a copy to the “City Clerk” at the same
address.

XVII. Assignment

Any assignment of this Agreement by the Consultant without the written consent of the
City shall be void. If the City shall give its consent to any assignment, this paragraph
shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall be made without

the City's consent.
XVIIl. Modification and Severability

No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and
the Consultant.

The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. If any provision of this
Agreement is for any reasons held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionatity shall not affect the validity
or constitutionality of any other provision.

XIX. Entire Agreement
The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with Exhibit A, B and C

attached hereto. shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other
representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as

Page 7



entering into or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement
or the Agreement documents. The entire agreement between the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereunder is contained in this Agreement and any Exhibits attached
hereto, which may or may not have been executed prior to the execution of this
Agreement. All of the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement and
form the Agreement document as fully as if the same were set forth herein. Should any
language in Exhibits, A, B and C to this Agreement conflict with any language contained
in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this day
of , 2014.
CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
By: By:
Tony V. Pardi Dave Gordon, Mayor

Its: President

Consultant: RH2 Engineering

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol A. Morris
City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:

Brenda Martinez
City Clerk

Page 8



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Page 9



EXHIBIT A
Scope of Work
City of Black Diamond
Master Development Review Team
May 2014

Background

The Master Development Review Team (MDRT) is a dedicated team of personnel operating within the
City of Black Diamond {City) to permit Master Planned Development projécts within the City. The
MDRT duties and obligations ate described in the Development Agreements fot the Villages and
Lawson Hills, and in the MDRT Funding Agreement between Black Diamond and Yarrow Bay
Communities. The MDRT is composed of City staff and contract staff,

RH2 Engineering, Inc., (RH2) is a coritract meimber-of the ‘MDRT.

The MDRT'is des:gm:d to be dynamic and flexible and evolve as nceded to facilitate the City’s role as a
regulator in major development piojects. The character and amount of work will vary; from time to
time, and this Agreement implies 2 commitment by RH2 to maintain schedule and personnel flexibility
and_prowde 4 superior level of professional sexvice. The benchmark for performiance évaluations will be
established by the City, and these criteria may be subject to change as the MDRT evolves and as the
developmerit projects progress.

Some work tasks ate anticipated, and those tasks are listed below. Other unanicipated tasks will emerge
as the development projects mature and as the MDRT evolves, Unarticipated work will bé performed
under the most appropriate task listed below or authorized by letter agreement or email directive from
the City:

The following tasks are not.intended to imply chronological order, but rather serve as general categories
of wotk:

Task 1 — Permit Review

1.4 Review permit applications and other applicant submittals in compliance with: 1) Villages and
Lawson Hills Development Agreements, 2) City Municipal Code and Standards, 3) applicable
state statutes and requirements, and 4) any other documents or regulations governing-the work.
Tt is an'ﬁcipazed that most of the permit submittals will be preliminary plats, site development
perrmts or utility permits for water, sewer, stormwater and strest work improvements. The
permits and submittals will generally be reviewed for thé following iterfis, if applicable:

= Check the general plan layout for ease of interpretation and lack of ambiguity and comment
on ways to improve layout if necessary;

*  Check the completéness of the design for construction dnd inspection purposes;
»  Perform a check of the supporting engineeting calcnlations;

s Check for compliance with the governing agreement and the applicable minimum design
standards, and check for compliance with the generally accepted engineering standard of
care;

375/2014 113309 AM JADan\BD\s32\ 2014 MIDRTABD AIDRT 3OW.dnex



City of Black Diamond Exhibit A
Master Development Review Team Scope of Work

x  Cross-check for conflicts and ambiguides in the design plans and with previous permit
approvals;

= Perform simple value engincering and identify areas for design simplification or cost
reduction;

s  Cross check specifications for conflicts and ambiguities;
»  Check reference materials for validity;

®  Check record matetials for completeriess and the ability to retrace the design process in the
future.

1.2 Comply with the schedules identified by the City:
1.3  Perform any other services as directed by the City.

1

‘T'ask 2 — Conceptual and Collaborative Design

21  Provide concepiual planning and deslgn services for utilities and infrastructure in collaboration
with City staff, Maintain 2 presence at the City’s design meetings to exert a positive influence on
the maintainability of the improvements and the quality of the design. Search for and implement
ways to improve plans and designs.

2.2  Provide primary design services as directed by the City, on behalf of the City.
2.3 Perform any other services as directed by the City.

Task 3 — Services During Construction

31  Provide on-call field inspection setvices to assist and supplement the experierice 2nd resources
of City staff, Make periodic site visits at City discretion to maintain 2 working knowledge of
project constraints, requirements, and character,

3.2  Performany other services as directed by the City.

Task 4 — As-Built Review

41  TFacilitate delivery of as-built construction records from the appropriate design teams to Public
Wotks. Check records for compliance with published as-built sequitements and accept or reject
trecords as appropriate. Develop new as-built requirements, from time to time, as requested by
the City in accordance with City goals and objectives. Check design team compliance with any
“Washington State professional engineering standards.

42  Perform any other services as directed by the City.
Task 5 — Testing, Acceptance, and Bonding

51  Provide facility and utility field testing services to assure that impfovements meet the
requirements of applicable approved construction plans.

52  Review and recommend acceptance or rejection (as appropriate) of the permitted utilides and
facilites as required in the City’s Municipal Code.

5/5/14°11:33 AM JAData\BD\s4012014 MDRTABD MDRT SOW.diex



City of Black Diamond Exhibit A
Master Development Review Team Scope of Work

53  Review and accept bonding amounts and certifications for performance bonds and maintenance
bonds.

54  Perform any other services as dirécted by the City.
Task 6 — Compliance Tracking

61  Develop and mainmin a tracking system to assute compliance with the Development
Agreements. Track the follewing items, including bot not limited te: watet conservation,
impervicus area limitations, sewage interceptor capacity, traffic capacity and level of service, and
' phosphiorus discharge.

6.2 Perform any other setvices as directed by the City.

Task 7 ~ Project Manageméent

7.1  Artend meetings, as necessary and as directed by the City, to assure compliance with the
Development Agreements and this Scope of Wotk.

7.2 Provide quality control and maintain quality assurance {QA/QC) procedutes for RH2 work
products. Meet and coordinate with MDRT members as necessary to maintain the QA/QC
objectives, meet the schedule reguirements and comply with the minimum design and review
standards. Provide input as tequested to the City regarding the work and progress of RH2
project staff.

7.3 Maintain complete and efficient working files of RH2's project activities,

74  Provide timely and accurate billing invoices and billing recotds for RH2 and for related
subconsultant work,

75  Provide and maintain an administrative structure that allows efficient access to RH2’s project
staff members who work on MDRT projects. Maintain sufficient wotkload flexibility to meet the
dynamic workload needs of the MPDs.

7.6  Perform any other sérvices as directed by the City.
Task 8 — Engineering Repost Review

81  Review reports and documents created by others for compliance with the Development
Agreements and City Municipal Code.

82  Summaiize the Work and reporis as necessary for presentation to other City departments, City
staff or the public regarding reposts in support of permiits or other development actions.

83  Provide peer-review services through subconsultants as requested by the City.
8.4  Perform any other services as directed by the City.

Task 9 = Liaison with Other Departments

91  Meet with other City departments and tegional agencies as requested by the City to share
infofmation and maintain a cooperative Wworking eavironment.

9.2  Perform any other services as directed by the City.

§/5/14 11:33 AAL JADas\ BDYsA04 2004 MORTABD MDRT SOW.docs



City of Black Diamond Exhibit A
Master Development Review Team. Scope of Work

Task 10 — Agency Coordination

10.1 Meet with other Agencies as directed by City and assist in developing collaborative and
complimentaty solutions o City/Regional issues (i.e. sewage conveyance, service area limits,
sustainable permitting, etc.). Develop briefing materials for City staff as appropriate and provide
data identifying lifecycle cost impicts, LOS impacts, tegulatory impacts, and other pettinent data
or evaluations requested by the City.

5/5/14 11:33 AM JADa \BEA =4\ 20T4 MDRTXED MDRT SOW .ducx



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:
Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Consultant Project No.: Fax: 360-886-2592
Consultant Contact Name:
Constiitant Phone:
Consuitant Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:

City of Black Diamond:
Writter: Name ' Title
Signalure Date
Consultant:
Writtens Name Title
Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall nofify the City should additional funds be necessary to complete
the task order, Additional work beyend that which is ordzred by the City shall not commence until written notification is received from

tha City.



Professional

In-house copies{color} (eachy
Tn-houss.copies {color) {each)
In-hiuse copies {cofor) (each)

G0 AN

§i99.00

$199.00-

S1LAG

$177.00

$168.00

5158.00

$148.00
$137.00

13500

85X 4

X 1"

B X 11"

BSX 147

X1

Technician
Technician

Technision

Administrative
Administrative
Administrative
Administrative
Administrative

CAD Plots

CAD Plots

CAD Plats

CAD Syslem

GIS System
‘Technotogy Cliarge
Milenge'

$119.00

SRR.00

$83.00

$118.00

59800
$84.00

2.5% of Direet Labo

Current IRS Rate




RESOLUTION NO. 12-782

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TQO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH RH2 TO SERVE AS THE CIVIL ENGINEERING
CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW

TEAM.

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
The Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD

Lawsaon Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement calls for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City staff and outside consultants;

and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide civil
engineering services fo meet the neads of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, private firms providing civil engineering services were invited to submit
Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, a panel consisting of staff and one City Council member reviewed the
submittals, subsequently interviewed four firms and then unanimously recommended
RH2 as the firm most capable of providing civil engineering services as desired;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract with RH2 to provide
civil engineering services Tor the MDRT, substantially in the form attached hereto as

Exhibit A.



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 19™ DAY OF APRIL,
2012.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Attest:

Dunde ¥ ey

. Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk {/

Ry




CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement”), for reference purposes
only, is dated, April 11", 2012 and is entered into by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City™)
Physical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive

Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Andrew Williamson Phone: 360-836-5700 Fax; 360-886-2592

and

RH2 ENGINEERING, INC (the “Consultant™)
Physical Address: 22722 29" Drive SE, Suite 210

Bothell, WA 98021

Contact: Dan Ervin, P.E Phone: 425-951-5400 Fax: 425-951-5401

Tax ID No.: 91-11008443

For non-exclusive on-call professional services for the City of Black Diamond.
TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1 Consultant has been retained by the City to provide professional engineering on-
call services generally described in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement as Exhibit
"A." The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Work nor shall the
Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that provided in this Agreement
without the prior written authorization of the City.

1.2 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in writfen amendments to this Agreement.

1.3 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite fraining, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agreement and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its
subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inc.

Page 1 of §



of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in
similar circumstances.

2. Schedule of Work

2.1 The City will issue an on on-call task request for each project task for which the
City reguires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant under this
Agreement except pursuant to such an on-call task request issned by the City in the form
attached as Exhibit "B." Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task

request in accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request.

2.2 Time is of the essence as to the work provided in the Scope of Work. Consultant
will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that it, and its subconsultants, will have
adequate staffing at all times in order to complefe the Scope of Work in a timely manner. If
factors beyond Consultant’s control that could not have been reasonably foreseen as of the date
of this Agreement cause delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether
an extension is appropriate. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any
delay, or potential delay, that may trigger the need for a time extension within 3 business days
after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

23  Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon execution of this
agreement.

3. Compensation

G 3.1 Rates. Compensation for the services provided pursuant to each on-call task
request shall be on a time and expenses basis according to the list of billing rates and
reimbursable expenses attached heretc as Exhibit "C". Consultant may adjust the billing rates
and reimbursable expenses once each calendar year on or after January 1st by providing the City
with written notice of the adjusted rates and expenses no less than (30) thirty days prior to the
effective date of such adjustment. The billing rates and reimbursable expenses for on-call task
orders authorized prior to receipt of written notice of the rate/expense adjustment by the City
shall not be affected by the adjustment.

3.2 Other. In the event that after commencement of work, the Consultant anticipates
that the work for an on-call task request will exceed the initial amount authorized, Consultant
shall promptly notify the City and provide the City with whatever documentation or information
is necessary to request approval of any amounts in excess thereof.

4, Pavment

41  Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with onthly invoices, in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to
the date of the invoice.

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Ine,

Page2of 8




42  All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

4.3  Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement. Consultant shall make copies available to
the City on request.

4.4  If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement,
Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement, The City may
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

5. Discrimination and Compliance with Laws

5.1 Consultant agrees not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
colot, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circamstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification,

52  Consuliant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

5.3 Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the

City.

6. Suspension and Termination of Agreement

6.1  The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10} days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other material
prepared by Consultant pursuant o this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City. In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such analyses and records as may be necessary {o place its files in order. Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of
suspension or termination,

62  Any notice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anticipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends.

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inc.

Page 3 of 8



7. Standard of Care

7.1 Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately
accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entifies. Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similar circumstances. Consultant understands and agrees that the services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement are for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no
third party shall have authority to authorize, approve, direct or control any of the services
rendered to the City pursuant to this Agreement.

8.  Ownership of Work Product

8.1  Ownership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City npon termination of this Agreement. Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

8.2  The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, inchuding defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant.

83  Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City see fit,
including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9. Indemmification/Hold Harmless

9.1 Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including aitorney fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or
omissions of Consultant or its subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Provided, however, that if any
such claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits result from the concurrent negligence of
Consultaat and the city, if is expressly agreed that Consultant’s obligations and indemnity under
this paragraph shall be effective only to the extent of Consultant’s negligence.

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inc.

Page 4 of 8

e




10. Insorance

10,1  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the dutation of the Agreement, and
shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

10.2  Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
insurance:

a, Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent Hability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide confractual liability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimuem
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall
cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and
advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers’ Compensation covetage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washington.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit,

103 The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-3-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given fo the City.

104 The City shall be named as an additional insured vnder Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

10.5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VII.

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not less than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work.
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Ine.

PageSof 8



Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10) days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance writien on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following corapletion of the services to be performed. It shall be a material breach of this
Agreement for Consuliant to fail to procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance to the City as provided for in this Agreement.

11.  Assioning or Subcontracting

11.1  Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subconiract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests aceruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

12. Independent Contractor

12.1  Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agresment, independent contractors.

13. Notice

13.1  All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when personally delivered, when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Chris Bacha
Kenyon Disend, PLLC
11 Front Street South
Issaquah, WA 98027
Fax: 425-392-7071

Consultant: Dan Ervin, P.E.
Vice President
RH2 Engineering, Inc.
22722 29" Drive SE, Suite 210
Bothell, WA 98021
Fax: 425-951-5401

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inc.

Page 6 of 8

PR I PP —

—



14. Disputes

141  Any action for claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
govemned by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shall be in King County Superior
Court, Kent, Washington.

15. Attorney Fees

15.1  In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
Teasonable attorney fees from the other party.

16. General Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or his/her designee( the contract
Administrator) shall review and approve Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement
and shall have primary responsibility for overseeing and approving work or services to be
performed by Consultant. . Counsultant understands and agrees that any and all work to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement must be approved in advance by the contract
Administrator. No third party, including the project applicant, shall have any direct control or
influence over the services performed under this Contract.

17. Extent of Asreement/Modification

17.1 This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. After City Council approval; this
Apgreement shall be in effect as of April 20, 2012 and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2014,
unless sooner terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement may only be amended, modified,
or added to by written instrument properly signed by both parties. The parties acknowledge the
general contract rule that a clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting oral modifications
is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensute certainty as fo the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties waive this general contract rule,

18. Conflict of Interest: Non-Collusion

18.1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
or indirect, in this Contract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations. The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and obligations heremnder. The
Consultant further covenants that, in performance of this Contract, no person having any such

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inec.

Page Tof 8



interest shall be employed by the Consultant. The contractor’s officers, employees or agents
shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from the project
applicaat or any affiliate or agent of the project applicant.

18.2 The Contractor warrants and represents that the Contractor has not, nor has any
other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Coniractor, entered info or
offered to enter into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person or entity to
receive or pay, and that he has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration
for the execution of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and

conditions hereof.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONS
By: \é,é,u_/ (QGA—-A«/ Bz

Rebecca Olness Dan Ervin, P.E.
Its; Mayor Its: Vice President
Date:  4-20-12< Date: April 112012
Attest:

Fosrdo ¥ MM/L%
Brenda L, Martinez
City Clerk

Professional Services Agreement with RH2 Engineering, Inc,

Page8of 8




EXHIBIT A
Scope of Work
City of Black Diamond
Master Development Review Team
March 2012

Background

The Master Development Review Team (MDRT) is a dedicated team of personnel operating within the
City of Black Diamond (City) to permit Master Planned Development projects within the City. The
MDRT duties and obligations are described in the Development Agreements for the Villages and
Lawson Hills, and in the MDRT Funding Agreement between Black Diamond and Yarrow Bay
Comnmynities. The MDRT is composed of City staff and contract staff.

RH2 Engineering, Inc., (RH2) is a contract member of the MDR'T.

The MDRT is designed to be dynamic and flexible and evolve as needed to facilirate the City's role as a
regulator in major development projects, The character and amount of work will vary, from time to
time, and this Agreement implies a commitment by REI2 to maintain schedule and personnel flexibility
and provide a superior fevel of professional service. The benchmark for performance evaluations will be
established by the City, and these criteria may be subject to change as the MDRT evolves and as the
development projects progress.

Some work tasks are anticipated, and those tasks are fisted below. Other unanticipated tasks will emerge
as the development projects mature and as the MDRT evolves. Unanticipated work will be performed
under the most appropriate task listed below or authorized by letter agreement or email directive from
the City.

The following tasks are not intended to imply chronological order, but rather serve as general categories
of work:

Task 1- Pesmit Review

1.1 Review permit applications and other applicant submittals in compliance with: 1) Villages and
Lawson Hills Development Agreements, 2) City Municipal Code and Standards, 3) applicable
state statutes and requirements, and 4) any other documents or regulations governing the work.
It is anticipated that most of the permit submittals will be preliminary plats, site development
permits or utility permits for water, sewer, stormwater and street work improverments. The
permits and submittals will generally be reviewed for the following items, if applicable:

*  Check the general plan layout for ease of interpretation and lack of ambiguity and comment
onways to improve layout if necessary;

*  Check the completeness of the design for construction and inspection purposes;
*  Perlorma check of the supporting engineering calculations;

*  Check for compliance with the governing agreement and the applicable minimum design
standards, and check for compliance with the generally accepted engineering standard of
care;

4/11/2012 ¥:11:54 AM F\Dara\BD\s40\2012 MDRTA\ Conrract\BD MDRT SOW.docx



City of Black Diamond Exhibit A
Master Development Review Team Scope of Work

1.2
1.3

= Cross-check for conflicts and ambiguities in the design plans and with previous permit
approvals;

" Perform simple value engineering and identify areas for design simplification or cost
reduction;

= Cross check specifications for conflicts and ambiguities;
#  Check reference materials for validity,

®  Check record materials for completeness and the ability to retrace the design process in the
future,

Comply with the schedules identified by the City.
Perform any other services as directed by the City.

Task 2 - Conceptual and Collaborative Design

21

22
23

Provide conceptual planning and design services for utilities and infrastructure in collaboration
with City staff. Maintain a presence at the City’s design meetings to exert a positive influence on
the maintainability of the improvements and the quality of the design. Search for and implement
ways to improve plans and designs.

Provide primary design services as directed by the City, on behalf of the City.
Perform any other services as directed by the City.

Task 3 - Services During Construction

31

3.2

Provide on-call field inspection services to assist and supplement the experience and resources
of City staff. Make periodic site visits at City discretion to maintain a working knowledge of
project constraints, requirements, and character.

Perform any other services as directed by the City,

Task 4 - As-Built Review

4.1

42

Facilitate delivery of as-built construction records from the appropriate design teams to Public
Works. Check records for compliance with published as-built requirements and accept or reject
records as appropriate. Develop new as-built requirements, from time to time, as requested by
the City in accordance with City goals and objectives. Check design team compliance with any
‘Washington State professional engineering standards.

Perform any other services as directed by the City.

Task 5 - Testing, Acceptance, and Bonding

5.1

52

Provide facility and utility field testing services to assure that improvements meet the
requirements of applicable approved construction plans.

Review and recommend acceptance or rejection (as appropriate) of the permitted ueilities and
facilities as required in the City’s Municipal Cade.

#1712 10:21 AM JAData\RD\e40\2012 MDRT\ Contract\BD MDRT SOW.darx



City of Black Diamond Exhibit A
Master Development Review Team Scope of Work

53  Review and accept bonding amounts and certifications for performance bonds and maintenance
bonds.

54  Performany other services as directed by the City.

Task 6 - Compliance Tracking

6.1  Develop and maintain a tracking system to assure compliance with the Development
Agreements. Track the following items, including but not limited to: water conservation,
impervious area limitations, sewage intetceptor capacity, traffic capacity and level of service, and
phosphorus discharge.

6.2 Perform any other services as divected by the City.

Task 7 - Project Management

7.1 Attend meetings, as necessary and as directed by the City, to assure compliance with. the
Development Agreements and this Scope of Work.

72 Provide quality control and maintain quality assurance (QA/QC) procedures for RE2 work
products. Meet and coordinate with MDRT' members as necessary to maimtain the QA/QC
objectives, meet the schedule requirements and comply with the minimum design and review
standards, Provide input as requested to the City regarding the work and progress of RER2
project staff.

73 Maintain complete and efficient working files of RH2’s project activities.

74  Provide timely and accurate billing invoices and billing records for RH2 and for related
subconsultant work,

75  Provide and maintain an administrative structure that allows efficient access to RER2’s project
staff members who work onMDRT projects. Maintain. sufficient workload flexibility to meet the
dynamic workload needs of the MPDs.

7.6 Perform any other services as directed by the City.

Task 8 - Engincering Report Review

81  Review reports and documents created by others for compliance with the Development
Agreemenis and City Municipal Code.

82  Summatize the work and reports as necessary for presentation to other City departments, City
staff or the public regarding reports in support of permits or other development actions.

8.3  Provide peer-review services through subconsultants as requested by the Gity.
84  Perform any other services as directed by the City.

Task 9 - Liaison with Other Departments

91 Meet with other City departments and regional agencies as requested by the City to share
information and maintain a coopetative working environment,

92  Performany other services as directed bythe City.

4711712 10:11 AM JAData\BDs40\2012 MDRT\Conirac\BD MDRT SOW.daex



City of Black Diamond Exhibit A
Master Development Review Team Scope of Work

Task 10 - Agency Coordination

101  Meet with other Agencies as directed by City and assist in developing collaborative and
complimentary solutions to City/Regional issues (ie. sewage conveyance, service area limits,
sustainable permitting, etc.). Develop briefing matetials for City staff as approptiate and provide
data identifying lifecycle cost impacts, LOS impacts, regulatory impacts, and other pertinent data
or evaiuations requested by the City.

4711/12 10:11 AM J\Dawa\BD\s40\2012 MDRT\ACantiact\BD MDRT SOW.docx



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:
Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Consultant Project No.: Fax: 360-888-2592
Consuitant Contact Name:
Consultant Phone:
Consultant Fax:
Scope of Task Raquest
Budget Estimate:
Task Request Approval:
City of Black Diamond:
Wrilten Name Tiile
Signature Date
Consultant:
Written Name Title
Signature Date

*Cosfs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notify the City should additichal funds be necessary to complete
the task order. Additional waork beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence untif written notification is received from

the City.



EXHIBIT C
-RH2 Engineering, Ine,
SCHEDULE OF RATES AND CHARGES
2012 BOURLY RATES
RATE CLASSIFICATION RATE. °
X $199.00 Teehnictan v s127.00 |
VI $199.00 Technician I $£115.00 ¢-
Vit $191.00 Technician I $88.00 }
Technivian 1 $83.00 1 °
Professional VI $177.00
Professional Y $148.00 Administrative v 3118.00 [ -
Professional v $158.00 Administrativa v 30800 ). °
Adwministrative I $400] -
_ oféssional m 314800 Administrative I $63.00 |
© . .]Professional I $137.60 Administrative I $5700 |
Pt IProfessional I 3125.00 F
> _IN-HOUSE SERVICES
g . In-house copies {each) 85" X 11" $0.09 CAD Plois Large $25.00 !s
In-hionse copies (each) 852wt 3014 CAD Plots - Full Size.
| Tn-house capics (each) X1 3020 CAD Plots HalfSize
3| In-house copies (ealor) (each) 85" X 117 $0.90 CAD System Per Hour
n-house copies (color) (each)  8.5" X 14" $1.20 GIS System Per Hour
In-bouse copics {color) (each) 1) X 17" $2.00 Techpology Charge L 25%:
Mileage

Oty DocaztsFes B itz Tropes- 7812 Bries)

A0VDITTHI ARS



RESCLUTION NO. 14-956

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST
ADDENDUM TO THE RH2, INC. CONTRACT TO SERVE AS
THE CIVIL ENGINEERING CONSULTANT TO THE
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

WHEREAS, on April 18, 2012 the Consuitant and the City entered into a contract
via Resolution No. 12-792 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consulfants and the

execution of new contracts with the City; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOwW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the RH2
contract, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

i /@a%

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Aftest:

s X P otns

Brenda L. Martinez, City Cleri&’




FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
RH2 Engineering, Inc.

W)

THIS F}R
Ne.12-792 ngton m
corporation eremafter the "City"), and RH2 Engmeenng, Inc (heremafter the
“Consultant,”) a corperation organized under the laws of the State of Washington,
located and doing business at 22722 — 29" Drive S.E., Suite 210, Bothell, WA 98021.

O
¢
a—-\ 5
(D
r:—iﬂ
&
&
=l
<X
[0}
[{)]
=3
-
oy
0]
O
=
(%]
Q
w
(O]
Q
Q
o
=
(o)
.J
o
5.'
Ef]
=,
ol
2
(—fo
(:J
. ]
3
]
(9]
o
2l

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a
contract for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Coniract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the

execution of new contracts with the City;

WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

Section 1. No Change to Terms and Conditions. With the exception of the
expiration date of the Coniract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.

Section 2. New Expiration Date. The pariies agree {o extend the expiration date
of the Contract, June 30, 2014 to September 30, 2014.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th
day of June, 2014.

Page 1



CONSULTANT .-

By

"Dé; Ervin
its: Vice President

Consuitant: RH2 Engineering

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

By'_&a‘d&@%@&,_@evﬁﬂ_

-Dave Gordon, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol A. Morris, City Attorney's Office

ATTEST:

Brenda Martinez, City Clerk

Page 2



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

Post Office Box 599
AGENDA BILL Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION
SUBJECT: | Agenda Date: September 18, 2014 AB14-086
Resolution No. 14-975, authorizing Mayor Dave Gordon

the Mayor to execute a contract with | | City Administrator

Henderson, Young & Company Inc. F_ Attorney Carol Morris i
City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

\./lty A0y Larli iviOiTis
to serve as the Municipal Fiscal -
P Com Dev/Nat Res — Aaron Nix

Analysis Consultant to the MDRT Finance - May Miller
MDRT/Eco Dev — Andy Williamson X
Cost Impact(also see Financial Note): Police — Chief Kiblinger
Variable
Fund Source: Pass-through expense to Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Yarrow Bay
Timeline: Two year contract w/60 day call Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Agenda Placement: DA Mayor [ | Two Councilmembers [ ] Committee Chair [_] City Administrator

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-975 , proposed contract, Resolution Nos. 12-793& 14-955

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Funding Agreement approved in conjunction with the two Development Agreements (DAs) for the
approved Master Planned Developments (MPDs) of Lawson Hills and The Villages assumes that
consultants will be hired to augment City staff in their work as the MPDs are implemented over time.
Section 13.6 of the two DAs provides the basic structure of how the periodic fiscal analyses are to be
|- performed

The City advertised in the Journal of Commerce, City website and official newspaper to solicit
Statements of Qualifications from firms interested in performing this work. A total of 3 firms submitted
their qualifications; two were chosen to be interviewed. The interview panel consisted of Finance
Director May Miller, Assistant City Administrator Brenda Martinez and Tracey Redd MDRT
Administrative Assistant/Senior Accountant. The unanimous choice of the interview panel was to hire
Henderson & Young, which has performed fiscal analysis work in the past for the City.

Per the terms of the DAs, all costs for consultants must be paid for by the Master Developer (Yarrow
Bay). This contract is for two years and a 10-day termination provision is included, should the City
decide to seck a different consultant at a future date.

FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the
contract will be reimbursed by the Developer.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-975,
authorizing the Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with
Henderson, Young & Company, Inc. to serve as Municipal Fiscal Analysis
Consultant to the MDRT.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

September 18, 2014




RESOLUTION NO. 14-975

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH HENDERSON, YOUNG & COMPANY TO SERVE AS
THE MUNICIPAL FISCAL ANALYSIS CONSULTANT TO
THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
the Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011 the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD
Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement call for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City Staff and outside consultants;

and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide Municipal
Fiscal Analysis services to meet the needs of the MDRT

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a 2 year contract with
Henderson, Young & Company to provide Municipal Fiscal Analysis Services for the
MDRT, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 18TH DAY OF
SEPTEMBER, 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



Exhibit A

CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
HENDERSON & YOUNG AND COMPANY, INC.

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington
municipal corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Henderson, Young and Company,
Inc., (hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State
of Washington, located and doing business at 8060 — 165" Avenue N.E., Suite 220,

e Yat-da)

Redmond, WA 98052.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City does not have sufficient staff resources to provide municipal
fiscal analysis services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, the City has funding available from Yarrow Bay and an approved
budget to fund the oversight, engineering review, inspections, development agreement,
enforcement and to assist the City with its regulatory role; and

WHEREAS, the City has advertised for municipal fiscal analysis services and
selected the best qualified consultant; and

WHEREAS, the City anticipates the need to process permits, oversee public
construction work and coordinate activities with Yarrow Bay to increase over the next

. .year, — s
P 5

WHEREAS, the Consultant has agreed to provide the services described in
Exhibit A (scope of work) under the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS
I. Description of Work.

The Consultant shall be prepared to assist the City with all of the work described
in Exhibit A (General Scope of Work), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference. The municipal fiscal analysis services to be provided to the City by
the Consultant shall be identified in on-call task requests for each project task for which
the City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant
under this Agreement except pursuant to such an on call task request issued by the City
in the form attached as Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by this reference.
Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task request in
accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request
(Exhibit B).

Page 1


bmartinez
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A


Il. Payment

A. The City shall pay the Consultant an amount based on time and materials,
not to exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for the services described
in Section | herein. This is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement for the
work described in Exhibit A, and shall not be exceeded without the prior written
authorization of the City in the form of a negotiated and executed supplemental
agreement. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the City reserves the right to direct the
Consuitant's compensated services under the time frame set forth in Section iV herein
before reaching the maximum amount. The progress billings for the work completed
shall be compensated according to the rates and charges identified in Exhibit C, which

is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

B. The Consuitant shall submit monthly invoices to the City after such services
have been performed, and a final bill upon completion of all the services described in
this Agreement. The City shall pay the full amount of an invoice within sixty (60) days of
receipt. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the
Consultant of the same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay
that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and the parties shall immediately make every
effort to settle the disputed portion.

lll. Relationship of Parties

The parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be

__created by this Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in _an

independently established trade which encompasses the specific service provided to
the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative or sub-consultant of the
Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, representative or
sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details
of the work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.
None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees including, but not limited to,
compensation, insurance, and unemployment insurance are available from the City to
the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-consultants of the Consultant. The
Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its
agents, employees, representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this
Agreement. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder.

IV. Duration of Work
The Consultant shall perform the work according to the City’s direction, as
described in Section | of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect for a period

of two (2) years from the effective date, which is the date this Agreement is signed by
both parties.

Page 2



V. Termination

A. Termination of Agreement. The City may terminate this Agreement, for public
convenience, the Consultant's default, the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
Consultant's assignment for the benefit of creditors, at any time prior to completion of
the work described in Exhibit A. If delivered to Consultant in person, termination shall be
effective immediately upon the Consultant's receipt of the City's written notice or such
date stated in the City's notice, whichever is later.

B. Rights Upon Termination. In the event of termination, the City shall pay for all
services satisfactorily performed by the Consultant to the effective date of termination,
as described on a final invoice submitted to the City. Said amount shall not exceed the
amount in Section |l above. After termination, the City may take possession of all
records and data within the Consultant’s possession pertaining to this Agreement, which
records and data may be used by the City without restriction. Upon termination, the City
may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or
otherwise.

V1. Discrimination

In the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this Agreement or any
sub-contract hereunder, the Consultant, its Subcontractors, or any person acting on
behalf of such Consultant or sub-consultant shall not by reason of race, religion, color,
sex, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability,

which the employment relates.

____discriminate_against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to

VIl. Indemnification

The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages,
losses or suits, including all legal Costs and attorneys' fees, arising out of or in
connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages
caused by the sole negligence of the City. The City's inspection or acceptance of any of
the Consultant's work when completed shall not be grounds to avoid any of these
covenants of indemnification.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and Volunteers,
the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's

negligence.

IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S
WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY

Page 3



FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. THE
CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
SECTION DOES NOT INCLUDE, OR EXTEND TO. ANY CLAIMS BY THE
CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES DIRECTLY AGAINST THE CONSULTANT.

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

VIIl. Insurance

A. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement,
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise
from or in connection with the Consultant's own work including the work of the
Consultant's agents, representatives, employees, sub-consultants or sub-contractors.

B. Before beginning work on the project described in this Agreement, the
Consultant shall provide evidence, in the form of a Certificate of Insurance, of the
following insurance coverage and limits (at a minimum):

1. Business auto coverage for any auto no less than a $1,000,000 each
accident limit, and

2. Commercial General Liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per

limited to, contractual liability, products and completed operations, property
damage, and employers liability, and

3. Professional Liability insurance with no less than $1,000,000. All
policies and coverage's shall be on a claims made basis.

C. The Consultant is responsible for the payment of any deductible or self
insured retention that is required by any of the Consultant's insurance. If the City is
required to contribute to the deductible under any of the Consultant's insurance policies,
the Contractor shall reimburse the City the full amount of the deductible within 10
working days of the City's deductible payment.

D. The City of Black Diamond shall be named as an additional insured on the
Consultant's commercial general liability policy. This additional insured endorsement
shall be included with evidence of insurance in the form of a Certificate of Insurance for
coverage necessary in Section B. The City reserves the right to receive a certified and
complete copy of all of the Consultant’s insurance policies.

E. Under this agreement, the Consultant's insurance shall be considered primary

in the event of a loss, damage or suit. The City's own comprehensive general liability
policy will be considered excess coverage with respect to defense and indemnity of the

Page 4

occurrence with a $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but is not



City only and no other party. Additionally, the Consultant's commercial general liability
policy must provide cross-liability coverage as could be achieved under a standard [SO
separation of insured's clause.

‘ F. The Consultant shall request from his insurer a modification of the ACORD
certificate to include language that prior written notification will be given to the City of
Black Diamond at least 30 days in advance of any cancellation, suspension or material
change in the Consultant's coverage.

IX. Exchange of Information

The City warrants the accuracy of any information supplied by it to the Consultant for
the purpose of completion of the work under this Agreement. The parties agree that the
Consultant will notify the City of any inaccuracies in the information provided by the City
as may be discovered in the process of performing the work, and that the City is entitled
to rely upon any information supplied by the Consultant which results as a product of
this Agreement.

X. Ownership and Use of Records and Documents

Original documents, drawings, designs and reports developed under this Agreement
shall belong to and become the property of the City. All written information submitted by
the City to the Consultant in connection with the services performed by the Consultant

as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business. If such
information is publicly available or is already in Consultant's possession or known to it,
or is rightfully obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no
responsibility for its disclosure, inadvertent or otherwise.

Xl. City's Right of Inspection

Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control
and direct the performance ,and details of the work authorized under this Agreement,
the work must meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general
right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. The Consultant agrees
to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now
effective or become applicable within the terms of this Agreement to the Consultant's
business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement
or accruing out of the performance of such operations.

Xll. Consultant to Maintain Records to Support Independent Contractor Status

On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall
comply with all federal and state laws applicable to Independent contractors including,

Page 5



but not limited to the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all
Items of income and expenses of the Consultant's business, pursuant to the Revised
Code of Washington (RCW) Section 51.08.195, as required to show that the services
performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer-
employee relationship between the parties which is subject to RCW Title 51, Industrial
Insurance.

XIll. Work Performed at the Consultant’s Risk

The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the
safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work
hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. All work shall be
done at the Consultant's own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss
of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held by the Consuitant for use
In connection with the work.

XIV. Non-Waiver of Breach

The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and
agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or more
instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants,
agreements, or options and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

XV. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law

Should any dispute, misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the City of Black
Diamond shall determine the term or provision's true intent or meaning. The City of
Black Diamond shall also decide all questions which may arise between the parties
relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance
hereunder.

If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions of
this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor or Administrator's determination
in a reasonable time, or if the Consultant does not agree with the City's decision on the
disputed matter, jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in King County
Superior Court, King County, Washington. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The non-prevailing
party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay the other parties'
expenses and reasonable attorney's fees.

XVL1. Written Notice

Page 6



All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the
addresses listed on the signature page of the agreement, unless notified to the contrary.
Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective upon
the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given
if sent to the addressee at the address stated below:

CONSULTANT: CITY:

Attn: Randall Young Attn: Andrew Williamson
Henderson, Young & Co. City of Black Diamond
8060 165™ Ave. N.E., Suite 200 P.O. Box 599

Redmond, WA 98052 24301 Roberts Drive

Black Diamond, WA 98010

With a copy to the “City Clerk” at the same
address.

XVIl. Assignment

Any assignment of this Agreement by the Consultant without the written consent of the
City shall be void. If the City shall give its consent to any assignment, this paragraph
shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall be made without
the City's consent.

XVIIL. Modification and Severability

No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and
the Consultant.

The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. If any provision of this
Agreement is for any reasons held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity
or constitutionality of any other provision.

XIX. Entire Agreement

The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with any Exhibits attached
hereto. shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other representative
of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering into
or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement or the
Agreement documents. The entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereunder is contained in this Agreement and any Exhibits attached
hereto, which may or may not have been executed prior to the execution of this
Agreement. All of the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement and

Page 7



form the Agreement document as fully as if the same were set forth herein. Should any
language in any of the Exhibits to this Agreement conflict with any language contained
in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this __ day of

, 2014,

-Randall L. Young
Its President

Consultant: Henderson Young
& Co.

.Dave Gordon, Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol Morris; City At'tci)rrneym ]

ATTEST:

Brenda Martinez, City Clerk

Page 8



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Page 9



EXHIBIT A

General Scope of Work

The Consultant will provide municipal fiscal analysis services to the City for the benefit of the
City, including but not limited to the following services:

1. Research, analysis and recommendation of comparable cities to be used in fiscal impact
analysis.

2. Review and evaluation of each fiscal impact analysis submitted by the Master Developer,
including evaluation of the consistency of the Master Developer’s fiscal impact analysis
with the requirements of the Development Agreements, and the specific methodologies,
data, assumptions, calculations, spreadsheets and conclusions provided by the Master
Developer.

3. Monitor changes in municipal finance caused by new laws, voter initiatives, regulations,
court decisions, and best practices and advise the City when changes effect the fiscal
analysis of the City.

4. Preparation of annual review of projections of fiscal analysis compared to the City’s
budget.

5. Preparation of payment schedule for funding of any deficits.

6. Preparation of reports, memos, and presentations of the results of municipal fiscal
analyses reviews, evaluations, and recommendations prepared by Consultant.

7. Preparation for and participation in meetings of MDRT and the Master Developer

8. Preparation for and participation in meetings of the MDRT, Planning Commission,
and/or City Council.

9. Preparation for and participation in other meetings that the City authorizes Consultant to
attend.

10. Provide expert testimony.

11.  Other municipal fiscal analysis services requested by the City.

As provided by Section 2.1 of this Agreement, the municipal fiscal analysis services to be
provided to the City by the Consultant shall be identified in on on-call task requests for each
project task for which the City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by
Consultant under this Agreement except pursuant to such an on-call task request issued by the
City in the form attached as Exhibit “B.” Consultant shall perform the services described in the
on-call task request in accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call
task request (the “Scope of Task Request”).



EXHIBIT B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:
Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Consultant Project No.: Fax: 360-886-2592

Consultant Contact
Name:

Consultant Phone:

Consultant Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:

City of Black Diamond:
Written Name Title
Signature Date
Consultant:
Written Name Title
Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notify the City should additional funds be
necessary to complete the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence
until written notification is received from the City.



EXHIBIT C

Billing Rates and Reimburseable Expenses

Henderson,
Young &
Company
RATE SCHEDULE
2014
Category Rate
Principal $215.00 per hour
Associate $165.00  per hour
Support $ 75.00 perhour
_Mileage ~~$0.56 _ per mile

Miscellaneous At Cost



RESOLUTION NO., 12-793

A RESCLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH HENDERSON & YOUNG TO SERVE AS THE
MUNICIPAL FISCAL ANALYSIS CONSULTANT TO THE
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM.

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Councll approved Master Planned Development permits for
The Villages and Lawson Hilis MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered intc a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD

Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement calls for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City staff and outside consultants:

and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on staff the full range of expertise to provide
municipal fiscal analysis to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, private firms providing municipal fiscal analysis services were invited to
submit Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, a panel consisting of staff and one City Council member reviewed the
submitfals, subsequently interviewed three firms and then unanimously recommended
Henderson & Young as the firm most capable of providing municipal fiscal analysis
services as desired;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized fo execute a contract with Henderson &
Young to provide municipal fiscal analysis services for the MDRT, substantially in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A.



PASSED BY THE CITY CQUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREQF, THIS 19" DAY OF APRIL,

2012.
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

e~ O

Rebecca Clness, Mayor

Altest:

Pyrncte X ST lantiren

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk (/




CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement™), for reference purposes
only, is dated, April 11%, 2012 and is entered into by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City”)
Physical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive

Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Andrew Williamson Phone: 360-886-5700 Fax: 360-886-2592

and

Henderson, Young & Company (“ the Consultant”)

8060 — 165™ Ave, NE, Suite 220

Redmond, WA 98052

Contact: Randall Young  Phone: 425-869-1786 Fax: 423-869-5669

Tax ID No.: 84-0780133

For non-exclusive on-call professional services for the City of Black Diamond.

TERMS AND CONDITTIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1 Consultant has been refained by the City to provide professional municipal fiscal
analysis on-call services generally described in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement
as Exhibit

"A." The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Work nor shall the
Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that provided in this Agreement
without the prior written authorization of the City.

1.2 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

1.3 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agreement and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its
subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in 2 manner consistent with that degree

Professional Services Agreement with Henderson, Young & Company

Page1of8



of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in
similar circurnstances.

2. Schedule of Work

2.1  The City will issue an on on-call task request for each project task for which the

Citv requires Consultant services. No work ghall he commenced hv Consultant under this

Aty ALy LASLIALGLIL SRA VIS e sUgll U SULIALSIIVES

Agteement except pursuant to such an on-call task request issued by the City in the form
attached as Exhibit "B." Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task
request in accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request.

2.2 Time is of the essence as to the work provided in the Scope of Work. Consultant
will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that if, and its subconsultants, will have
adequate staffing at all times in order to complete the Scope of Work in a timely manner. If
factors beyond Consultant's confrol that could not have been reasonably foreseen as of the date
of this Agreement cause delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether
an extension is appropriate. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any
delay, or potential delay, that may trigger the nged for a time extension within 3 business days
after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

23  Consultant is authorized fo proceed with services upon execution of this
agresment.

3. Compensation

C 3.1  Rates. Compensation for the services provided pursmant to each on-call task
request shall be on a time and expenses basis according to the list of billing rates and
reimbursable expenses attached herefo as Exhibit "C". Consultant may adjust the billing rates
and reimbursable expenses once each calendar year on or after January 1st by providing the City
with written notice of the adjusted rates and expenses no less than (30) thirty days prior to the
effective date of such adjustment. The billing rates and reimbursable expenses for on-call task
orders authorized prior to receipt of written notice of the rate/expense adjustment by the City
shall not be affected by the adjustment.

32  Other. In the event that after commencement of work, the Consultant anticipates
that the work for an on-call task request will exceed the initial amount authorized, Consultant
shall promptly notify the City and provide the City with whatever documentation or information
is necessary to request approval of any amounts in excess thereof.

4, Payment

4.1  Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly invoices, in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to
the date of the invoice,

Professional Services Agreement with Henderson, Young & Company

Page2 of 8

-, -




4.2  All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

43  Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement. Consultant shall make copies available to
the City on request.

44  If the services rendeted do not mect the requirements of the Agreement,

Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

5. Discrimination and Compliance with T.aws

5.1 Consultant agrees not fo discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational gualification.

5.2  Consultant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
Iaws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

5.3  Aay violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the

City.

6. Suspeasion and Termination of Agreement

6.1  The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10) days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other material
prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City. In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such analyses and records as may be necessary to place ifs files in order. Consultant shall be
entitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior fo the date of
suspension or termination,

6.2  Any notice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Apgreement shall specify the anticipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends. ‘

Professional Services Agreement with Henderson, Young & Company

Page3of §



7. Siandard of Care

7.1  Consultant represents and warranis that it has the requisite training, skilt,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately
accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similar circumstances. Consultant understands and agrees that the services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement are for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no
third party shall have authority to authorize, approve, direct or control any of the services
rendered to the City pursuant to this Agreement.

8. Ownership of Work Product

8.1  Ownership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement, Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

8.2  The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify

Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the writien authorization of Consultant.

8.3  Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City see fit,
including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9, Indemnification/Hold Harmless

9.1 Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attomey fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, errots, or
omissions of Consultant or ifs subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Provided, however, that if any
such claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits result from the comcurrent negligence of
Consultant and the city, it is expressly agreed that Consultant’s obligations and indemnity under
this paragraph shall be effective only to the extent of Consultant’s negligence.

Professional Services Agreement with Henderson, Young & Company

Paged of 8




10. Imsurance

10.1  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and
shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, ar employees.

10.2  Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
insurance:

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide contractual Hability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage and shall
cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent coniractors, personal injury, and
advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with Limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c, Workers” Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
laws of the State of Washingfon.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than §1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

103 The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are fo contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:;

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-3-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except after thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

10.4  The City shall be named as an additional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

10.5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VIL

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not less than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work.
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy

Professional Services Agreement with Hendersen, Young & Company

Page Sof 8



Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10} days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance wiitten on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services to be performed. It shall be a material breach of this

Agreement for Consultant to fail fo procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 orto m'nwﬁe' the m’nn’F of such insurance fo the City as nrgwdgd for in this Agresment.

11. Assigning or Subcontraeting

11.1  Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract, or encimber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

12. Independent Contractor

12.1 Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agreement, independent contractors.

13. Notice

13.I  All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when personally delivered, when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: : City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Chris Bacha
Kenyon Disend, PLLC
11 Front Street South
Issaquah, WA 98027
Fax: 425-392-7071

Consultant; Randall Young, President
Henderson, Young & Company
8060 — 165" Ave. NE Suite 220
Redmond, WA 88052
Fax: 425-869-5669

Professional Services Agreement with Henderson, Young & Company

Page6of 8




14, Disputes

14.1 Any action for claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
governed by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shall be in King County Superior
Court, Kent, Washington.

15. Attorney Fees

151 In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reasonable attorney fees from the other party.

16. General Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or his/her designee( the contract
Administrator) shall review and approve Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement
and shall have primary responsibility for overseeing and approving work or services to be
performed by Consultant. . Consultant understands and agrees that any and all work to be
performed pursmant to this Agreement must be approved in advance by the contract
Administrator. No third party, including the project applicant, shall have any direct conirol or
influence over the services performed under this Contract.

17. Extent of Agreement/Modification

17.1  This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Apreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. After City Council approval, this
Agreement shall be in effect as of April 20, 2012 and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2014,
unless sooner terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement may only be amended, modified,
or added to by written instrument properly signed by both parties. The parties acknowledge the
general contract rule that a clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting oral modifications
is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure certainty as to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the pariies waive this general contract rule.

18. Conflict of Interest; Non-Coliusion

18.1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
or indirect, in this Contract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations. The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and cbligations hereunder. The
Consultant further covenants that, in performance of this Contract, o person having any such

Professional Services Agyeement with Henderson, Young & Cempany

Page7of 8



inierest shall be employed by the Consultant. The contractor’s officers, employees or agents
shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from the project
applicant or any affiliate or agent of the project applicant.

18.2 The Contractor warrants and represents that the Contractor has not, nor has any

other member, smployee, representative, agent or officer of the Contractor, entered into or
offered to enter into any combination, collnsion or asreement with Ay person or egﬁty to

VidTiwae 37 Walun aaAlvU fial MARRLAVLAGLI sy SV ALSATLL L SpaTanitin

receive or pay, and that he has not recetved or paid, any sum of money or other consideration
for the execution of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and

conditions hereof.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONSULTANT
By \é&_u_/ @.Qwu g m/

Rebecea Olness Pnnted{(lame Randall .. Yﬁﬁ
Its: Mayor Its: Vice President
Date: 4-86 -12— Date: April 11%2012
Aftest:

By:
Jb?md,u 7 MM%
Brenda L. Martinez

City Clerk

Professional Services Agreement with Henderson, Young & Coampany

Page8ofi 8




EXHIBIT A

General Scope of Work

The Consultant will provide municipal fiscal analysis services to the City for the benefit of the
City, including but not limited to the following services:

1. Research, analysis and recommendation of comparable cities to be used in fiscal impact
analysis.

2. Review and evaluation of each fiscal impact analysis submitted by the Master Developer,
including evaluation of the consistency of the Master Developer’s fiscal impact analysis
with the requirements of the Development Agreements, and the specific methodologies,
data, assumptions, calculations, spreadsheets and conclusions provided by the Master
Developer.

3. Monitor changes in municipal finance caused by new laws, voter initiatives, regulations,
court decisions, and best practices and advise the City when changes effect the fiscal
analysis of the City.

4. Preparation of annual review of projections of fiscal analysis compared to the City’s
budget.

5. Preparation of payment schedule for funding of any deficits.

6.  Preparation of reports, memos, and presentations of the results of municipal fiscal
analyses reviews, evaluations, and recommendations prepared by Consultant.

7. Preparation for and participation in meetings of MDRT and the Master Developer

8.  Preparation for and participation in meetings of the MDRT, Planning Commission,

-——————— —andfor City Council.

9.  Preparation for and participation in other meetings that the City authorizes Consultant to
attend.

10. Provide expert testimony.

11.  Other municipal fiscal analysis services requested by the City.

As provided by Section 2.1 of this Agreement, the municipal fiscal analysis services to be
provided fo the City by the Consultant shall be identified in on on-call task requesis for each
project task for which the City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by
Consultant under this Agreement except pursuant to such an on-call task request issued by the
City in the form attached as Exhibit “B.” Consultant shall perform the services described in the
on-call task request in accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call
task request (the *“Task Scope of Work™).

Professional Services Agreement

Page9ofll



EXHIBIT B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:

Task Name: Phone: 360-888-5700
Consuitant Project No.: Fax; 360-886-2592
Consuitant Contact

Name:

Censuliant Phone:

Consultant Fax:

Scope of Task Request
Budget Estimate:
Task Request Approval:
City of Black Diamond:
Wiitten Name Tiile
Signature Date
Consuitant;
Written Name Title
Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materals basis, the Consultant shall nofify the City shauld additianal funds be
necessary fo complete the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shail not commance

unfil written nofification Is received from the City.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 10 0f 11



EXHIBIT C

Billing Rates and Reimburseable Expenses

Henderson,
Young &
Company
RATE SCHEDULE
2012
Category Rate
Principal $215.00  per hour
Associate $165.00  per hour
Support $ 75.00 per hour
Mileage $0.50 permile
o Miscellanecus At Cost R

Professional Services Agreement

Page 11 of 11



RESOLUTION NO. 14-855

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY GF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TC EXECUTE THE FIRST
ADDENDUM TO THE HENDERSON, YOUNG & COMPANY,
INC. CONTRACT TO SERVE AS THE MUNICIPAL FISCAL
ANALYSIS  CONSULTANT TO THE  MASTER
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

=5 B =3 W ihmTw

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract
via Resolution No. 12-793 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like fo extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultanis and the
execution of new contracts with the City; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the criginal Confract;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby autheorized to execute the first addendum to the
Henderson, Young & Company contract, substantiaily in the form atfached herefo as

Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

ﬂ_lx AL (224%/ Q@a &w_..

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Attest:

Pyuncd ¥ “/ﬂ/wﬁ?}tﬂa/

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk




FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
Handerson, Young & Co,
THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Serviees Contract via Rasolution
M0.12-783 executed between tha Cily of Blatk Diamond, & Washinglon municipal
corparation (hﬁg&nnaﬁer the "City"), and Henderson Young & Co., {hereinafter the
“Consultant,”) & corporation crganized Uﬂti&? the laws of the Biale of Washington,
foeated and dc:mg business at 8080 - 185" Ave. N.E., Suite 220, Redmond, WA

53052,
RECITALS

WHEREAS, on April 18, 2012, the Consultant and the Gty endered inlo a
contract for on-going sedvices 85 described In ihat Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the Clly weuld like to extend the
contract while it complies with siate law for the selection of consultants and the
axacution of new conlracts with the City,

WHEREAS, the Consuftant agrees to continue its performance of services tindet
thas same fEﬁﬂE Bﬂd cmcﬁ’txang inn the nﬁgmaf Gcniract;

QDW "FHEREFQRE i t‘:i}nsidaraimn of the muiua! promises sei Ec:rfh herein, it
is agread by and belween the parlies as follows:

TERMS

Section 1. No Changs to Terms snd Condilions, With the exceplion of the
gxpiration date of the Conlract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and
conditions of the Coantract shall remain the same,

Section 2. Mew Expiration Date. The pariies agree to extend the expiration date
of the Contract June 30, 2012 to Septamber 30, 2044,

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parlies have executed this Agreement on this 5th
day of June, 2014,

Page 1



COMNSULTANT

By: /gy”f‘i W

Randal L. Young &%
its: President

Consultant: Henderson, Young
& Company, Ine.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

SR O N A= L
Dave Gordon, Mayar

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carel A. korris, City Attorney’s Office

Pags 2



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION _
SUBJECT: Agenda Date: September 18, 2014 AB14-087
Resolution No. 14-976, authorizing Mayor Dave Gordon
the Mayor to execute contract with City Administrator

City Attorney Caro! Morris

Perteet, Inc. to serve as the : i
City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

Wetland/Environmental Consultant Com Dev/Nat Reo — Aron Nix

to the MDRT Finance — May Miller :
MDRT/Eco Dev — Andy Williamson X
Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note): Variable Police — Chief Kiblinger
Fund Source: Pass-through expense to Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Yarrow Bay
Timeline: Two year contract w/10 day call Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Agenda Placement: X Mayor [ ] Two Councilmembers [_| Committee Chair [_| City Administrator

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-976, proposed contract, Resolution Nos. 12-802 & 14-954

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Funding Agreement approved in conjunction with the two Development Agreements (DAs) for the
approved Master Planned Developments (MPDs) of Lawson Hills and The Villages assumes that
consultants will be hired to augment City staff in their work as the MPDS are implemented over time.
There will be significant needs for professional wetland review assistance to help with review of specific
implementing projects (plats, multifamily housing, commercial projects), and possibly infrastructure
improvements such a water and sewer line extensions. - :

The City advertised in the Journal of Commerce, City website and official newspaper to solicit
Statements of Qualifications from firms interested in performing this work. A total of 3 firms submitted
their qualifications; two were chosen to be interviewed. The interview panel consisted of Community
Development/Natural Resources Director Aaron Nix, MDRT/Economic Development Director Andrew
Williamson and Public Works Administrative Assistant Scott Hanis. The choice of the interview panel
was to hire Perteet Inc.

Per the terms of the DAs, all costs for consultants must be paid for by the Master Developer (Yarrow
Bay). This agreement shall be in effect for two years. However, a 10-day termination provision is

included, should the City decide to seek a different consultant or hire its own staff at a future date.

The Professional Services Agreement is consistent with the format recently accepted by Council.

FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the
contract will be reimbursed by the Developer.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-976, authorizing the
Mayor to execute an amendment to the contract with Perteet, Inc. to serve as
Environmental Consultant to the MDRT.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

September 18, 2014




RESOLUTION NO. 14-976

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH PERTEET INC. TO SERVE AS THE ENIRONMENTAL
CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
TEAM

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
the Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011 the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD
Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement call for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City Staff and outside consultants;
and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide
Environmental Services to meet the needs of the MDRT;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a 2 year contract with Perteet
Inc. to provide on-call Environmental Consulting Services for the MDRT, substantially in
the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 18TH DAY OF
SEPTEMBER, 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



Exhibit A

CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
Perteet, Inc.

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington
municipal corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Perteet, Inc., (hereinafter the

“Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington
located and doina husiness at 2707 (‘nlh\l Avenue, Suite 900, Everett, WA 98201

WAL Y MuUvHiIivow O Al e VAIINILL, VWV Y VULV 1.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide
environmental consulting services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, the City has funding available from YarrowBay and an approved
budget to fund the oversight, engineering review, inspections development agreement
enforcement and assisting the City with the regulatory role

WHEREAS, the City has advertised for environmental consulting services and
selected the best qualified consultant; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant has agreed to provide the services described in
Exhibit A (scope of work) under the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS
I. Description of Work.

The Consultant shall be prepared to assist the City with all of the work described
in Exhibit A (General Scope of Work), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference. The municipal fiscal analysis services to be provided to the City by
the Consultant shall be identified in on-call task requests for each project task for which
the City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant
under this Agreement except pursuant to such an on call task request issued by the City
in the form attached as Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by this reference.
Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task request in

Page 1


bmartinez
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A


accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request
(Exhibit B).

Il. Payment

A. The City shall pay the Consultant an amount based on time and materials,
not to exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for the services described
in Section | herein. This is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement for the

work described in Exhibit A, and shall not be exceeded without the prior written
authorization of the City in the form of a negotiated and executed supplemental
agreement. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the City reserves the right to direct the
Consultant's compensated services under the time frame set forth in Section IV herein
before reaching the maximum amount. The progress billings for the work completed
shall be compensated according to the rates and charges identified in Exhibit C, which

is incorporated herein by this reference.

B. The Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to the City after such services
have been performed, and a final bill upon completion of all the services described in
this Agreement. The City shall pay the full amount of an invoice within sixty (60) days of
receipt. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the
Consultant of the same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay
that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and the parties shall immediately make every
effort to settle the disputed portion.

lll. Relationship of Parties

The parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be
created by this Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an
independently established trade which encompasses the specific service provided to
the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative or sub-consultant of the
Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, representative or
sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details
of the work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.
None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees including, but not limited to,
compensation, insurance, and unemployment insurance are available from the City to
the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-consultants of the Consultant. The
Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its
agents, employees, representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this
Agreement. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder.

IV. Duration of Work

The Consultant shall perform the work according to the City’s direction, as
described in Section | of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect for a period

Page 2



of two (2) years from the effective date, which is the date this Agreement is signed by
both parties.

V. Termination

A. Termination of Agreement. The City may terminate this Agreement, for public
convenience, the Consultant's default, the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
Consultant's assignment for the benefit of creditors, at any time prior to completion of
the work described in Exhibit A. If delivered to Consultant in person, termination shall be

effective immediately upon the Consultant's receipt of the City's written notice or such
date stated in the City's notice, whichever is later.

B. Rights Upon Termination. In the event of termination, the City shall pay for all
services satisfactorily performed by the Consultant to the effective date of termination,
as described on a final invoice submitted to the City. Said amount shall not exceed the
amount in Section Il above. After termination, the City may take possession of all
records and data within the Consultant’s possession pertaining to this Agreement, which
records and data may be used by the City without restriction. Upon termination, the City
may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or
otherwise.

VI. Discrimination

In the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this Agreement or any
. behalf of such Consultant or sub-consuitant shall not by reason of race, religion, color,
sex, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability,
discriminate against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to
which the employment relates.

VII. Indemnification

The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages,
losses or suits, including all legal Costs and attorneys' fees, arising out of or in
connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages
caused by the sole negligence of the City. The City's inspection or acceptance of any of
the Consultant's work when completed shall not be grounds to avoid any of these
covenants of indemnification.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is Subject to
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and Volunteers,
the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's
negligence.

Page 3



IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S
WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY
FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. THE
CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THIS

SECTION DOES NOT INCLUDE, OR EXTEND TO. ANY CLAIMS BY THE
CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES DIRECTLY AGAINST THE CONSULTANT.

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

VIl. Insurance

A. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement,
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise
from or in connection with the Consultant's own work including the work of the
Consultant's agents, representatives, employees, sub-consultants or sub-contractors.

B. Before beginning work on the project described in this Agreement, the
Consultant shall provide evidence, in the form of a Certificate of Insurance, of the
following insurance coverage and limits (at a minimum):

1. Business auto coverage for any auto no less than a $1,000,000 each
accident limit, and

2. Commercial General Liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per

occurrence with a $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but is not

limited to, contractual liability, products and completed operations, property
damage, and employers liability, and

3. Professional Liability insurance with no less than $1,000,000. All
policies and coverage's shall be on a claims made basis.

C. The Consultant is responsible for the payment of any deductible or self
insured retention that is required by any of the Consultant's insurance. If the City is
required to contribute to the deductible under any of the Consultant's insurance policies,
the Contractor shall reimburse the City the full amount of the deductible within 10 .
working days of the City's deductible payment.

D. The City of Black Diamond shall be named as an additional insured on the
Consultant's commercial general liability policy. This additional insured endorsement
shall be included with evidence of insurance in the form of a Certificate of Insurance for
coverage necessary in Section B. The City reserves the right to receive a certified and
complete copy of all of the Consultant’s insurance policies.

Page 4



E. Under this agreement, the Consultant's insurance shall be considered primary
in the event of a loss, damage or suit. The City's own comprehensive general liability
policy will be considered excess coverage with respect to defense and indemnity of the
City only and no other party. Additionally, the Consultant's commercial general liability
policy must provide cross-liability coverage as could be achieved under a standard ISO
separation of insured's clause.

C Tha Chanciiltant chall raniiact fram hic inciirar a mandifiratinn Af the ACNORND
1 . 1 1IT wutioulitalit olidall IU\.’UUOL VLT THO HOoUIGi QG 1TTITUMTHTIVALIVIT UL U IC MUY
certificate to include language that prior written notification will be given to the City of

Black Diamond at least 30 days in advance of any cancellation, suspension or material
change in the Consultant's coverage.

IX. Exchange of Information

The City warrants the accuracy of any information supplied by it to the Consultant for
the purpose of completion of the work under this Agreement. The parties agree that the
Consultant will notify the City of any inaccuracies in the information provided by the City
as may be discovered in the process of performing the work, and that the City is entitled
to rely upon any information supplied by the Consultant which results as a product of
this Agreement.

X. Cwnership and Use of Records and Documents

shall belong to and become the property of the City. All written information submitted by
the City to the Consultant in connection with the services performed by the Consultant
under this Agreement will be safeguarded by the Consultant to at least the same extent
as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business. If such
information is publicly available or is already in Consultant's possession or known to it,
or is rightfully obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no
responsibility for its disclosure, inadvertent or otherwise.

Xl. City's Right of Inspection

Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control
and direct the performance ,and details of the work authorized under this Agreement,
the work must meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general
right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. The Consultant agrees
to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now
effective or become applicable within the terms of this Agreement to the Consultant's
business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement
or accruing out of the performance of such operations.

XIl. Consultant to Maintain Records to Support Independent Contractor Status

Page 5



On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall
comply with all federal and state laws applicable to Independent contractors including,
but not limited to the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all
ltems of income and expenses of the Consultant's business, pursuant to the Revised
Code of Washington (RCW) Section 51.08.195, as required to show that the services
performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer-
employee relationship between the parties which is subject to RCW Title 51, Industrial

Ineiiranca
1 DI LA 1V,

XIill. Work Performed at the Consultant’s Risk

The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the
safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work
hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. All work shall be
done at the Consultant's own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss
of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held by the Consultant for use
In connection with the work.

X1V. Non-Waiver of Breach

The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and
agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or more
instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants,
agreements, or options and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

XV. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law

Should any dispute, misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the City of Black
Diamond shall determine the term or provision's true intent or meaning. The City of
Black Diamond shall also decide all questions which may arise between the parties
relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance
hereunder.

If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions of
this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor or Administrator's determination
in a reasonable time, or if the Consultant does not agree with the City's decision on the
disputed matter, jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in King County
Superior Court, King County, Washington. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The non-prevailing
party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay the other parties'
expenses and reasonable attorney's fees.

Page 6



XVI. Written Notice

All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the
addresses listed on the signature page of the agreement, unless notified to the contrary.
Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective upon
the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given
if sent to the addressee at the address stated below:

CONSULTANT: CITY:

Attn: Jason Walker Attn: Andrew Williamson
Perteet, Inc. City of Black Diamond
2707 Colby Avenue, Suite 900 P.O. Box 599

Everett, WA 98201 24301 Roberts Drive

Black Diamond, WA 98010

With a copy to the “City Clerk” at the same
address.

XVII. Assignment

Any assignment of this Agreement by the Consultant without the written consent of the
City shall be void. If the City shall give its consent to any assignment, this paragraph
shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall be made without
the City's consent.

XVIII. Modification and Severability

No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and
the Consultant.

The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. If any provision of this
Agreement is for any reasons held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutiona1ity shall not affect the validity
or constitutionality of any other provision.

XIX. Entire Agreement

The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with any Exhibits attached
hereto. shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other representative
of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering into
or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement or the
Agreement documents. The entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereunder is contained in this Agreement and any Exhibits attached

Page 7



hereto, which may or may not have been executed prior to the execution of this
Agreement. All of the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement and
form the Agreement document as fully as if the same were set forth herein. Should any
language in any of the Exhibit A, B and C to this Agreement conflict with any language
contained in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this
day of , 2014.

CONSULTANT CITY OF BELACK DIAMOND

By: By:
Crystal Donner Dave Gordon, Mayor
Its: President

Consultant: Perteet, Inc.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol Morris
City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:

Brenda Martinez, City Clerk

Page 8



EXHIBIT A
SCOPE OF SERVICES

Page 9



ofWor _‘ , ~ Perteet

Exhibit A (General S

Agreement with Perteet Inc.

The City of Black Diamond will contract with Perteet Inc. to provide on-call environmental consulting
services on an as-needed basis to conduct third-party development reviews associated with
environmentally sensitive areas and related documents (i.e. wetlands, streams, and fish and wildlife
conservation areas, buffers, and related resources) as described in the Black Diamond Municipal Code

(Code).
Consuiting services may generally inciude the foillowing tasks as requested by the City:

e Pre-submittal consultation with applicants and/or city staff

e Review and findings of submitted applications, sensitive areas studies, SEPA Checklists/EISs,
mitigation plans, and related documents prepared by others for the purpose of sensitive areas
identification, review of impacts, and mitigation evaluation

¢ Field inspections and findings to verify conditions of sensitive areas relating to proposed impacts
and/or mitigation

e Review and findings of utilities plans, grading plans, stormwater management plans, stream
culvert designs, geotechnical reports, and other reports, studies, and drawings for the evaluation
of impacts and mitigation to sensitive areas and related habitats

e Code consistency and/or related policy review and findings
e Review and findings of exceptions, variances, or other requested deviations from Code

e Review and findings of draft sensitive areas notices to be recorded on title

o Review and findings of mitigation, maintenance, and monitoring costs estimates for the posting
of financial guarantees by applicants

e Verbal and written correspondence and coordination with applicants and/or City staff

e Assistance with staff reports and preparation/review of meeting/hearing materials and exhibits
e Interagency coordination

e Attendance and/or testimony at city council or other public meetings or hearings

e Pre-construction meeting attendance and related correspondence

e Review and findings of demarcated clearing limits for the protection of sensitive areas by
applicants prior to the commencement of construction

e Construction and post-construction related third-party monitoring inspections and compliance
review and findings

o Review and findings of any reported violations and subsequent corrective restoration or
mitigation for violations caused by applicants or their contractors

On-Call Environmental Consulting Services Page | Scope of Work
City of Black Diamond May, 2014



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:
Phone: 360-886-5700

Fax: 360-886-2502

Task Name:
Consultant Project No.:
Consultant Contact Name:

Consuitant Phone:
Consultant Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:
City of Black Diamond:
Written Name Title
Signature Date
Consultant;
Written Name Title
Signature Data

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notify the City should additional funds be necessary to complete
the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence until written notification is received from

the City.




Exhibit “C”

PERTEET, INC.

Schedule of 2014 Billing Rates

Court Proceedings & Depositions (4 hour minimum)

Engineering, Planning and Environmental Classifications 2014 Hourly Rate
Principal 190.00
Senior Associate 180.00
Senior Engineer/Manager 170.00
Lead Engineer/Manager 140.00
Engineer III 120.00
Engineer 11 100.00
Engineer I 85.00
Senior Planner/Manager 160.00
Lead Planner/Manager 140.00
Planner II1 115.00
Planner I 100.00
Planner I 80.00
Senior Ecologist/Manager 160.00
Lead Ecologist/Manager 140.00
| EBeologist il ~ 11500
Ecologist IT 100.00
Ecologist I 80.00
Lead Technician/Designer 110.00
Technician III 95.00
Technician 11 80.00
Technician I 70.00
Contract Administrator 95.00
Accountant 85.00
Clerical 70.00
Expert Witness Rates:
Consulting & Preparation Time @ standard hourly rates

@ 1.5 times hourly rates

Perteet, Inc.

Schedule of 2014 Billing Rates

S:\Council Packet Material\2014\Sep 18\MDRT Consultant Contract Wetlands\Perteet Exhibits A,B,C\2014 Billing Rates - Perteet ExC.doc

Page 1 of 3



Direct Expenses

Living & travel expenses outside of service area

Authorized Subconsultants

Outside Services (printing, traffic counts, etc.)

PERTEET, INC.
Schedule of 2014 Billing Rates
Exhibit “C”, Page 2

Rate
Cost plus 10 percent
Cost plus 10 percent
Cost plus 10 percent

Survey monuments & cases

CADD Station $10.00 per hour

Project Controls / Primavera $10.00 per hour

GIS / Traffic Modeling $15.00 per hour

Color Copies $.80 each

Mileage @ current federal rate

Survey Classifications 2014 Hourly Rate

Principal Surveyor 185.00

Survey Manager 135.00

Senior Professional Land Surveyor 130.00
_Professional Land Surveyor 115.00

Office Technician 100.00

Field Technician III 90.00

Field Technician II 75.00

Field Technician 1 65.00

One Person Survey Crew 90.00

Two Person Survey Crew 165.00

Three Person Survey Crew 235.00

Direct Survey Expenses Rate

Dual Frequency GPS Receiver $150.00 per unit per day

Robotic Total Station Data Collection System $100.00 per day

Digital Level $50.00 per day

Cost plus 10 percent

Perteet, Inc.

Schedule of 2014 Billing Rates

Page 2 of 3

S:\Council Packet Material\2014\Sep 18\MDRT Consultant Contract Wetlands\Perteet Exhibits A,B,C\2014 Billing Rates - Perteet ExC.doc



PERTEET, INC.
Schedule of 2014 Billing Rates
Exhibit “C”, Page 3

Construction Classifications

Construction Engineering Supervisor

2014 Hourly Rate

1778 NN
1/0.Uu

Construction Engineering Manager 165.00
Construction Manager 120.00
Assistant Construction Manager 105.00
Construction Engineer 111 120.00
Construction Engineer 11 100.00
Construction Engineer [ 85.00
Senior Construction Observer 110.00
Construction Observer 11 80.00
Construction Observer 1 70.00
Senior Construction Technician 105.00
Construction Technician IIT 95.00
Construction Technicianl - 80.00
Construction Technician I 70.00
Perteet, Inc. Schedule of 2014 Billing Rates Page 3 of 3

S:\Council Packet Material\2014\Sep 18\MDRT Consultant Contract Wetlands\Perteet Exhibits A,B,C\2014 Billing Rates - Perteet ExC.doc



e

RESOLUTION NO. 12-802

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TQ EXECUTE A CONTRACT

WITH PERTEET INC. TO SERVE AS THE WETLAND
CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW

TEAM.

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
The Villages and Lawson Hiils MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD

L awson Pariners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement calls for the establishment of a Master

Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City staff and outside consultants;

WHEREAS, the City does not have sufficient staff resources fo provide wetland review
searvices to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, private firms providing wetland review services were invited to submit
Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, a panel consisting of staff and one City Councilmember reviewed the
submittals, subsequently interviewed four firms and then recommended Perteet Inc. as
the firm most capable of providing wetland review services as desired;

NOW, THEREFQORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract with Perteet Inc. to
provide wetland review services for the MDRT, substantially in the form attached hereto

as Exhibit A.



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 17" DAY OF MAY, 2012.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Do, Qbu

Rebecca Olness, Mayor

Altest:

Pornds, & Y astrrae

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk




Cllent¥: 326377

ACORD.

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

PERTEINC

DATE (MMIDDIYYYY)
5/02/2012

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER GF INFORMATION QNLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPCN THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
EELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

certificate holder in lieu of such endorsemant(s}.

IMPORTANT: If the cartificate holder is an ADDITICNAL INSURED, the polloy(ias} must be endorsed, if SUBROGATICN IS WAIVED, subject to
the ferms and conditions of the policy, cartain palicies may requira an endorsament. A stafement on this cerliflcate doss not confer righis to the

PRODUGER
Kibble & Prentice, a USI Co PR

601 Union Street, Sulte 1000
Seatile, WA 98101

TAGT
AME!

FAX

& noy: 610-362-8528

| oG, ety 206 441-6300

L os: PL.Certrequest@kpcom.com

IMSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE Naie #

NSURER A: 17aVe [srévfnJ;&;nity Compan‘y of 25682
INSURED wsurer 8 : XL Speclalty Insurance Company 37885
Parteet, Inc. NSURER C:
P.0. Box 1186 —
Eversit, WA 28206-1186 -
INSURER £ :
NSURERF &
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS I3 TG CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED 7O THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
{MDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDIMG ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITIOM OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSICNS AMD CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED B8Y PAID CLAIMS.

POLICY B4R

ok TYPE OF INSURANCE R s POLICY NUMBER AT LIMIES
A | GENERAL UABRITY 6807251L042 12131/2011]12/31/2012 EACH OCCURRENGE 51,000,300
X| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY PAMARE TO.RENTED e 51,000,000

| CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR MED EXP [Any nsparson} | 310,000

| PERSONAL & ADV IMJURY (31,006,000
| GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000
GEN1. AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUSTS - coMPioP AGE | 52,000,800

PaLICY m T l_l Lac 3
A | Aurowosns uaswTy BAG778L235 12/31/2011]12/31/2014 & noenn o M | 41,000,000

[ %] anv auro BODILY INJURY (Pergerson} | $

[ | Atk Symen __I___ SeHEnuLED HODILY INJURY (Par accidni) | §

| Xl mrepauros [ X 2’&‘5%"“”“”" I B fp‘;?;’imﬁ“ asE 3

$

| | UMBRELLALAR OCCUR EAC}H OCCURREMCE 3

EXCESS UAB CLAIMS-MADE AGGREBATE 3

DED | | RETENTIONS 3

A [WORKERS CoMPENSATION o 68072511042 12/31/2011| 123172014 M7 | X Ig™

Ay g%%%%?{%m%%%@cmws@ A (WA Stop Gap) 1. EACH ACCIDENT 51,000,060
j(fﬂi;:d:ggﬂl;; ‘J“*?m EL. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE] 31,000,000
DESCRIFTION OF OPERATIONS halnw EL. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT fs'l ,000,000

B |Professional DPR2692741 06/27/2011(06/27/2012 $2,000,000 per claim

Liability $2,000,008 anni aggr.

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS { LOCATIONS / VEHICLES [Attach ACORD 101, Addittanal Ramarks Schaduls, if mara spacs |s raqulzad)
Project Name: City of Black Diamond Envirenmental On-Call Services

City of Black Diamond is included as an additional insured on the General Liability policy where required

Aftn: Steve Pilcher
24301 Roherts Dr.
Black Diamond, WA 88010

]

by written contract.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CAMCELLATION
, . SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE GANCELLED BEFORE
City of Black Diamond THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, MOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

ACCORDANCE WATH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEU REFRESENTATIVE

O o et

ACORD 25 {2010/05) 1 of1
#57224376/M6733764

®© 1988-2010 ACORD CORPQORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name aad logo are registered marks of ACORD

SXFJU




This page has been left blank intentionally:



CITY GF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERYVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement™), for reference purposes
only, is dated __ > 2012 and is entered into by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City™)
Phiysical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive

Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Steve Pilcher Phone: 360-886-5700 Fax : 360-886-2592

and

Perteet, Inc. {(“Consultant™)
2707 Colby Avenue, Suite 900
Everstt, WA 98201

Contact: Jason Walker Phone: 425-252-7700 Fax: 425-339-6018
Tax Id No.: 91-1505037
For non-exclusive on-call professional services for the City of Black Diamond.

____TERMS AND CONDITIONS L

1. Services by Consulfant

1.1 Consultant has been retained by the City to perform environmental consulting
services generally described in the Scope of Work attached to this Agreement as Exhibit "A."
The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the Scope of Wotk nor shall the
Consultant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that provided in this Agreement
without the prior written authorization of the City.

12 The City may from time to time reguire changes or modifications in the Seope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

13 Consultant represents and warrants that if, ifs staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agreement and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its
subconsultants vnder this Agreement will be performed in a mamner consistent with that degree
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in

similar efrcumstances.

Professional Services Agreement with Pertect, Tne,

Puage 10f8



2. Schednle of Work

2.1 The City will issue an on on-call task request for each project task for which the
City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant under this
Agresment except pursuant fo such an on-call task request issued by the City in the form
attached as Exhibit "B." Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task
request in accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request.

2.2 Timeis of the essence as to the work provided in the Scope of Work. Consultant
will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that it, and its subconsultants, will have
adequate staffing at all times in order fo complete the Scope of Work in a timely manner, If
factors beyend Consulfant's control that could not have been reasonably foteseen as of the date
of this Agreement canse delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether
an extension is appropriate. The Consuliant shall provide the City with written notice of any
delay, or potential delay, that may trigger the need for a time exfension within 3 business days
after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

2.3  Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon execution of this
agreemerdt.

3.  Compensation

3.1  Rates. Compegsation for the services provided pursuant to each on-call task
request shall be on a time and expenses basis according to the list of billing rates and

reimbursable expenses attached hersto as Exhibit "C", Consultant may adjust the billing rates

and reimbursable expenses once each calendar year on or after January 1st by providing the City
with written notice of the adjusted rates and expenses no less than (30) thirty days prior to the
effective date of such adjustment, The billing rates and reimbursable expenses for on-call task
orders avthorized prior to receipt of written notice of the rate/expense adjustment by the City
shall not be affected by the adjustment.

32  Other. In the sveni that afier commencement of work, the Consultant anticipates
that the work for an on-call task request will exceed the initial amount authorized, Consultant
shall promptly notify the City and provide the City with whatever documentation or information
is necessary to request approval of any amounts in excess thereof,

4.  Payment

4.1  Consultant shall maintain time and expense tecords and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly invoices, in a format acceptable to the City for work performed fo
the date of the invoice.

42  All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agresment.

Professional Services Agreement with Parfeet, Ine.

Page2of 8



43  Consultant shall keep cost tecords and accounis perfaining to this Agresment
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement, Consultant shall make copies available to
the City on request,

4.4  If the services rendered do not meet the requirements of the Agreement,
Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

5, Diserimination and Compliance with Laws

51  Consultant agrees not to discriminafe against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or ofher circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for 2 bona fide occupational qualification.

52  Consultant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

33 Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, termination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole er in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the

City.
6. Suspension and Termination of Aoreement

6.1  The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10) days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other material
prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agresment, shall be submiited to the City. In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consnltant may cornplete
such analyses and records as may be necessary to place its files in order. Consultant shall be
eatitled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of
suspension or termination.

62  Any aotice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anticipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends.

7. Standard of Cazre

7.1  Consultant represents and wartants that it has the requisite training, skill,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately
accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental enmtities. Services

Professicnal Serviees Agreement with Perteet, Inc.

Page 3 of §



Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in 2 manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently
practicing in similar circumstances. Consultant understands and agrees that the services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement are for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no
third party shall have authorify to authorize, approve, direct or control any of the services
rendered to the City pursuant to this Agreement.

8.  QOwnership of Work Product

8.1  Cvmership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memoranda, and any other docements which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shall
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement. Any
rense of these materials by the City for projects or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concurrence by
Consulfant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

82  The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents s instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising out of the City’s reuse of such decuments beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant.

8.3  Methodology, sofiware, logic, and systems developed under ¢this Agreement are

~_the property of Copsultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City ses fit, -

including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation.

9. Indemmification/Hold Harmless

8.1  Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
cmployees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attomney fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, ervors, or
omissions of Consultant or its subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City, Provided, however, that if any
such claims, injuries, damages, losses or suifs result from the concwrent negligence of
Consultant and the city, if is expressly agreed that Consultant’s obligations and indemnity under
this paragraph shall be effective only to the extent of Consultant’s negligence,

16. Imsurance

10.1  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and
shall provide proof satisfactory to the Cify that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by

Consulfant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

Professional Services Agreement with Pertest, Ine.

Paged of 8



10.2 Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and emounts of
insurance;

a, Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Coverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent lability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide contractual Hability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

b. Commercial General ILiability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent lability coverage and shall
cover liability arsing from premisss, operations, independent confractors, personal injury, and
advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with Imits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance
lawes of the State of Washington.
d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,

with Iimits no fess than §1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

103 The Auntomobile Liability, Commercial General- Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-i-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shall be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be

‘cancelled, except after thirty (30) daya prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requesied, has been given to the City.

104 The City shall be named as an additional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commetcial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

10.5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with 2 current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VIL

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not less than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work.
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy
Consultant must procure and maintain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10} days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance written on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as fo all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services to be performed. i shall be a material breach of this
Agreement for Consultant fo fail to procure and maintain. the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance to the City as provided for in this Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement with Perteet, Ine.

Pags 5 of'§



11,  Assigning or Subcontracting

11.1  Consultant shall ot assign, transfer, subcontract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld af the sole discretion of the City.

12. Imdependent Contractor

12.1  Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agreement, independent contractors,

13.  Notice

13.1  All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when petsonally delivered, when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, retum receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.0. Box 599
Black Diarnond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy fo: Chris Bacha

Kenyon Disend, PLLC

11 Front Street South =
Issaquah, WA 98027

Fax: 425-392-7071

Consuliant: Tason Walker, PM
Crystal Donner, President
Perteet, Inc.
2707 Colby Avenue, Suite 500
Everett, WA 98201
Fax: 425-339-6018

14. Dispuies

141 Any action for claims arising out of or relating to fhis Agreement shall be
govermned by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shall be in King County Superior

Court, Kent, Washington.

15. Adornev Fess

Prafessional Services Agreement with Perteet, Inc.

Pase 6 0f 8



15.1  In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reasonable attorney fees from the other party.

16. Genera! Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or histher designes( the contract
Administrator) shall review and approve Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement
and shall have primary responsibility for overseeing and approving work or services to be
performed by Consultant. , Consultant understands end agrees that any and all work to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement must be approved in advance by the contract
Administrator, No third party, including the project applicant, shall have any direct conirol or
influence over the services performed under this Contract.

17. Extent of Agresment/Modification

17.1 This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes all prior negotiations,
tepresentations; or agreements, either wriften or oral. After City Council approval, this
Agreement shall be in effect as of May 18, 2012 and shall remain in effect until Tune 30, 2014,
unless sooner terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement may only be amended, modified,
or added to by written instrument properly sipned by both parties. The parties acknowledge the
general contract rule that 2 clause in a contract, such as this one, prohibiting oral modifications
is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure certainty as to the

terms and conditions of'this Agreement, the parties waive this general contractrule.

18. Confiict of Interest: Non-Collusion

18.1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
ot indirect, in this Coniract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations. The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and obligations hereunder. The
Consultant farther covenants that, in performance of this Contract, no person having any such
interest shall be employed by the Consultant. The contractot’s officers, employees or agents
shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from the project
applicant or any affiliate or agent of the project applicant.

182  The Contractor warrants and represents that the Contractor has not, nor has any
other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Contractor, entered into or
offered to enter inte any combination, collusion or agresment with sny person or entity fo
receive or pay, and that he has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration

Professional Services Agreement with Perteef, Inc.

Page Tof§



for the execution of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and
conditions hereof,

CITY O% BLACK DIAMOND CONSULTANT

By b (ODue By: A( M )5‘6:&"“ —
Rebecca Olnegs ( Jstal Donner

Hts: Mayor [t§~President

Date: 5/1’?/!% Date: 95/"7 /’2-'

Aftest:

AL S VLT REA
Brenda 1. Marfinez
City Cletk

Professional Services Agveement with Perteet, Ine,

Page 8ol 8



Y
Exhibit A {General Scope of Work) N gg;;

Agreement with Perteet Inc.

The City of Black Diamond will contract with Pertest Inc. to provide an-call environmental consulting
services on an as-needed basis to conduct third-party development reviews associated with
environmentally sensitive zreas and related documents (i.e. wetlands, streams, and fish and wildlife
conservation areas, buffers, and related resources) as described in the Black Diamond Municipal Code

(Code).

Consulting services may generally include the following tasks as requested by the City:

®  Pre-submittal consultation with 2pplicants and/or ¢ity staff

* Review and findings of submitted applications, sensisive areas studies, SEPA Checklists/EISs,
mitigation plans, and related documents prepared by others for the purpose of sensitive areas
identification, review of impacts, and mitigation evaluation

s  Field inspections and findings to verify condltions of sensitive areas relating to proposed impacts
and/or mitigation

¢ Review and findings of utilities plans, grading plans, stormwater management plans, stream
culvert designs, geotechnical reports, and other reports, studies, and drawings for the evaluation
of impacts and mitigation to sensitive areas and refated habitats

¢ Code consistancy and/or related pelicy review and findings
¢ Review and findings of exceptions, variances, or other requested deviations from Code

s Review and findings of draft sensitive areas notices to be recorded on titla

- Review and-findings of mitigation, maintenance, and monitoring costs estimates-for the posting -

of financial guarantees by apgplicants
¢ Verbal and written correspondence and coordination with applicants and/or City staff

»  Assistance with staff reports and preparation/review of meeting/hearing materials and exhibits

» [nteragency coordination
s Attendance and/or testimony at city council or other public meetings or hearings

s Pre-construction mesting attendance and related correspondence

¢ Review and findings of demarcated clearing limits for the protection of sensitive areas by
applicants prior to the commencement of construction

¢ Construction and post-construction related third-party monitoring inspections, compliance
reviews and findings

* Review and findings of any reported violations and subsequent corrective restoration or
mitigation for violations caused by applicants or their contractors

Scope of Wark

On-Calf Environmental Consulting Services
April, 2012

City of Black Diamand



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Data: City Staff Contact:
Task Nams: __ Phone: 360-886-5700
Consultant Projact Ne.: Fax: 360-888-2592
Constiltant Contact Name:
Consultant Phone:
Consultant Fax:
Scope of Task Raquest
Budget Esfimate:
Task Request Approval:
Ciiy of Black Dlamond:
Wiiten Name Tile
Signaiure Datg
Consultant:
Written Namsg Tife
Signatire Date

*Costs are hilled on a time and malerlals basts, the Cangultant shall noilly the Clty showld addltional funds ba nacsssary to camplate

the task order. Additional work bayond that which Is arderad by the City shall not commencs unllf wriifen notification is received from

the Cly.




Engineering, Planaing and Environmental Classifications

Exhibit “C*

PERTEET, INC.
Schedule of 2012 Billing Rates

2012 Hour!z Rate

Court Proceedings & Depositions (4 hour minimum)

Principal 135.00
Senior Associate 175.00
Senior Engineer/Manager 165.00
Lead Engineer/Manager 140.00
Engieer HI 120.00
Engineer 100.60
| Engineer I 85.00
Senior PlannerManager 160.00
Lead Planner/Manager 140.00
Planner T 115.00
Planner I 100.00
Planser I 20.00
Senior Ecologisi/Manager 160.00
Lead Ecologist/Manager 140.00
Ecologist I 115.00
| EcologistmT o ) S 1000}
Ecologist I 80.00
Lead Technician/Designer 105.00
Technician 1T 95.00
Technician I 80.00
Technician I 70.00
Contract Administrator 85,00
Accountant 80.00
Clerical 70.00
Expert Witness Rates:
Consulting & Preparation Time @ standard hourly rafes

@ 1.5 times hourly rates

Perteet, Inc.

Schedule 0of 2012 Billing Rates

Page 1 of 3

C:Dacuments and Settings\fanicekiLocal Settings\Temporary Intemat Filos'Content Cuthio Y ITEMICY212012 Billing Rates » Pestectdos



PERTEET, INC.
Schedule of 2012 Billing Rates

Page 2
Direct Expenses Rate
Living & travel expenses outside of service area Cost plus 10 percent
Authorized Subconsultants Cost plus 10 percent
Outside Services (printing, traffic counts, efc.) Cost plus 10 percent
CADD Station $10.00 per hour
Project Controls / Primavera $10.00 per honr
GIS / Traffic Modeling $15.00 per honr
Color Copies $.80 each
Mileage @ current federal rate
Survey Classificafions 2012 Hourly Bate
Principal Surveyor 185.00
Survey Manager 130.00
Senior Professional Land Surveyor 130.00
Professional Land Surveyor 105.00
Project Surveyor I S 100.00
Project Surveyor I 835.00
Survey Technician I 85.00
Survey Technician T 75.00
Survey Technician T 65.00
One Person Survey Crew C 90,00
Two Person Survey Crew 150.00
Three Person Survey Crew 215.00
Direct Survey Expenses Rate
Dual Frequency GPS Receiver $150.00 per day
Robatic Total Station Data Collection System $100.00 per day
Digital Level $50.00 per day
Survey monuments & cases Cost plus 10 percent
Perieet, Inc. Schedule of 2612 Billing Rates Page20f3

C:Dacamants and Settingjanicekibocal SeitingATemporacy totemet Piles\Canteat Outloo KT IFRME Y 222012 Billing Rates - Pertest doc



PERTEET, INC.
Schedule of 2012 Billing Rates

Page 3

Consiruction Classifications 2812 Hourly Rate
Construction Engineering Supervisor 175.00
Construction Engineering Manager 163.00
Construction Manager 120.00
Asgistant Construction Manager 105.00
Coanstruction Engineer I 120.00
Construction Engineer I 100.00
Consiruction Engineer I 85.00
Senior Construction Observer 116.00
Construction Observer I 30.00
Construction Observer I 70.00
Senior Construction Technician 105.00
Construction Technician I 95.00
Construction Technician II 80.00
Construction Technician I 70.00
Perteet’ Inc.ll' and SexiupstjaniceliLaca! Siﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁfﬁiﬁi&{%&gg{ggmﬁijﬁFGMI(YB’GD]2 Billing Rates - Partestdac Page 3 Gf 3




COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY,

BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED
(ARCHITECTS, ENGINEERS AND SURVEYORS)

This endarsement modifies i

COMMERGIAL GENERAL ]AB!UTY COVERAG

m
’U
:U
~4

A. The following is added fo WHO IS AN INSURED INSURANCE (Sesfion lli} for this Coverage

(Section ]I}

Any person aor organization that you agres in a

"contract ar agreement requiring insurance® to In-

clude as an additional insured on this Coverage

Part, but only with respect to liability for "bodily in-

jury", “property damage” or “persanal injury"

causad, in whole or in past, by your acts or omis-

sions or the acts or amissions aof those acting on

your behalf:

a. In the performance of your ongcing opera-
tions;

b. In connection with premises owned by or
rented {o you, or

c. In connection with "your work" and included

within the "products-compleled operations
hazard".

- -Sueh-person-or-arganization-doesnot-qualify-as— - ----

an additional insured for "bodlly injury”, "property
damage” ar "personal injury” for which that per-
son or organization has assumed liabillty in a con-
iract or agreement.

The insurance provided fo such additional insured
is limited as follows:

d. This insurance doss not apply on any basis to
any person or organization for which cover-
age as an additional instred specifically is
added by ancther endorsement tc this Cover-
age Part.

e. This insurance does not apply to the render-
ing of or failure to render any “professional
sarvices™.

f.  The limits of insurance afforded to the addi-
tional insured shall be the limits which you
agreed in that "contract or agreement requir-
ing insurance” to provide far that addifional
insured, or the limits shown in the Declara-
fions far this Coverage Pari, whichever are
less. This endarsement does not increasse the
limits of insurance stated in the LIMITS OF

CG B3 g109 07

Pard.

B. The following is added to Paragraph a. of 4.

© 2007 The Travelers Campanies, Ine.

Qther Insurance in COMMERCIAL GENERAL
LIABILITY CONDITIONS (Section iV):

Howsver, If you specifically agree In a “contract or
agreement requiring insurance” that the Insurance
provided to an additlonal Insured under this Cav-
erage Part must apply on a primary basis, or a
primary and non-contributory basis, this insurance
Is primary to other insurance that Is available to
such additional insured which covers such addi-
tional insured as a named Insured, and we will not
share with the other insurance, provided that:

{1} The "bodily injury* or “property damage® for
which coverage is sought occurs; and

(2} The "personal injury” for which coverage Is

. sought arises out of an offense commiitted;

after you have entered Into that “confract or
agresment requiring insurance”. But this insur-
ance siill is excess over valid and collectible other
insurance, whether primary, excess, confingent or
on any other basis, that Is avallable to the Insured
when the Insured is an additional insured under
any cther insurance.

The following Is added to Paragraph 8, Transfer
Of Rights OF Recovery Against Others To Us
in COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY CON-
BITIONS {Section V)

We waive any rights of recovery we may have
against any person or organization because of
payments we make for "bodily injury”, "property
damage” or “personal injury" arlsing aut of "vour
wark™ performed by you, or on your behalf, under
a "cantract or agresment requiring insurance” with
that person or organization. We walve these
rights only where you have agreed to do so as
part of ihe "coniract or agreement requiring insur-
ance" with such person ar arganization entered
into by you before, and in effect when, the “bodily

Page 1 of 2

Includes the copyrighted matesial of Insurarnce Services Office, Inc., with Its permission



Page 2 of 2

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

injury” or "property damage” occurs, or the "per
sonal injury” offense is commiited.

, The following definition is added to DEFINITIONS

(Section V)

"Contract or agreement requiring Insurancs”
means that part of any confract or agreement un-
der which you are requirsd to include a person or

2,

[PREEPN, S A NN £ HGURPY [ N - 1 g
organization as an additional insured on s Cov~

@ 2007 The Travelers Companies, Inc.

erage Part, provided that the “bodily injury® and
"properly damags" occurs, and the "persenal In-
jury" is caused by an offense committed:

a. After you have entered infc that contract or
agreemsnt;

b. While that part of the coniract or agresment is
in effect; and

c. Befare the end of the policy period.

€G D3 81 0907

Includes the copyrighted material of ingurance Services Office, Inc., wiih ts permission



RESOLUTION NO. 14-954

A RESCLUTION OF THE CiTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST
ADDENDUM TO THE PERTEET, INC. CONTRACT TO
SERVE AS THE ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTANT TO THE
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract
via Resolution No. 12-802 for on-going services as described In that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the

execution of new contracts with the City; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY CF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the Perteet

contraci, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOQOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:
Dave Gordon, Mayor ;

Atfest:

Cund. 2 7’7/20/77/7;&%/

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk




FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
Perteet, Inc.

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is made to the Consultant Services Contract via Resolution
12-802 executed between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal
corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Perteet, (hereinafter the “Consultant,”} a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing
business at 2707 Colby Avenue, Suite 900, Everett, WA 98201.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on May 17, 2014, the Censultant and the City entered into a contract
for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City wouid like to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the

execution of new contracts with the City;

WHEREAS, the Consuitant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

___ NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

Section 1. No Change to Terms and Conditions. With the exception of the
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.

Section 2. New Expiration Date. The pariies agree to extend the expiration date
of the Contract June 30, 2012 to September 30, 2014.

IN WITNESS WHEREQGF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th
day of June, 2014.

Page 1



CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

A
By.__ : /) J— By:
Daniel J. g sen Dave Gordon, Mayor

lts: Viceresident

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol A. Morris, City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:

Pyvsipls, XY 1 ppren,

Brenda Martinez, City Clerk  {

Page 2



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL Tost Office Box 392

Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION

SUBJECT: Resolution No. 14-977 Agenda Date: September 18,2014 AB14-088

authorizing the Mayor to execute a Mayor Dave Gordon

contract with HWA Geosciences Inc. to City Administrator

serve as the Geotechnical Engineering City Attorney Carol Morris

Consultant to the MDRT City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

Com Dev/Nat Res — Aaron Nix

Finance — May Miller

MDRT/Eco Dev — Andy Williamson X
Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note): Up to Police — Chief Kiblinger
$100,000
Fund Source: Pass-through expense to Public Works — Seth Boettcher
Yarrow Bay
Timeline: Two year contract Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Agenda Placement: E Mayor [ | Two Councilmembers [ | Committee Chair [ | City Administrator

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-977, proposed contract, Resolution Nos. 12-819 & 14-953

SUMMARY STATEMENT:

The Funding Agreement approved in conjunction with the two Development Agreements (DAs) for the
approved Master Planned Developments (MPDs) of Lawson Hills and The Villages assumes that
consultants will be hired to augment City staff in their work as the MPDS are implemented over time.
There will be significant needs for geotechnical engineering assistance to help with review of specific

_implementing projects_(plats, multifamily housing, commercial _projects), plus major infrastructure | - __

improvements such a water and sewer line extensions.

The City advertised in the Journal of Commerce, City website and official newspaper to solicit
Statements of Qualifications from firms interested in performing this work. A total of 6 firms submitted
their qualifications; two were chosen to be interviewed. The interview panel consisted of Community
Development and Natural Resources Director Aaron Nix, MDRT/Economic Development Director
Andrew Williamson, and Public Works Administrative Assistant Scott Hanis. The unanimous choice of
the interview panel was to hire HWA Geosciences.

Per the terms of the DAs, all costs for consultants must be paid for by the Master Developer (Yarrow
Bay). This contract is for two years and a 10-day termination provision is included, should the City
decide to seek a different consultant or hire its own staff at a future date.

FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Per the Funding Agreement, all cost associated will the contracted
services will be reimbursed by the Developer.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution 14-977 authorizing the
Mayor to execute a contract with HWA Geosciences Inc. to serve as the
geotechnical engineering consultant to the MDRT.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

September 18, 2014




RESOLUTION NO. 14-977

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT
WITH HWA GEOSCIENCES, INC. TO SERVE AS THE
GEOTECHNICAL CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
the Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011 the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of its consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD

Lawson Partners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement call for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City Staff and outside consultants;

and

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide Geotechnical

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a 2 year contract with HWA
Geosciences, Inc. to provide Geotechnical Services for the MDRT, substantially in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 18™ DAY OF
SEPTEMBER, 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Aftest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



Exhibit A

CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
FOR GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
HWA GEOSCIENCES INC.

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington
municipal corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and HWA GEOSCIENCES Inc.,
(hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State of

U | S RS s (N (U DU S - PO NANAN NN I \AJA

|- R = ~ e e s —~4L th [, PN — Ll
Washington located and doing business at 21312 30" Drive SE, Suite 110, Botheli, W

98021.
RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City does not have on sufficient staff resources to provide
Geotechnical Engineering services to meet the needs of the MDRT; and

WHEREAS, the City has funding available from YarrowBay and an approved
budget to fund the oversight, engineering review, inspections, development agreement
enforcement and assisting the City with the regulatory role; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant has agreed to provide the services described in. . =

* Exhibit A (scope of work) under the terms and conditions set forth herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS
l. Description of Work.

The Consultant shall be prepared to assist the City with all of the work described
in Exhibit A (General Scope of Work), which is attached hereto and incorporated herein
by this reference. The municipal fiscal analysis services to be provided to the City by
the Consultant shall be identified in on-call task requests for each project task for which
the City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant
under this Agreement except pursuant to such an on call task request issued by the City
in the form attached as Exhibit B, which is incorporated herein by this reference.
Consultant shall perform the services described in the on-call task request in
accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in the on-call task request
(Exhibit B).

Page 1


bmartinez
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A


ll. Payment

A. The City shall pay the Consultant an amount based on time and materials,
not to exceed One Hundred Thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for the services described
in Section | herein. This is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement for the
work described in Exhibit A, and shall not be exceeded without the prior written
authorization of the City in the form of a negotiated and executed supplemental
agreement. PROVIDED, HOWEVER, the City reserves the right to direct the
Consuitant's compensated services under the time frame set forth in Section IV herein
before reaching the maximum amount. The progress billings for the work completed
shall be compensated according to the rates and charges identified in Exhibit C, which

is incorporated herein by this reference.

B. The Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to the City after such services
have been performed, and a final bill upon completion of all the services described in
this Agreement. The City shall pay the full amount of an invoice within sixty (60) days of
receipt. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the
Consultant of the same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay
that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and the parties shall immediately make every
effort to settle the disputed portion.

lll. Relationship of Parties

‘The parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be

___created by this Agreement. As_ the Consultant is customarily engaged in_.an_. . __

independently established trade which encompasses the specific service provided to
the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative or sub-consultant of the
Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, representative or
sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details
of the work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.
None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees including, but not limited to,
compensation, insurance, and unemployment insurance are available from the City to
the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-consultants of the Consultant. The
Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its
agents, employees, representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this
Agreement. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder.

IV. Duration of Work
The Consultant shall perform the work according to the City’'s direction, as
described in Section | of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be in effect for a period

of two (2) years from the effective date, which is the date this Agreement is signed by
both parties.

Page 2



V. Termination

A. Termination of Agreement. The City may terminate this Agreement, for public
convenience, the Consultant's default, the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
Consultant's assignment for the benefit of creditors, at any time prior to completion of
the work described in Exhibit A. If delivered to Consultant in person, termination shall be
effective immediately upon the Consultant's receipt of the City's written notice or such
date stated in the City's notice, whichever is later.

B. Rights Upon Termination. In the event of termination, the City shall pay for all
services satisfactorily performed by the Consultant to the effective date of termination,
as described on a final invoice submitted to the City. Said amount shall not exceed the
amount in Section Il above. After termination, the City may take possession of all
records and data within the Consultant’s possession pertaining to this Agreement, which
records and data may be used by the City without restriction. Upon termination, the City
may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or
otherwise.

V1. Discrimination

In the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this Agreement or any
sub-contract hereunder, the Consultant, its Subcontractors, or any person acting on
behalf of such Consultant or sub-consultant shall not by reason of race, religion, color,
sex, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability,

____discriminate_against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to .=~ .= .

which the employment relates.
VIl. Indemnification

The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages,
losses or suits, including all legal Costs and attorneys' fees, arising out of or in
connection with the performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages
caused by the sole negligence of the City. The City's inspection or acceptance of any of
the Consultant's work when completed shall not be grounds to avoid any of these
covenants of indemnification.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is Subject to
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and Volunteers,
the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's
negligence.

IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S
WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY
FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER

Page 3



ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. THE
CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
SECTION DOES NOT INCLUDE, OR EXTEND TO. ANY CLAIMS BY THE
CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES DIRECTLY AGAINST THE CONSULTANT.

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

i ] | [y
Hl. Insurdnce

A. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement,
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise
from or in connection with the Consultant's own work including the work of the
Consultant's agents, representatives, employees, sub-consultants or sub-contractors.

B. Before beginning work on the project described in this Agreement, the
Consultant shall provide evidence, in the form of a Certificate of Insurance, of the
following insurance coverage and limits (at a minimum):

1. Business auto coverage for any auto no less than a $1,000,000 each
accident limit, and

2. Commercial General Liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence with a $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but is not

limited _to, contractual _liability, products and completed operations, property = =

damage, and employers liability, and

3. Professional Liability insurance with no less than $1,000,000. All
policies and coverage's shall be on a claims made basis.

C. The Consultant is responsible for the payment of any deductible or self
insured retention that is required by any of the Consultant's insurance. If the City is
required to contribute to the deductible under any of the Consultant's insurance policies,
the Contractor shall reimburse the City the full amount of the deductible within 10
working days of the City's deductible payment.

D. The City of Black Diamond shall be named as an additional insured on the
Consultant's commercial general liability policy. This additional insured endorsement
shall be included with evidence of insurance in the form of a Certificate of Insurance for
coverage necessary in Section B. The City reserves the right to receive a certified and
complete copy of all of the Consultant's insurance policies.

E. Under this agreement, the Consultant's insurance shall be considered primary
in the event of a loss, damage or suit. The City's own comprehensive general liability
policy will be considered excess coverage with respect to defense and indemnity of the
City only and no other party. Additionally, the Consultant's commercial general liability
policy must provide cross-liability coverage as could be achieved under a standard 1ISO
separation of insured's clause.

Page 4



F. The Consultant shall request from his insurer a modification of the ACORD
certificate to include language that prior written notification will be given to the City of
Black Diamond at least 30 days in advance of any cancellation, suspension or material
change in the Consultant's coverage.

IX. Exchange of Information
The City warrants the accuracy of any information supplied by it to the Consuitant for
the purpose of completion of the work under this Agreement. The parties agree that the
Consultant will notify the City of any inaccuracies in the information provided by the City
as may be discovered in the process of performing the work, and that the City is entitled
to rely upon any information supplied by the Consultant which results as a product of
this Agreement.

X. Ownership and Use of Records and Documents

Original documents, drawings, designs and reports developed under this Agreement
shall belong to and become the property of the City. All written information submitted by
the City to the Consultant in connection with the services performed by the Consultant
under this Agreement will be safeguarded by the Consultant to at least the same extent
as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business. If such
information is publicly available or is already in Consultant's possession or known to it,
or is rightfully obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no
responsibility for its disclosure, inadvertent or otherwise.

XI. City's Right of Inspection

Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control
and direct the performance ,and details of the work authorized under this Agreement,
the work must meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general
right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. The Consultant agrees
to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now
effective or become applicable within the terms of this Agreement to the Consultant's
business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement
or accruing out of the performance of such operations.

XIll. Consultant tc Maintain Records to Support Independent Contractor Status

On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall
comply with all federal and state laws applicable to Independent contractors including,
but not limited to the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all
Iltems of income and expenses of the Consultant's business, pursuant to the Revised
Code of Washington (RCW) Section 51.08.195, as required to show that the services
performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer-
employee relationship between the parties which is subject to RCW Title 51, Industrial
Insurance.

Page 5



XlIl. Work Performed at the Consultant’s Risk

The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the
safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work
hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. All work shall be
done at the Consultant's own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss
of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held by the Consultant for use
In connection with the work.

X1V. Non-Waiver of Breach

The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and
agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or more
instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants,
agreements, or options and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

XV. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law

Should any dispute, misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the City of Black
Diamond shall determine the term or provision's true intent or meaning. The City of
Black Diamond shall also decide all questions which may arise between the parties
relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance
hereunder.

If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions of
this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor or Administrator's determination
in a reasonable time, or if the Consultant does not agree with the City's decision on the
disputed matter, jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in King County
Superior Court, King County, Washington. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The non-prevailing
party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay the other parties'
expenses and reasonable attorney's fees.

XVLI. Written Notice

All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the
addresses listed on the signature page of the agreement, unless notified to the contrary.
Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective upon
the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given
if sent to the addressee at the address stated below:

CONSULTANT: CITY:

Attn: Arnie Sugar, L.G., L.H.G. Attn: Andrew Williamson
HWA Geosciences Inc. City of Black Diamond
21312 30™ Drive SE, Suite 110 P.O. Box 599

Page 6



Bothell, WA 98021 24301 Roberts Drive
Black Diamond, WA 98010

With a copy to the “City Clerk” at the same
address.

XVIIl. Assignment

Any assignment of this Agreement by ithe Consuitant without the written consent of the
City shall be void. If the City shall give its consent to any assignment, this paragraph
shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall be made without
the City's consent.

XVIII. Modification and Severability

No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and
the Consultant.

The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. If any provision of this
Agreement is for any reasons held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity
or constitutionality of any other provision.

- . XIX..Entire Agreement

The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with Exhibit A, B and C
attached hereto. shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other
representative of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as
entering into or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement
or the Agreement documents. The entire agreement between the parties with respect to
the subject matter hereunder is contained in this Agreement and any Exhibits attached
hereto, which may or may not have been executed prior to the execution of this
Agreement. All of the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement and
form the Agreement document as fully as if the same were set forth herein. Should any
language in Exhibits, A, B and C to this Agreement conflict with any language contained
in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail.

Page 7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on

this day of , 2014.
CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
By: By

Arnie Sugar Dave Gordon, Mayor

Its: President

Consultant: HWA Geosciences

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol A. Morris
City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:

Brenda Martinez
City Clerk

Page 8



EXHIBIT A

SCOPE OF WORK
CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM

The work to be performed by HWA GeoSciences Inc. may consist of some or all of the following types of tasks,
as directed by the City:

MDRT

» Participation in preliminary design meetings and other activities as a member of the Master
Development Review Team (MDRT)

» Review of and preparation of written comments on submitted engineering drawings for compliance with
City codes and standards and any applicable provisions of the approved MPDs.

» Coordination with other consulting professionals and staff of the MDRT

* On-site inspection during construction of individual engineering projects

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

*  Evaluating coal mine hazards and related studies in evaluating the levels of mine hazards throughout the
City of Black Diamond in accordance with Black Diamond Municipal Code 19.10.430-450.

» Evaluating sites and soils and preparing studies for potential contamination and remediation if
appropriate.



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:
Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Consultant Project No.: Fax: 360-886-2592
Consultant Contact Name:

Consultant Phone:

Consultant Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:
City of Black Diamond:

Written Name Title
Signature Date
Consultant:
Written Name Title
Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notify the City should additional funds be necessary to complete
the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence until written notification is received from

the City.




EMPLOYEE

Sa Hong

Ralph Boirum
Arnie Sugar
Steve Greene
Bryan Hawkins
Donald Huling
JolLyn Gillie
Norm Nielsen
Cliff Nale

Brad Thurber
Vasiliy Babko
Desiree Rosa
Tori Hesedahl
Sandybell Ramos
Daniel Coltrane
Brett Salazar
Kimberly Stilson
Tink Kinney
Christiana Fisk
Jessica Herrera
Scaott Johnson
Daniel YWaiton
Jacob Thurber
Adam Chidester

Exhibit C

HWA GEOSCIENCES INC.

2014 BILLING RATES
(Effective 01/01/2014)

TITLE

Principal IX

Principal 1X

Principal Vili

Geologist VI
Geotechnical Engineer Vi
Geotechnical Engineer IV
Geotechnical Engineer IV
Hydrogeologist IV
Geologist I

Geologist V

Controller

Marketing coordinator
Geotechnical Engineer |
Geotechnical Engineer |
Geologist |

Geologist |

Geologist |

CAD

Administrative Support
Lab/Field Technician il
Lab/Field Technician |l
Lab/Field Technician |
Lab/Field Technician |
Lab/Field Technician |

Notes: * Représents Capped Billing Rate

BILLING
RATE
$240.00
$240.00 -
$240.00
$160.00
$160.00
$150.00
$133.00
$170.00
$119.00
$110.00
$100.00

$90.00
$82.00
$82.00
$82.00
$82.00
$78.00
$75.00
$71.00
$90.00
$80.00
$60.00
$50.00
$50.00



Exhibit C

A

STANDARD SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES

All prices are effective January 1, 2014 and are subject to change without notice.

e

T HWAGEOSCIENCES INC

www,.hwageo.com

HWA GeoSciences Inc. holds accreditarions from the American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials
(AASHTO R-18), American Association for Laboratory Accreditation (A2LA) and validation from the U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers (USACE). We participate in the sample proficiency program from AMRL for soil classification, coarse and fine
aggregates, Hot Mix Asphalt, California Bearing Ratio, and compaction; and CCRL for concrete.

PROFESSIONAL S3ERVICES
Request Labor Rate Schedule

EXPENSES
All Qutside Expenses {i.e., airfare, subsistence, equipment
rental, materials, reproduction, etc.)........ Cost plus 10%
Drilling & Chemical Laboratory Subcontractors... Cost plus 15%
Mileage (per mile) ..coeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiins Current IRS Rate
Tests Conducted on Contaminated Seils............. Cost plus 20%
Project Sample Storage Beyond 30 Days from Final Report
Per sample, Per day covverereercerercrnniireneeennsenrenes $0.50
RUSh TESHNG v eviiiriiierisircnreerineens covaneinnnaes Rate plus 100%

LABORATORY TESTS
Soil Laboratory Tests
All contaminated soils will be returned to client for disposal.
Atterberg Limits
Liquid Limit and Plastic Limit (ASTM D 4318)
[ 3T 2 [ P $110.00
Three POINE couvverviireiams e e ancennane $150.00
California Bearing Ratio (ASTM D 1883)
(Requires Moisture/Density Relationship Test)

ONE POINE 1avieiiecviniarencrrnaeneernrornannenens $175.00

THree POINE ceuce i cenrerce e rean e nens $450.00
Consoclidation Test Incremental Loading (ASTM D 2435)

9 Loads, 0.125 TSF to 32 TSF, 4 Unloads ............. $575.00

Each Additional Load ..covceeeiiniiininiinnn, $50.00

Consolidation Test, Controlled Strain (ASTM D 4186)....$650.00
Grainsize Analysis

Combined Analysis (ASTMD 422) ...vvviererninnnnnnn. $230.00

Hydrometer Analysis (ASTM D 422)......occcoiiiinnne $170.00

Passing #200 Sieve (ASTM D 1140).....cocivveviivininnn $55.00

PSEP Particle Size (Less than 4 Phi)....c.ovvieeiiois $260.00

Sieve Analysis-Wet (ASTMD 422} ...ivvviiiiciiinnnnnnn $95.00
Moisture/Density Relationship

Proctor - Cohesive (ASTM D 698, D 1557} cvuevcninee $225.00

Proctor - Granular (ASTM D 698, D 1557) w.even..... $210.00
Moisture Content w/Description. . eeiiviiienenreniarnans $18.00
One-Dimensional Swell (ASTM D 4546) ...................0 $625.00
Qrganic Content Test (ASTMD 2974)......ooovininnnns $65.00
Permeability Tests

Permeability of Granular Socils (ASTM D 2434)....... $250.00

Falling Head Test (WSDOT 605} .......cvvninininnnns $225.00

Triaxial with Back Pressure

2 days (ASTM D 5084) ..vvvvnininrinicrienrernvninenes $450.00

Fach additional day ....ccoeveerinirirmscinenneenns $125.00

Triaxial with Back Pressure
{6-in diameter) (ASTM D 5084) ....vovvveeeniiannnnns, $500.00

LARORATORY TESTS (Continued)
Permeability Tests {Con’t)

Estimate of Effective POrosity ..cceevuvvcvinrirenanss $545.00
Field Capacity (sand) ..c.ovoreiineiiiiinvicninecnnns $195.00
Sand Drainage Characteristic Curve ......ccoocoanin. $375.00
Relative Density (ASTM D 4253 / D 4254) .........c.....e $350.00
Shelby Tube Extrusion and Sample Description............ $40.00
Soil Resistivity & pH (WSDOT 417)eeeiviriiisinincnnannes $100.00
PH ONLY 1eieeiciiiceerie e $35.00
ReSISUIVILY OnlY.caniicinisierare e e cennacaan $65.00
Specific Gravity Test (ASTM D 834) cocorniiiiiiiviiiiicnnnnn $80.00
Strength Testing
Direct Shear Strength {per point) {ASTM D 3080)...5160.00
Residual Shear {per point)..cveeveereeriervmereennenns $160.00
Triaxial {c-u) (ASTM D 4767) ceniieeiiiiinieneeainenes $550.00
with KO Consalidation .....coooviiiiiiiiiiinann. $750.00
Stress Path Tests.uvvinrerrereriiieieirenscoennens $630.00
Triaxial (c-u) 3pts (ASTM D 4767) .c.ccvvnvnnnnnnnen $1,200.00
Triaxial {(u-u) (ASTM D 2850) cevueeviinerineerannnns ..3215.00

Unconfined Compressive Strength {ASTM D 2166) ..5$110.00
Modulus and Dampening of Soils under

Cyclic Loading (ASTMD 399%) ...ooviininiiinnnnns $750.00
Resilient Modulus of Base/Subgrade
{AASHTO T296) vvvnirneiniiiinincnieeceneeea $500.00
Unit Weight
Cohesive Soil by Waxing (USCOE) .o vvrviviiivnnnnnns $90.00
Percent of Solids Calculation ...coccovviviniviinnnnns $18.00
Porosity {includes specific gravity/unit weight) ....$100.00
Soil in Ring (ASTM D 2937) wieviminiiiiiiiiiiiinnnens $38.00
Bulk Density of Solid Waste {ASTM E 1109) ........... $40.00
Soil in Shelby Tube (ASTM D 2937} oovvviiiinnnecnennns $45.00
Visual Soil Classification .vuvveeeeererearencavrerneenceneaes $16.00
Aggregate Quality Tests
Clay Lumps and Friable Particles (ASTM C 142} ........... $90.00
Degradation Test {WSDOT 113) ceovvvrvininviiinenrnnienan. $225.00
Fracture Face Count {without sieve) (WSDOT 103)....... $40.00
Grain Size (ASTM C 138, C117) ceciiniiiiiiice e $95.00
Los Angeles Abrasion (ASTM C 131, €535) ..oeivenannnnnn, $195.00
Organic Impurities (ASTM € 40)....cevvvviiiineeniiiiininnns $70.00
Percentage of Material Passing #200 Sieve (ASTM C 117) $55.00
Sand Equivalent (ASTM C 2419) .eeiviiiiiiinnenrenennnnnns $90.00
Soundness Using MgSO0, {ASTM C88).....oevviineininiinns $375.00
Specific Gravity Test
Coarse Aggregate (ASTM C127) vorieiiiinianniinininns §70.00
Fine Aggregate (minus #4 mesh) (ASTM C 128)....... $80.00
Unit Weight by Dry Rodding (ASTMC 29) ..ccvvvevininnnne $60.00
Uncompacted Yoids Content of FA (ASTM C1252)........ $115.00



Exhibit C

STANDARD SCHEDULE OF FEES AND CHARGES (Continued) TTTTR WA GEOSCIENCES INC

All prices are effective January 1, 2014 and are subject to change without notice.

Concrete and Masonry Tests
Compressicn Testing of Concrete Cores

{includes trimming) (ASTM C 42, C513) ..oooenran.ee, $30.00
Compression Testing of Concrete Cylinders (ASTM C 39) $25.00
Compression Testing of Grout and Mortar Specimens

(per specimen) (UBC 21-18, 21-16) ..cocvvninrnninnnns $18.00
Concrete Beam Flexural Strength Test (ASTM C 78) ...... $90.00
Concrete Cylinder Molds ....overeiiiininiieniinininiieicnnnnns $2.50
Concrete Cylinders Sampled and Cured (not tested}..... $25.00
Concrete Mix Design {fixed gradation)......ceeovveuenns $2,000.00
Density Test

Concrete Cylinders .....voveeeerievncrenccrrrerenenercncn $35.00

Light Weight Concrete Cylinders....covecvenvninnnnnns $80.00
£nd Trimming of Samples (if needed)....ccreeveriiiiiiins $20.00
Splitting Tensile Strength Test (ASTM C 496)............... $90.00
Shotcrete Panel (cut three cores & comprassion test)..$300.00
Geosynthetics Tests
Shear/Peel Strength Test (ASTM D 4437) ccvvevvinininnnnns $125.00

Asphaltic Concrete Tests
Bitumen Content by Extraction

Extraction only (ASTM D 6307) occconiimiininnniinnes $90.00

with Gradation {ASTM D 5444, D 6307} ... .....ceees $150.00
Bulk Specific Gravity and Density - 55D Method

{per specimen) (ASTMD 2726).....ccvevinianinninnnen. $45.00
Bulk Specific Gravity and Density - Wax Method

{per specimen) (ASTM D 1188)...ivviicriinnininennens $70.00
Marshatl Stability & Flow Determination

{3 specimens) (ASTM D 6927} :.. oo $560.00
Percent Air Voids in Compacted or Open Bituminous Mixtures

(ASTM D 3203} cenieiiiiiirnincirenirncinennincaaaiannans $150.00
Rice Density (WSDOT 705) civiiirerainrinriemnnesiiciccrannns $90.00
1 S $550.00
Rock Tests
Abrasion Resistance {ASTM C 535) .. ivivieiiiiiiirinennas $200.00

thylene Glycol Accelerated Expansion .........ovevuenes $200.00

Riprap Soundness (ASTM D 5240) ....cvvivreniininiineannns $300.00
Specific Gravity and Absorption {ASTM C 127)......c.et $70.00
Splitting Tensile Strength of Rock Cores

(10 Discs) (ASTM D 3967} ceeiiiiiiiiiiii i $220.00

EQUIPMENT CHARGES
Labor will be charged in addition to equipment charges

Air Filters for Development (per day) ..cocvevvviiiinenenns $50.00
BK Development Pump/Surge Block (per day) ....c.c..... $20.00
Bott Tension Calibrator (per day)....coceeverenevrnnienincns $50.00
Carbon Filter (Per day) «.ueeeeeeeviieirerenerniiscrennaennens $50.00
Coating Thickness Gauges (per day) .e.veeveveiiiiicinennens $25.00
Combustible Gas Tech Meter (GT 302 / 3220)

e e O O $100.00

POr WEEK eiieee vt ireicesistser s e e e anras $300.00

Coring Equipment Charge .......cocoivvininnnne Request Schedule
Data Logger and Transducers

PEr daY venvnieieneneerenceniniiieeri s s a s $150.00

POr WEBK 1evirvirreinientinnsnrsasenraacanaaneirineanarnas $500.00
Dissolved Oxygen Meter

PEF Y +enrerreeaeanenie e reaere e e e raeen $95.00

Pl WEEK .+t iveteee e eieeirerecssnsasearenaeraneacusnnes $300.00
Falling Weight Deflectometer (Hourly Rental)

-BRIS cueeseamien e ie e e iratunte et anenenas $175.00

BoA0NrS. st ereranarasrrernesiarareeerrancanear e reanen $100.00

B0HNES teuvrrnreeamracnrarneanreseciasasaresatsrineasasnnrasas $50.00
Double Ring INfiltrometer....ovvcvicoerccirienn e $50.00
Flow Monitoring Set

PO daY vereeieieeeairerereernce et a e aeaan $105.00

POl WEBK tvivineiresiiriiiinsnaistaneasranseanasanacnns 5400.00
Geomembrane Tensiometer (Per day) cvrvvecerrrecnreasnns $100.00
Grundfos Redi Flow Il Pump and Generator

POr AaY cvicvrinirirenaisieririasicanrsctatne e ans $100.00

Pl WEBK 1t vumivenrinevineraeransnsneatesnranaranesancanes $300.00
Landfill Gas Monitoring Equipment (GEM 500}

Pl dAY v1uinreinrmanerreiareaeei e e rs e aan $95.00

Par WEEK ... ieiiiiiie it reees e $300.00
Level and Stadia Set..ooi i §25.00
Nuclear Density Gauge (per day) .cc.ocovviiariiiniinannns $30.00

Per MONER . envrrree i re et e rr e s e biaaas $300.00
Peristaltic Sampling Pump

PO dAY eeverireneimereienniaeeecenirarcriannsansernnerans $50.00

POr WEEK 1.eiirerie it aiiieciaane s e e e ens $90.00
pH=Conductivity Temperatire Meter

Per day .oivecernccnanrnneenas eeavaseieariraneraeeseaiatas $40.00

PEr WEBK tveeitececiiiiien vt $100.00
Photoionization Detector (Mini Rae / HNU / Microtip)

PEr Y v nineiiiee e eereresiara e ean e aeaeie e $100.00

PEr WEBK ..iniiiieiiiienen e et e ana e ene $360.00
QED Bladder Pump Controller

PEr aY vaiierenererersrenrrerarsrereerrncraenasnerrenaren $50.00

PEr WEEK e e e $90.00
Safety Equipment

Level D (solvex gloves, disposable suit)............... $25.00

Level €2 (above plus respirator) .....coceeeiininnans $50.00

Level C1 {above plus chemical suit)......ccovvvinnnnes $95.00

Level B (above plus SCBA)....ceueriviiiiiiiiienns $300.00

Sensidyne Monitoring Equipment (does not include tubes) .$15.00
Sediment Coring or Soil Sampling Kit

{does not include shelby tubes) {per day)............. $50.00
Torque Wrench (per day) c.ocvevviiniiiiiciiiiiniieanns $25.00
Turbidity Meter (per day) .vvevccvreevririerrciceeieienines $40.00
Turbidity Meter (perweek)......oooiiiiiiiiiiiiia, $150.00
UT Thickness Gauge (Per day) caceeeeeerreervreninencennnnes $50.00
Well Probe (Per day)...eceereriieceniearrerienieaenenrsennss $15.00
Well Probe (per week) ..oviviiciinicrieee e $50.00




RESOLUTION NO. 12-819

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON

I™FIRI/S “FLIT™ RA AR\ b o - Fatlal
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT

WITH SUBTERRA, INC. TG SERVE AS THE
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING CONSULTANT TC THE
MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW TEAM.

WHEREAS, in 2010, the City Council approved Master Planned Development permits for
The Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, in 2011, the City Council approved Development Agreements for The
Villages and Lawson Hills MPDs; and

WHEREAS, as part of ifs consideration and approval of the Development Agreements,
the City also entered into a new Funding Agreement with BD Village Partners and BD

Lawson Pariners; and

WHEREAS, the Funding Agreement calls for the establishment of a Master
Development Review Team (MDRT), to consist of City staff and ouiside consultants;

and
WHEREAS, the City does not have sufficient staff resources nor the expertise to
provide geotechnical engineering review services to meet the needs of the MDRT: and

WHEREAS, private firms providing survey review services were invited to submit
Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, a panel consisting of staff and one City Council member reviewed the
submittals, subsequently interviewed fwo firms and then recommended SubTerra, Inc.
as the firm most capable of providing survey review services as desired;

NOwW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:
Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to exacute a contract with SubTerra, Inc. as

attached hereto as Exhibit A to provide geotechnical engineering review services for the
MDRT.

Pagelof2



PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A SPECIAL MEETING THEREOF, THIS 9" DAY OF JULY, 2012

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Rebecca QOlness, Mayor

Altest:

Lvnd. L Wothie

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk  {/

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT A

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Professional Services Agreement (the or this “Agreement”), for reference purposes

only, is datedﬂ* /O, 2012 and is entered into by and between

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, WASHINGTON (the “City”)
Physical Address: 24301 Roberts Drive
Mailing Address: PO Box 599

Black Diamond, WA 98010

Contact: Phone: 360-886-5700 Fax : 360-886-2592
and

SubTerra, Inc. (“Consultant™)

Physical Address: 218 East North Bend Way, North Bend, WA 98045
Mailing Address:  P.O. Box 520, North Bend, WA 98045

Contact: Dr. Chris Breeds Phone: 425-888-5425 Fax: 425-888-2725
Tax Id No.: 91- iS2-Qiol
for professional services in connection with the following project:

On-call Geotechnical Consulting services on an as-needed basis to conduct third-party
development reviews associated with site investigation, geologic hazards evaluation, site
planning / design and construction for the Villages and Lawsen Hills Master Planned
Developments.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Services by Consultant

1.1 Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work aitached fo
this Agreement as Exhibit "A." The services performed by Consultant shall not exceed the
Scope of Work nor shall the Consuliant be entitled to a greater amount of compensation as that
provided in this Agreement without the prior written authorization of the City.

12 The City may from time to time require changes or modifications in the Scope of
Work. Such changes, including any decrease or increase in the amount of compensation, shall
be agreed to by the parties and incorporated in written amendments to this Agreement.

1.3 Consultant represents and warrants that it, its staff to be assigned to the Project,
and its subconsultants and their staff have the requisite training, skill, and experience necessary
to provide the services required by this Agreement and are appropriately accredited and licensed
by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services provided by Consultant and its

Professional Services Agreement

Page1of8



subconsultants under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that degree
of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currently practicing in
similar circumstances.

2. Schedule of Work

2.1  Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Work in
accordance with the Schedule attached to this contract as Exhibit “B.”

2.2 Time is of the essence as to the work provided in the Scope of Work., Consultant
will diligently proceed with the work and shall assure that it, and its subconsultants, will have
adequate staffing at all times in order to complete the Scope of Work in a timely manner. I
factors beyond Consultant's control that could not have been reasonably foreseen as of the date
of this Agreement cause delay, then the parties will negotiate in good faith to determine whether
an extension is appropriate. The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any
delay, or potential delay, that may trigger the need for a time extension within 3 business days
after the Consultant becomes aware of the delay or potential delay.

2.3 Consultant is authorized to proceed with services upon execufion of this
agreement.

3. Compensation

TIME AND MATERIALS. Compensation for the services provided in the Scope of
Work shall be on a time and materials basis according to the list of billing rates and
reimbursable expenses attached hereto as Exhibit “C.”

4. Payment

4.1  Consultant shall maintain time and expense records and provide them to the City
monthly, along with monthly invoices, in a format acceptable to the City for work performed to
the date of the invoice.

4.2  All invoices shall be paid by City warrant within sixty (60) days of actual receipt
by the City of an invoice conforming in all respects to the terms of this Agreement.

43  Consultant shall keep cost records and accounts pertaining to this Agreement
available for inspection by City representatives for three (3) years after final payment unless a
longer period is required by a third-party agreement. Consultant shall make copies available to
the City on request.

44  If the services rendered do not mect the requirements of the Agreement,
Consultant will correct or modify the work to comply with the Agreement. The City may
withhold payment for such work until the work meets the requirements of the Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement

Page2 of 8



5, Diserimination_and Compliance with Laws

5.1  Consultant agrees not fo discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed,
color, national origin, marital status, sex, age, disability, or other circumstance prohibited by
federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational qualification.

52  Consultant and its subconsultants shall comply with all federal, state, and local
laws and ordinances applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement.

53  Any violation of this Section 5 shall be a material breach of this Agreement and
grounds for immediate cancellation, tegmination, or suspension of the Agreement by the City, in
whole or in part, and may result in Consultant’s ineligibility to conduct further work for the

City.

6.  Suspension and Termination of Agreement

6.1  The City reserves the right to terminate or suspend this Agreement at any time,
without cause, by giving Consultant notice in writing ten (10) days prior to the termination or
suspension date. In the event of termination, all finished or unfinished reports, or other material
prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, shall be submitted to the City. In the event
the City terminates this Agreement prior to completion without cause, Consultant may complete
such analyses and records as may be necessary to place its files in order. Consultant shall be
entifled to compensation for any satisfactory work completed on the Project prior to the date of
suspension or terination.

6.2  Any notice from the City to Consultant regarding the suspension of this
Agreement shall specify the anficipated period of suspension. Any reimbursement for expenses
incurred due to the suspension shall be limited to Consultant's reasonable expenses and shall be
subject to verification. Consultant shall resume performance of services under this Agreement
without delay when the suspension period ends.

7. Standard of Care

7.1  Consultant represents and warrants that it has the requisite training, skill,
and experience necessary to provide the services under this Agreement and is appropriately
accredited and licensed by all applicable agencies and governmental entities. Services
Consultant provides under this Agreement will be performed in a manner consistent with that
degree of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of the same profession currenily
practicing in similar circumstances. . Consultant understands and agrees that the services
rendered pursuant to this Agreement are for the sole exclusive benefit of the City and that no
third party shall have authority to authorize, approve, direct or control any of the services
rendered to the City pursuant to this Agreement.

Professional Services Agreement

Page3of 8



8. Ownership of Work Produet

81  Ownership of the originals of any reports, data, studies, surveys, charts, maps,
drawings, specifications, figures, photographs, memotanda, and any other documents which are
developed, compiled, or produced as a result of this Agreement, whether or not completed, shail
be vested in the City and shall be submitted to the City upon termination of this Agreement. Any
reuse of these materials by the City for projecis or purposes other than those that fall within the
scope of this Agreement and the Project to which it relates, without written concutrence by
Consultant, will be at the sole risk of the City.

82  The City acknowledges Consultant’s documents as instruments of professional
service. Nevertheless, the documents prepared under this Agreement shall become the property
of the City upon completion of the work. The City agrees to hold harmless and indemnify
Consultant against all claims made against Consultant for damage or injury, including defense
costs, arising ont of the City’s reuse of such documents beyond the use for which they were
originally intended without the written authorization of Consultant.

83  Methodology, software, logic, and systems developed under this Agreement are
the property of Consultant and the City, and may be used as either Consultant or the City ses fit,
including the right to revise or publish the same without limitation,

9, Indemuification/Bold Harmiess

9.1  Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits
including attorney fees, arising directly or indirectly out of or resulting from the acts, errors, or
omissions of Consultant or its subconsultants in performance of this Agreement, except for
injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. Provided, however, that if any

“such claims, injuries, damages, losses or suits result from the concurrent negligence of
Consultant and the city, it is expressly agreed that Consultant’s obligations and indemmnity under
this paragraph shall be effective only to the extent of Consultant’s negligence.

10. Insurance

10.}  Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, and
shall provide proof satisfactory to the City that such insurance is procured and maintained by
each of its subconsultants, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by
Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

10.2  Consultant shall procure and maintain the following types and amounts of
insurance:

a. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired, and
leased vehicles. Caverage shall be written on Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 00 01
or a substitute form providing equivalent liability coverage. If necessary, the policy shall be
endorsed to provide coniractual liability coverage. This insurance shall have a minimum
combined single limit for bodily injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident.

Professional Services Agreement

Paged of 8



b. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on ISO
occurrence form CG 00 01 or a substitute form providing equivalent Hability coverage and shall
cover liability arising from premises, operations, independent contractors, personal injury, and
advertising injury. This insurance shall be written with limits no less than $1,000,000 each
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

c. Workers” Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance

laws of the State of Washington.

d. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to Consultant’s profession,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit.

10.3 The Automobile Liability, Commercial General Liability, and Professional
Liability insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

a. Consultant’s insurance coverage shall be primary insurance vis-3-vis the
City. Any insurance, self-insurance, or insurance pool coverage maintained by the City shali be
excess over Consultant’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.

b. Consultant’s insurance shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be
cancelled, except afier thirty (30) days prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt
requested, has been given to the City.

10.4 The City shall be named as an addifional insured under Consultant’s Automobile
Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance policies with respect to the work to be
performed for the City pursuant to this Agreement.

16:5 Insurance shall be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less
than A:VIL

10.6  Declaration pages issued by the insurance carriers for the policies mentioned in
this Section 10 showing such insurance to be in force shall be filed with the City not Iess than ten
(10) days following both parties signing this Agreement and before commencement of the work,
In addition, the City may request, in writing, a full copy from Consultant of any insurance policy
Consultant must procure and mainfain pursuant to this Agreement and Consultant must provide
such copy to the City within ten (10) days of Consultant’s receipt of the City’s request. Any
policy or required insurance written on a claims-made basis shall provide coverage as to all
claims arising out of the services performed under this Agreement and for three (3) years
following completion of the services to be performed. It shall be a material breach of this
Agreement for Consultant to fail fo procure and maintain the insurance required by this Section
10 or to provide the proof of such insurance to the City as provided for in this Agreement.

11. Assigning or Subcontracting

11.1  Consultant shall not assign, transfer, subcontract, or encumber any rights, duties,
or interests accruing from this Agreement without the express prior written consent of the City,
which consent may be withheld at the sole discretion of the City.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 5of 8



12, Independent Contractor

12,1 Consultant and its subconsultants are, and shall be at all times during the term of
this Agreement, independent contractors.

i3, Notice

13.1  All notices required by this Agreement shall be considered properly delivered
when personally delivered, when received by facsimile, or on the third day following mailing,
postage prepaid, certified mail, return receipt requested to:

City: City Administrator
City of Black Diamond
P.O. Box 599
Black Diamond, WA 98010
Fax: 360-886-2592

With a copy to: Chris Bacha
Kenyon Disend, PLLC
11 Front Street South
Issaquah, WA 98027
Fax: 425-392-7071

Consyliant: Di. Chiis Breeds
SubTerra, Inc.
P.0O. Box 520
North Bend, WA 98045
Fax: 425-888-2725

14. Disputes

141 Any action for claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
govemed by the laws of the State of Washington. Venue shall be in Xing County Superior

Court, Kent, Washington.

15. Attorney Fees

15.1  In any suit or action instituted to enforce any right granted in this Agreement, the
substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its costs, disbursements, and
reascnable attorney fees from the other party.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 6 of 8



16. General Administration and Management on Behalf of the City

16.1 The City Administrator for the City, or his’/her designee( the contract
Administrator) shall review and approve Consultant's invoices to the City under this Agreement
and shall have primary respousibility for overseeing and approving work or services fo be
performed by Consultant. . Consultant understands and agrees that any and all work to be
performed pursuant to this Agreement must be approved in advance by the contract

influence over the services performed under this Confract.

17, Extent of Asreement/Modification

17.1 This Agreement, together with any attachments or addenda, represents the entire
and integrated Apgreement between the parties hereto and supersedss all prior negptiations,
representations, or agreements, either written or oral. After City Council approval, this
Agreement shall be in effect as of July 10, 2012 and shall remain in effect until June 30, 2014,
unless sooner terminated as set forth herein. This Agreement may only be amended, modified,
or added fo by writien instrument properly signed by both parties. The parties acknowledge the
general contract rule that a clause in a coniract, such as this one, prohibiting oral modifications
is itself generally subject to oral modification. However, in order to ensure certainty as to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement, the parties waive this general contract rule.

18. Conflict of Interest: Non-Collusion

18.1 No officer, employee or agent of the City, nor any member of the immediate
family of any such officer, employee or agent, shall have any personal financial interest, direct
or indirect, in this Contract, either in fact or in appearance. The Consultant shall comply with
all federal, state, and City conflict of interest laws, statutes and regulations. The Consultant
represents that the Consultant presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct
or indirect, in the project to which this Contract pertains which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of the Consultant’s services and obligations hereunder. The
Consultant further covenants that, in performance of this Contract, no person having any such
interest shall be employed by the Consultant, The contractor’s officers, employees or agents
shall neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors or anything of monetary value from the project
applicant or any affiliate or agent of the project applicant.

18.2 The Contractor warrants and represents that the Contractor has not, nor has any
other member, employee, representative, agent or officer of the Contractor, entered into or
offered to enter into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person or entity to
receive of pay, and that he has not received or paid, any sum of money or other consideration
for the execntion of this Contract other than the consideration offered pursuant to the terms and
conditions hereof.

Professional Services Agreement

Page 7 of 8



CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND CONSULTANT
By: éb, . K M“ﬂ _ By: .

Rebecca Olness Printed Name: Chris D. Breeds
Its: Mayor Its: President
Date: 7 «lb—l2 Date: 77— 16-2e2
Attest:

By:
Lrende N Wke?
Brenda L. Martinez

City Clerk

Professional Services Agreemsent

Page8of §



Exhibit A {General Scope of Work)} SubTerra, Inc.
Agreement with SubTerra, [nc.

The City of Black Diamond will contract with SubTerra Inc. to provide on-call Geotechnical Consulting
services an an as-needed basis to cenduct third-party development reviews associated with sife
investigation, geotogic hazards evaluation, site planning / design and construction for the Villages and
Lawson Hills Master Planned Deveiopments.

SubTerra, Ine. Gaotechnical Consulting work will include review of geclogical and engineering studies
and engineering designs for abandoned coal mines, steep slopes, site improvements, rockeries and
retaining structures, impoundments, embankments, ete. as further described in the Black Diamond
Municipal Code and provisions of the planned MPDs. '

Consulting services may generally include the following tasks as requested by the City:
1. Pre-submittal consultation with applicants and city staff.

2. Participation in Preliminary Design meetings and other activities as a Member of the Master
Development Review Team (MDRT).

3. Review and preparation of written comments on submitted applications, sensitive areas studies,
SEPA Checklists/EiSs, mitigation plans, and related doctiments prepared by others for the
purpose of coal mine hazards areas Identification, review of impacts, and mitigation evaluation.

4. Field inspections and field observations of Applicant site investigation programs to verify existing
site condifions.

5. Conducting record research, locating abandoned coal mine features and workings and
assembling as drawings/exhibits in support of the City's evaluation of abandoned coal mine
studies submitted by Applicant.

6. Review and preparation of written comments on submitted engineering drawings, utilities plans,
grading plans, stormwater management plans, stream culvert designs, geotechnical reports, and
other reports, studies, and drawings for the evaluation ¢f compliance with city codes and
standards and any applicable provisions of the approved MPDs.

7. Review and preparation of written comments on exceptions, variances, or other requested
deviations from Code.

8. Review and preparation of written comments on draft sensitive areas nofices ta be recorded on
fitle.

9. Review and preparation of written comments on mitigation, maintenance, and monitoring costs
estimates for the posting of financial guarantees, if required, by applicants.

10. Verbal and written correspondence and coerdination with applicants and/or City staff.

11. Assistance with staff reports and preparationfreview of meeting/hearing materials and exhibits.
12. Interagency coordination,

13. Attendance and/or testimony at city council or other public meelings or hearings.

14. Pre-construction meeting attendance and related correspondence.

15. Review and findings of demarcated boundarles and fencing limits for the protection of coal mine
hazard areas by applicants prior to the commencement of construction.

16. Construction and post-construction related third-party menitoring inspections, compliance reviews
and reports during construction of individual engineering projects.

17. Review of any reported viclations and subsequent corrective restoration or mitigation for
violations caused by applicants or their contractors.



City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact;

Project Name: Phone:  360-886-5700
Fax: 360-886-2692

Project No.:

Roouect Made To-
mequesi Maae 100

Phone:
Fax;

Scope of Task Reqjuest

Budget Estimate: $

Task Request Approval:

Writteit Name Titte

Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall nofify the City should additional funds be necessary fo complete
the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence until written notification is received from

the City.



SubTerra, Inc. 1/8/200¢

SubTerra, Inc.

Payment Terms and Rate Sheet

SubTerra, Inc. is an Engineering Corporation offering engineering services in the mining, civil,
and geotechnical fields. We also rent, lease, and sell equipment related to these fields
including blast monitoring equipment, instrumentation, excavation profiling and surveying, and
tunneling equipment

The following paragraphs and table provide a rate structure for our setvices and associated
payment terms and conditions.

Rates for Technical Professional Services Rate

Principal 155.00
Associate 135.00
Senior 125.00
Project 115.00
Staif 105.00
Senior Drafier 95.00
Drafier 85.00
Senior Independent Associate 175.00
Instrumentation Technician 65,00
CM Senior Inspector 105.00
CM Technician/Inspector 95.00
Secretarial and Administration 6% of Labor

Payment Terms for Technical Services

We invoice monthly for {echnical services, usually on or near the first of the month. For time
and materials centracts, invoices are provided that delineate hours worked by discipline or
personnel, other direct costs (e.g., subcontractors, travel, copying, telephone, etc.) that are
directly attributable to the project, and a markup of 10% on other direct costs that recovers
associated general and administrative costs, B&O taxes, and Pl insurance. Subject to prior
agreement with Client, an additional management fee may be added te subcontractors to
cover associaled administrative costs. These costs will have already been incurred and paid
by us on your behalf. The invoice is therefore payable on receipt and is considered past due
10 days from the invoice date.

Payment Terms for Rental, Lease or Purchase of Equipment

Terms will be as noted on our Instrument and Equipment Rental Agreement, Sales Contract,
or Lease Agreement.

218 E. North Bend Way 425-888-5425 (Voice)
North Bend, WA 98045 http:\www.sublerra.us Company: inifials:




RESOLUTION NOC. 14-853

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE THE FIRST
ADDENDUM TO THE SUBTERRA, INC. CONTRACT TO
SERVE AS THE GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING
CONSULTANT TO THE MASTER DEVELOPMENT REVIEW
TEAM

WHEREAS, on July 9, 2012 the Consultant and the City entered into a contract
via Resolution No. 12-819 for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will soon expire, and the City would like to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consultants and the

execution of new contracts with the City; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the first addendum to the
SubTerra, Inc confract, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 5TH DAY OF JUNE 2014,

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:
Dave Gordon, Mayor

Altest:

Eruncde £AViorne,

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk U



FIRST AMENDMENT TO CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
SubTerra, Inc.

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT is mads to the Consultant Services Contiract via Resclution
No. 12-819 executed between the City of Black Diamond, a Washington municipal
corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and Sub Terra, Inc. (hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Washington, located and doing
business at 218 East North Bend Way, North Bend, WA 88045.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, on July 8, 2012, the Consultant and the City entered inio a contract
for on-going services as described in that Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contract will scon expire, and the City would like to extend the
contract while it complies with state law for the selection of consuliants and the

execution of new contracts with the City;

WHEREAS, the Consultant agrees to continue its performance of services under
the same terms and conditions in the original Contract;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS

Section 1. No Change to Terms and Conditions. With the exception of the
expiration date of the Contract between the City and the Consultant, all terms and
conditions of the Contract shall remain the same.

Section 2. New Expiration Date. The parties agree to extend the expiration date
of the Contract June 30, 2014 tc September 30, 2014.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this 5th
day of June, 2014.

Page 1



CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND

@;@L— . By: ﬂ_}, dd @M‘d"—j @94—%_
Dave Gordon, Mayor

By:
Chris Breeds
lts: President

Consultant: SubTerra Inc.

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Carol A. Morris, City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:

Brenda Mértinez: City Glerk a

Page 2



CITY COUNCIL City of Black Diamond

AGENDA BILL vost Office Box >0

Black Diamond, WA 98010
ITEM INFORMATION

SUBJECT: Agenda Date: September 18,2014  AB14-089

Resolution No. 14-978, authorizing the Mayor Dave Gordon

Mayor to execute a contract with RH2 City Administrator

Engineering, Inc. to serve as the Civil City Attorney Carol Morris

Engineering Consultant to the Water, City Clerk — Brenda L. Martinez

Sewer, and Stormwater utilities. Com Dev/Nat Res — Aaron Nix

Finance — May Miller

MDRT/Eco Dev — Andy Williamson

Cost Impact (see also Fiscal Note): $100,000 Police — Chief Kiblinger
Fund Source: Water/Sewer/Storm Water Public Works — Seth Boettcher X
Timeline: 2 years Court — Stephanie Metcalf

Agenda Placement: X] Mayor [ | Two Councilmembers [ | Committee Chair [ | City Administrator

Attachments: Resolution No. 14-978, Contract forms

SUMMARY STATEMENT:
The City is in need of on-going water, sewer, and stormwater engineering services. At the

beginning of September, the City went through a consultant selection process and through that
process selected RH2 Engineering, Inc.

The City has used RH2 in the past for on-call tasks and has received responsive, technically

sound engineering with accurate and clear billing. Having received very good engineering |

service from RH2, staff is recommending a two year civil engineering contract with RH2
Engineering, Inc. for water, sewer, and stormwater engineering services.

Tasks under this agreement will be executed via an on-call task request. Tasks over $7,500 will
require City Council approval. The staff will use this contract for initial study and investigation
work for capital project development, Maintenance and Operation trouble shooting and
assistance, serving development needs and review (reimbursable).

FISCAL NOTE (Finance Department): Engineering costs cover Developer or reimbursable
costs, Utility development work for future capital projects, or for Utility Maintenance &
Operation trouble shooting and assistance. Amounts over $7,500 will have council approval
which will included reviewing the budget or reimbursement amount for each approval.

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REVIEW AND RECOMMENDATION:
Public Work Committee recommends adoption.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: MOTION to adopt Resolution No. 14-978 authorizing
the Mayor to execute a professional services agreement with RH2
Engineering, Inc. to serve as the Civil Engineering Consultant to the Water,
Sewer, and Stormwater Utilities.

RECORD OF COUNCIL ACTION

Meeting Date Action Vote

September 18, 2014




RESOLUTION NO. 14-978

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
BLACK DIAMOND, KING COUNTY, WASHINGTON
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH RH2
ENGINEERING, INC. TO SERVE AS THE CIVIL
ENGINEERING CONSULTANT TO THE WATER, SEWER,
AND STORM WATER UTILITIES

WHEREAS, the City does not have sufficient staff resources to provide civil engineering
services to meet the needs of the water, sewer, and storm water utilities; and

WHEREAS, private firms providing civil engineering services were invited to submit
Statements of Qualifications for review and consideration; and

WHEREAS, a panel consisting of staff reviewed the submittals, subsequently
interviewed two firms and then unanimously recommended RH2 Engineering, Inc. as
the firm most capable of providing Civil Engineering Services as desired;

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, DOES RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute a contract with RH2 Engineering,
Inc. to provide Civil Engineering Services to the Water, Sewer, and Stormwater Utilities,
substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit A.

PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND,
WASHINGTON, AT A REGULAR MEETING THEREOF, THIS 18™ DAY OF
SEPTEMBER, 2014.

CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND:

Dave Gordon, Mayor

Attest:

Brenda L. Martinez, City Clerk



Exhibit

CONSULTANT SERVICES CONTRACT
BETWEEN THE CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND AND
RH2 ENGINEERING

THIS AGREEMENT is made by and between the CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND, a
Washington municipal corporation (hereinafter the "City"), and RH2 ENGINEERING,
INC., (hereinafter the “Consultant,”) a corporation organized under the laws of the State
of Washington and doing business at 22722 29" Drive SE, Suite 210, Bothell, WA

QonN4
goucLi.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the City does not have sufficient staff resources to provide full
service water, sewer, and storm water engineering services to meet the needs of the
City; and

WHEREAS, the Consultant has agreed to provide on-call water, sewer, and
storm water engineering services as requested by the City as described herein; and

WHEREAS, the City advertised for engineering services and has selected RH2
Engineering, Inc. as the most qualified;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth herein, it
is agreed by and between the parties as follows:

TERMS
l. Description of Work.

A. The Consultant shall be prepared to provide all work described in Exhibit A,
which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.

B. The City will issue an on-call task request for each project task for which the
City requires Consultant services. No work shall be commenced by Consultant under
this Contract except pursuant to such an on-call task request issued by the City in the
form attached hereto as Exhibit B. Consultant shall perform the services described on
the on-call task request in accordance with the schedule and scope of work set forth in
the on-call task request (the “Task Scope of Work”).

Il. Payment

A. The City shall pay the Consultant an amount based on time and materials
according to the list of billing rates and reimbursable expenses attached hereto as
Exhibit C. The total amount of services under this contract shall not exceed One
hundred thousand Dollars ($100,000.00) for the services described in Section | herein.
This is the maximum amount to be paid under this Agreement for the work described in

Page 1

A


bmartinez
Typewritten Text

bmartinez
Typewritten Text

bmartinez
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A

bmartinez
Typewritten Text


Exhibit A, and shall not be exceeded without the prior written authorization of the City in
the form of a negotiated and executed supplemental agreement. PROVIDED,
HOWEVER, the City reserves the right to direct the Consultant's compensated services
under the time frame set forth in Section IV herein before reaching the maximum
amount.

B. Compensation for the services provided pursuant to an on-call task request
shall not exceed $7,500 without the written authorization of the City Council. In the

avnnt tha aftar tha annramant AFf tha wnrle tha CAancirilfant antininatac that tha
CVCIiiL Lllal ailci lllG UUIIIIIIUl ILCHTIGHIL VI l.l IC VWUIRN, U |U UL lDullallL al ".I\JIPCILGD uiat uic

work for an on-call task request will exceed $7,500, Consultant shall promptly notify the
City and provide the City with whatever documents or information is necessary to
request approval of any amounts in excess thereof.

C. The Consultant shall submit monthly invoices to the City after such services
have been performed, and a final bill upon completion of all the services described in
this Agreement. The City shall pay the full amount of an invoice within sixty (60) days of
receipt. If the City objects to all or any portion of any invoice, it shall so notify the
Consultant of the same within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt and shall pay
that portion of the invoice not in dispute, and the parties shall immediately make every
effort to settle the disputed portion.

lll. Relationship of Parties

The parties intend that an independent contractor-client relationship will be
created by this Agreement. As the Consultant is customarily engaged in an
independently established trade which encompasses the specific service provided to
the City hereunder, no agent, employee, representative or sub-consultant of the
Consultant shall be or shall be deemed to be the employee, agent, representative or
sub-consultant of the City. In the performance of the work, the Consultant is an
independent contractor with the ability to control and direct the performance and details
of the work, the City being interested only in the results obtained under this Agreement.
None of the benefits provided by the City to its employees including, but not limited to,
compensation, insurance, and unemployment insurance are available from the City to
the employees, agents, representatives, or sub-consultants of the Consultant. The
Consultant will be solely and entirely responsible for its acts and for the acts of its
agents, employees, representatives and sub-consultants during the performance of this
Agreement. The City may, during the term of this Agreement, engage other independent
contractors to perform the same or similar work that the Consultant performs hereunder.

IV. Duration of Work

A. The City and the Consultant agree that work will begin on the tasks
described in Exhibit A upon execution of this Contract. The parties agree that the work
described in Exhibit A shall be completed two years after execution of this contract;
provided however, that additional time shall be granted by the City for any task orders
which will not be completed prior to the two-year deadline, in which case the terms and

Page 2



conditions of this contract shall apply. No new task orders shall be executed two years
after the execution of this Contract.

This Agreement shall expire in two years from the effective date, which shall be
the date that both parties sign this Agreement. The Consultant agrees that there will be
a deadline for completion of the work assigned in each individual Task Order, which
may or may not be different from the expiration date of this Agreement. The Consultant
agrees to complete all work assigned in a Task Order on the deadline set forth in each

TAacly NMeAdAw- PPN AarmandAad v th ArmandAad

lllUIVluudl I dON Ui, uniess bubll UGCIU[IIIU ID amenaeada U_y uic \Jll._y Ill an amenaed

Task Order.

V. Termination

A. Termination of Agreement. The City may terminate this Agreement, for public
convenience, the Consultant's default, the Consultant’s insolvency or bankruptcy, or the
Consultant's assignment for the benefit of creditors, at any time prior to completion of
the work described in Exhibit A. If delivered to Consultant in person, termination shall be
effective immediately upon the Consultant's receipt of the City's written notice or such
date stated in the City's notice, whichever is later.

B. Rights Upon Termination. In the event of termination, the City shall pay for all
services satisfactorily performed by the Consultant to the effective date of termination,
as described on a final invoice submitted to the City. Said amount shall not exceed the
amount in Section Il above. After termination, the City may take possession of all
records and data within the Consultant’'s possession pertaining to this Agreement, which
records and data may be used by the City without restriction. Upon termination, the City
may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or
otherwise.

Vi. Discrimination

In the hiring of employees for the performance of work under this Agreement or any
sub-contract hereunder, the Consultant, its Subcontractors, or any person acting on
behalf of such Consultant or sub-consultant shall not by reason of race, religion, color,
sex, national origin, or the presence of any sensory, mental, or physical disability,
discriminate against any person who is qualified and available to perform the work to
which the employment relates.

VIl. Indemnification

The Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, its officers, officials,
employees, agents and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages,
losses or suits, including all legal Costs and attorneys' fees, arising out of or in
connection with the negligent performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and
damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. The City's inspection or acceptance

Page 3



of any of the Consultant's work when completed shall not be grounds to avoid any of
these covenants of indemnification.

Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is Subject to
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence
of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and Volunteers,

the Consultant's liability hereunder shall be only to the extent of the Consultant's

I‘\r\ﬂ" nnnnn
INoyiycirivo.

IT IS FURTHER SPECIFICALLY AND EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD THAT THE
INDEMNIFICATION PROVIDED HEREIN CONSTITUTES THE CONSULTANT'S
WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE, TITLE 51 RCW, SOLELY
FOR THE PURPOSES OF THIS INDEMNIFICATION. THE PARTIES FURTHER
ACKNOWLEDGE THAT THEY HAVE MUTUALLY NEGOTIATED THIS WAIVER. THE
CONSULTANT'S WAIVER OF IMMUNITY UNDER THE PROVISIONS OF THIS
SECTION DOES NOT INCLUDE, OR EXTEND TO. ANY CLAIMS BY THE
CONSULTANT'S EMPLOYEES DIRECTLY AGAINST THE CONSULTANT.

The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement.

VIIl. Insurance

A. The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement,
insurance against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise
from or in connection with the Consultant's own work including the work of the
Consultant's agents, representatives, employees, sub-consultants or sub-contractors.

B. Before beginning work on the project described in this Agreement, the
Consultant shall provide evidence, in the form of a Certificate of Insurance, of the
following insurance coverage and limits (at a minimum):

1. Business auto coverage for any auto no less than a $1,000,000 each
accident limit, and

2. Commercial General Liability insurance no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence with a $2,000,000 aggregate. Coverage shall include, but is not
limited to, products and completed operations, property damage, and employers
liability, and

3. Professional Liability insurance with no less than $1,000,000. All
policies and coverage's shall be on a claims made basis.

C. The Consultant is responsible for the payment of any deductible or self-
insured retention that is required by any of the Consultant's insurance. If the City is

Page 4



required to contribute to the deductible under any of the Consultant's insurance policies,
the Contractor shall reimburse the City the full amount of the deductible within 10
working days of the City's deductible payment.

D. The City of Black Diamond shall be named as an additional insured on the
Consultant's commercial general liability policy. This additional insured endorsement
shall be included with evidence of insurance in the form of a Certificate of Insurance for
coverage necessary in Section B. The City reserves the right to receive a certified and

£

Iha CAnars nt'a Inarniran~a A Li~rina

te copy of all of the Consultant's insurance Poicies.

~ramnla +
\IUIIIPIGLG \JUPy VI dil Ul U

E. Under this agreement, the Consultant's insurance shall be considered primary
in the event of a loss, damage or suit. The City's own comprehensive general liability
policy will be considered excess coverage with respect to defense and indemnity of the
City only and no other party. Additionally, the Consultant's commercial general liability
policy must provide cross-liability coverage as could be achieved under a standard ISO
separation of insured's clause.

F. The Consultant shall request from his insurer a modification of the ACORD
certificate to include language that prior written notification will be given to the City of
Black Diamond at least 30-days in advance of any cancellation, suspension or material
change in the Consultant's coverage.

IX. Exchange of Information

The City warrants the accuracy of any information supplied by it to the Consultant for
the purpose of completion of the work under this Agreement. The parties agree that the
Consultant will notify the City of any inaccuracies in the information provided by the City
as may be discovered in the process of performing the work, and that the City is entitled
to rely upon any information supplied by the Consultant which results as a product of
this Agreement.

X. Ownership and Use of Records and Documents

Original documents, drawings, designs and reports developed under this Agreement
shall belong to and become the property of the City. All written information submitted by
the City to the Consultant in connection with the services performed by the Consultant
under this Agreement will be safeguarded by the Consultant to at least the same extent
as the Consultant safeguards like information relating to its own business. If such
information is publicly available or is already in Consultant's possession or known to it,
or is rightfully obtained by the Consultant from third parties, the Consultant shall bear no
responsibility for its disclosure, inadvertent or otherwise.

Xl. City's Right of Inspection

Page 5



Even though the Consultant is an independent contractor with the authority to control
and direct the performance, and details of the work authorized under this Agreement,
the work must meet the approval of the City and shall be subject to the City's general
right of inspection to secure the satisfactory completion thereof. The Consultant agrees
to comply with all federal, state, and municipal laws, rules, and regulations that are now
effective or become applicable within the terms of this Agreement to the Consultant's
business, equipment, and personnel engaged in operations covered by this Agreement
or accruing out of the performance of such operations.

XIl. Consultant to Maintain Records to Support Independent Contractor Status

On the effective date of this Agreement (or shortly thereafter), the Consultant shall
comply with all federal and state laws applicable to Independent contractors including,
but not limited to the maintenance of a separate set of books and records that reflect all
ltems of income and expenses of the Consultant's business, pursuant to the Revised
Code of Washington (RCW) Section 51.08.195, as required to show that the services
performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall not give rise to an employer-
employee relationship between the parties which is subject to RCW Title 51, Industrial
Insurance.

XIll. Work Performed at the Consultant’s Risk

The Consultant shall take all precautions necessary and shall be responsible for the
safety of its employees, agents, and sub-consultants in the performance of the work
hereunder and shall utilize all protection necessary for that purpose. All work shall be
done at the Consultant's own risk, and the Consultant shall be responsible for any loss
of or damage to materials, tools, or other articles used or held by the Consultant for use
In connection with the work.

XIV. Non-Waiver of Breach

The failure of the City to insist upon strict performance of any of the covenants and
agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred in one or more
instances, shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants,
agreements, or options and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect.

XV. Resolution of Disputes and Governing Law

Should any dispute, misunderstanding, or conflict arise as to the terms and conditions
contained in this Agreement, the matter shall first be referred to the City of Black
Diamond shall determine the term or provision's true intent or meaning. The City of
Black Diamond shall also decide all questions which may arise between the parties
relative to the actual services provided or to the sufficiency of the performance
hereunder.

Page 6



If any dispute arises between the City and the Consultant under any of the provisions of
this Agreement which cannot be resolved by the Mayor or Administrator's determination
in a reasonable time, or if the Consultant does not agree with the City's decision on the
disputed matter, jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in King County
Superior Court, King County, Washington. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington. The non-prevailing
party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay the other parties'
expenses and reasonable attorney's fees.

XVLI. Written Notice

All communications regarding this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the
addresses listed on the signature page of the agreement, unless notified to the contrary.
Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective upon
the date of mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed sufficiently given
if sent to the addressee at the address stated below:

CONSULTANT: CITY:

Attn: Geoff Dillard Attn: Seth Boettcher
RH2 Engineering, Inc. City of Black Diamond
22722 29" Drive SE, Suite 210 P.O. Box 599

Bothell, WA 98021 24301 Roberts Drive

Black Diamond, WA 98010

With a copy to the “City Clerk” at the same
address.

XVII. Assignment

Any assignment of this Agreement by the Consultant without the written consent of the
City shall be void. If the City shall give its consent to any assignment, this paragraph
shall continue in full force and effect and no further assignment shall be made without

the City's consent.

XVIIil. Modification and Severability

No waiver, alteration, or modification of any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be
binding unless in writing and signed by a duly authorized representative of the City and
the Consultant.

The provisions of this Agreement are declared to be severable. If any provision of this
Agreement is for any reasons held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of
competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or unconstitutionatity shall not affect the validity
or constitutionality of any other provision.

Page 7



XiX. Entire Agreement

The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together with any Exhibits attached
hereto. shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other representative
of the City, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering into
or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement or the
Agreement documents. The entire agreement between the parties with respect to the

IhavrarnAa Anntainad thia Nranmaant anAd Cuvhilhita attanlaA
DUUJU\A. IHCH.LUI nereundaer ID Cointainead Ill LIIID I'\HICUHICIIL ana an ly cXNIoIS auacned

hereto, which may or may not have been executed prior to the execution of this
Agreement. All of the above documents are hereby made a part of this Agreement and
form the Agreement document as fully as if the same were set forth herein. Should any
language in any of the Exhibits to this Agreement conflict with any language contained
in this Agreement, then this Agreement shall prevail.

Page 8



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on this
day of , 2014.

CONSULTANT CITY OF BLACK DIAMOND
By: By:
its: Dave Gordon, Mayor

Consultant:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

City Attorney’s Office

ATTEST:

City Clerk

Page 9



Exhibit A
Scope of Work

Background

In the course of a year and from time to time, the City will be in need of engineering assistance
for the City’s water, sewer and stormwater utilities as weii as capitai project design work for
these utilities. This scope of work is intended to disclose the types of services the City may be
seeking but is not intended to be all inclusive of the City’s needs nor is it intended to be a
complete list of all services that the City will be requesting.

The following tasks are not intended to imply chronological order, but rather serve as general
categories of work that may be required by this contract.

Task 1 - Computer modeling of City Utility systems

Review various utility system performance and constraints using computer modeling for
the water, sewer and stormwater systems.

Evaluate different utility system configurations to meet City needs or to address
identified problems.

Task 2 - Agency Coordination

Assist the City with processing projects through various state and local agencies.
Assist the City with preparing, presenting and advocating for solutions to City utility
needs before various state and local agencies.

Task 3 — Professional Assistance to Address Utility System Urgent Needs

Provide the City with professional engineering and technical advice to deal with system
operations and maintenance problems that may arise.

Assist the City with responding to regulatory requirements, new technology, or new
demands on the utility systems.

Task 4 — Capital Project Engineering

Provide the City with early project planning engineering to define a general scope and
budget.

Provide the City with preliminary project engineering to find creative, technically sound
and practical solutions to address City needs.



e Provide efficient, clear drawings and contract documents for bidding public works

projects.
¢ Attend meeting as necessary and as directed by the City to ensure compliance with City

needs.
e Provide quality control and maintain quality assurance procedures for work products.

e Maintain complete and efficient working files of project activities.

e Provide timely and accurate billing invoices and billing records.

e Provide peer-review services as requested by the City.

¢ Meet with other City departments and as requested by the City to share information
and maintain a cooperative working environment.

Task 5 — Mapping and As-built Drawings

e Provide mapping services for the City as requested.
e Update City maps with information collected by the City or from developers.
e Assist City with GIS systems and as-built formatting.

Task 6 — Services During Construction

e Provide on-call field inspection services to assist and supplement the experience and
resources of City staff.
e Assist the City with project management activities as requested.

Task 7 — Rates and Financial Analysis

e Provide the City with rate studies, capital facility charge analysis, cost benefit analysis
and funding recommendations.

Task 8 — General

e Provide professional technical assistance related to the planning, review, permit
requirements, capital project implementation, operations, maintenance and reporting
for the City’s water, sewer and storm water utilities as directed by the City.



Exhibit B

City of Black Diamond On-Call Task Request

Date: City Staff Contact:
Task Name: Phone: 360-886-5700
Consultant Project No.: Fax: 360-886-2592

Consultant Contact Name:
Consultant Phone:
Consultant Fax:

Scope of Task Request

Budget Estimate:

Task Request Approval:

City of Black Diamond:

Written Name Title
Signature Date
Consultant:
Written Name Title
Signature Date

*Costs are billed on a time and materials basis, the Consultant shall notify the City should additional funds be necessary to complete
the task order. Additional work beyond that which is ordered by the City shall not commence until written notification is received from

the City.




CLASSIFICATION ©~~ =~ . RATE .~ = CLASSIFICATION ' = = "= RATE

Professional $209.00 Technician $135.00 o
| Professional $209.00 Technician $127.00 |
|Professional $201.00 Technician $95.00
Technician $90.00

|Professional $186.00 -
Professional $177.00 Administrative $126.00 |
Professional $167.00 Administrative $105.00

Administrative $91.00 |
Professional $157.00 Administrative $75.00
Professional . $147.00 Administrative $63.00

Professional $135.00

. VIN-HOUSE SERVICES

In-house copies (each) 8.5"X 11" $0 09 CAD Plots Large $25.00
In-house copies (each) 8.5" X 14" $0.14 CAD Plots Full Size $10.00 |
In-house copies (each) 11" X 17" $0.20 CAD Plots Half Size $2.50
In-house copies (color) (each)  8.5" X 11" $0.90 CAD System Per Hour $27.50
In-house copies (color) (each) 8.5" X 14" $1.20 GIS System Per Hour $27.50
In-house copies (color) (each) 11 X17" $2.00 Technology Charge 2.5% of Direct Labor|
Mileage Current IRS Rate|’

- OU'T‘SI'bE‘sE:RViéE

CHANGES INRATES

Rates llsted here are adJ usted annually The current schedule of rates and charges 1s used for bﬂhng purposes Payment for work
; ?_{. accomphshed shall be based on the hourly’ rates-and expenses in effect at the tlme of bﬂhng as stated in thlS Ex}ublt

9/10720141:18 PM JAData\BD's40\2014 On-callPSA_FEE_BD_2014 On-callxisx





